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CELEBRATING 150 YEARS

CELEBRATING 150 YEARS

In 2006, Burberry celebrated its 150th anniversary. We honoured 
the brand’s:

– Authentic British heritage, rooted in the integrity of our outerwear
– Broad consumer appeal, across genders and generations
– Unique democratic positioning within the luxury arena
– Global reach

This was also an opportunity to take pride in our widely recognised 
icon portfolio – the trench coat, the trademark check and the Prorsum 
horse logo.

While celebrating this milestone, we also looked forward to the next chapter,
continuing to build on our core strengths and outstanding platform…

– Multi-category competence: womenswear, menswear and accessories
– Global reach with a business balanced across geographies
– Channel expertise in retail, wholesale and licensing
– A seasoned management team

…while refining our strategies for future growth.

The following pages outline Burberry’s strategy through the lens of our five
strategic themes:

– Leverage the franchise
– Intensify non-apparel development
– Accelerate retail-led growth
– Invest in under-penetrated markets
– Pursue operational excellence
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LEVERAGE THE FRANCHISE
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LEVERAGE THE FRANCHISE

LEVERAGE THE FRANC HISE

FRONT-END OPPORTUNITIES

Through more coordinated use of brand assets and greater integration of our organisation around
the globe, Burberry has the opportunity to enhance its responsiveness to consumers and operate
more efficiently and effectively. This potential exists at both the front of the business, as well as in
back of house operations.

The front-end comprises everything the consumer sees – our products, our marketing imagery, 
our stores. Front-end opportunities include:

– Capitalising on unique positioning: Burberry is uniquely positioned. No other brand within the
democratic segment of the luxury market enjoys a comparable foundation, scale or reach.

– Rebalancing the product portfolio: Burberry’s critically acclaimed, exclusive runway collection
presents the basis for rebalancing our product portfolio. Its success provides the inspiration,
expertise and credentials for growing this select segment while extending its luxury and fashion
components to a broader portion of Burberry’s core casual product offering.

– Reinforcing outerwear heritage and leadership: Outerwear is our merchandising cornerstone –
the category in which Burberry is top-of-mind among consumers. We concentrate on innovation
in design and merchandising to strengthen our leadership position: new product launches,
strategically structured assortments, runway revelations.
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LEVERAGE THE FRANCHISE

LEVERAGE THE FRANC HISE

BACK OF HOUSE OPPORTUNITIES

The back of house operations comprise the processes, infrastructure and administrative elements
that the consumer never sees, required to produce Burberry’s alluring front-end.

Historically, Burberry’s organisation has been highly decentralised. Today the Group sees
opportunities to streamline and simplify its structure, creating a more effective and efficient model.
Examples include:

– Consolidating product design in London under Burberry’s Creative Director to enhance 
aesthetic quality and consistency

– Realigning the many business units in a three-region structure to leverage our global scale
– Integrating regional and functional teams to leverage isolated islands of expertise around 

the world

Similarly, Burberry’s supply chain has been an amalgamation of resources, many small and limited 
in capability and located across multiple geographies. The Group is developing a strategy for
implementing a single, globally-integrated structure throughout the business.
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INTENSIFY NON-APPAREL DEVELOPMENT

INTENSIFY 
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INTENSIFY NON-APPAREL DEVELOPMENT

INTENSIFY NON-APPAREL DEVELOPMENT

Intensify focus on, and invest in, non-apparel categories.

At 25% of revenue, Burberry’s non-apparel business has substantial room for growth. In several
product categories – some of which are growing explosively – our presence is small relative to the
total market. Non-apparel offers opportunity to leverage further Burberry’s unique positioning and
brand: in handbags, small leather goods and shoes. The Group is intensifying its focus on these
categories through investment in product development, people, marketing and supply chain.

These principles were applied to the launch of The Burberry Icons Collection in conjunction with 
our 150th anniversary celebration in September 2006. The design team concentrated on the luxe
segment of the market, creating a limited-edition handbag group featuring authentic Burberry icons
(quilting, D-rings and signature script) from the Group’s archives. To support the introduction,
a dedicated marketing programme was structured, providing a more consistent, synchronised
message across the many consumer touch points, including fashion show, print and stores –
from runway to reality.

Intensified efforts in non-apparel extend equally to licensed categories. For example, Spring 2007
saw the launch of Burberry’s first eyewear collection under a new agreement with Luxottica,
the world’s leading premium eyewear developer and distributor. While executed by our partner,
Burberry is integrally involved in product design, as well as marketing and distribution strategy. 
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ACCELERATE RETAIL-LED GROWTH
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ACCELERATE RETAIL-LED GROWTH

ACCELERATE RETAIL-LED GROWTH

Retail-led growth refers not only to the operation of Burberry’s own stores, but also to a fundamental
shift in the Group’s operating culture.

Culturally, Burberry is moving from the relatively static wholesale structure of its origins to a more
contemporary, dynamic, retail mindset – as evidenced in recent initiatives:

– A new design cycle that ensures a more frequent flow of fresh merchandise to stores
– Implementation of a basic replenishment programme
– A marketing programme synchronised with in-store presentation capsules

By creating a more responsive operation, this paradigm shift benefits wholesale customers as well.

Looking to the stores, we are focusing on:

– Enhancing store productivity: Through enhanced aesthetic cohesion across product groups,
improved in-store service and a more targeted marketing strategy, we look to drive traffic,
increase customer conversion and build average transaction size.

– Accelerating our new store opening programme: This includes franchise opportunities.
– Developing new store concepts: With the opening of a Prague store in March 2007 we 

are testing a new, smaller format with an assortment led by accessories and outerwear.
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INVEST IN UNDER-PENETRATED MARKETS
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INVEST IN UNDER-PENETRATED MARKETS

INVEST IN UNDER-PENETRATED MARKETS

Concentrate resources in under-penetrated markets, utilising Burberry’s three distribution channels
(retail, wholesale and licensing) to address the opportunity.

For Burberry, under-penetrated markets exist in both developed and newly emerging economies.

North America is today a £200m market for the Group. With only 39 Burberry stores, North America
presents significant opportunity to expand this base. At the same time, the importance of large,
high-end department stores in this market indicates substantial capacity for future growth of our
wholesale channel.

Emerging consumer economies, including China, Eastern Europe, Russia and the Middle East,
offer rapid growth, potentially with significant scale. In many of these markets, Burberry develops 
its business through franchise structures which operate retail stores – a retail/wholesale hybrid
model. The future in these markets will be addressed both through direct retailing and franchise
structures.

Under-penetrated markets also refers to geographies in which specific segments or product
categories of our business are underdeveloped – even within a large Burberry market.
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PURSUE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
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PURSUE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

PURSUE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Burberry’s goal is to be recognised as much for its operational expertise as for its product 
and marketing excellence.

Project Atlas – a five year, £50m programme to redesign Burberry’s business processes 
and systems – is the key enabler as the Group seeks to operate more efficiently and effectively.
Having successfully completed its second preparatory year, the project moves to full scale
deployment in 2007/08. This investment will benefit every aspect of our business from product
development, to supply chain, to wholesale customers, to stores, to financial reporting.

While Atlas operates on a Group-wide level, Burberry continues to enhance excellence within
individual functions:

– In design, style reduction to improve retail presentation, order fulfilment and sourcing economics
– In supply chain, ongoing effort to improve the basic replenishment programme (introduced in

Autumn 2006)
– In sourcing, reducing internal complexity through more sophisticated relationships with suppliers

and a more streamlined structure
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover £m

2006/07

850.3

2005/06

742.9

2004/05

715.5

Adjusted EBIT(1) £m

2006/07

185.1

2005/06

165.6

2004/05

161.3

Adjusted EBIT Margin(1) %

2006/07

21.8

2005/06

22.3

2004/05

22.5

– Total revenue increased 15% on an underlying(2)

basis to £850.3m
- Retail revenue increased 24% underlying, 

on a 12% comparable store gain 
- Wholesale revenue increased 8% underlying 
- Licensing revenue increased 10% underlying 

– Adjusted EBIT increased 12% to £185.1m 
- A 17% increase at constant exchange rates

– Adjusted retail/wholesale EBIT margin of 14.6% 
vs 14.5% in prior period
- Total adjusted EBIT margin of 21.8% vs 22.3% 

in prior period 
- Movement reflects reduced licensing share 

of revenue 

– Adjusted diluted EPS increased 21% to 29.1p
– Sharp acceleration in revenue, adjusted EBIT 

and EPS growth relative to prior year
– Continued strong free cash flow with £85m

generated in the year
– Final dividend of 7.625p per ordinary share proposed

- 10.5p for full year, a 31% increase
– Bought 12.3m shares at cost of £62m during the

year as part of ongoing repurchase programme

(1) “Adjusted” refers to profitability measures calculated before Atlas and plant closure costs:
– Atlas costs of £21.6m (2006: £11.1m) relate to the Group’s infrastructure redesign initiative announced in May 2005
– Plant closure costs of £6.5m relate to the closure of the Treorchymanufacturing facility in March 2007

(2) Underlying figures exclude the financial effect of the Taiwan acquisition and the portion of Burberry’s business in Spain affected by the retail conversion, in both
reporting periods. In addition, underlying figures are calculated at the same exchange rates used in the 2005/06 year’s reported results for the period. Burberry
completed the acquisition of the operations and assets of its distributors in Taiwan in August 2005 (the “Taiwan acquisition”) and initiated actions related to the retail
conversion in Spain during the third quarter of 2005/06.
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

John Peace
Chairman
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

C HAIRMAN' S LETTER

Burberry’s 150th year has been outstanding for both
the business and the brand.

Looking at financial results, the Group generated total revenue 
of £850m, representing 15% underlying growth and a sharp
increase from the previous financial year. Adjusted diluted EPS
increased 21% to 29.1p. Burberry maintained its excellent return
on capital, at 34% for the year. Cash flow remained strong, with
the Group generating £85m of free cash flow. In line with this, 
the Board has proposed a 31% increase in the full year dividend
to 10.5p. In addition, the Group repurchased £62m of its own
shares during the year.

Accomplishments across the business underlie these financial
results: outerwear innovation, a dynamic marketing campaign,
increased store productivity, the accelerated pace of retail
expansion – Burberry reached an historic milestone during
the year, with retail becoming the largest distribution channel.
These accomplishments, all the more impressive in the context
of so much change, are discussed in the report that follows.

While achieving these results, we also planned for Burberry’s
future. As part of enhancing the luxury quotient of our brand,
we invested in collection development, the talent behind it, and
marketing to support it. Accelerating retail expansion required
an increase in upfront expenses and capital commitments
relative to previous years. Building the operational capabilities
of the business has also been a priority – this year’s investment
toward an integrated global supply chain is one example. Project
Atlas, Burberry’s five year programme to redesign its business
processes and systems, continued in its second year. Although
these initiatives have required significant investment in expense
and capital today, we are confident of their returns in the future.

The year was also marked by important Board changes. 
Angela Ahrendts assumed the role of Chief Executive Officer
on 1 July 2006, following a six month transition period with 
Rose Marie Bravo, her predecessor, who became Vice-Chairman.
The smooth transition of responsibilities has contributed to the
year’s successful outcome. Other Board changes included 
the departure of Guy Peyrelongue in March 2007. Guy had
been a non-executive director since Burberry’s IPO in July 2002
and I thank him on behalf of the Board for his contribution to the
Group’s success over the past five years. I also extend a warm
welcome to Ian Carter, who became a non-executive director
in April 2007. Ian is Executive Vice President of Hilton Hotels
Corporation and Chief Executive Officer of Hilton International Co.

As I meet with the many parts of Burberry’s business across
the globe, I see the excitement, determination and dedication
of its people with respect to this iconic brand. On behalf of
shareholders, I thank the team for their efforts during the year
and congratulate them on these achievements. Looking forward,
Burberry clearly has the brand, strategy and team for continued
success in this vibrant luxury goods market.

John Peace
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S LETTER

Angela Ahrendts 
Chief Executive Officer
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S LETTER

C HIEF EXECUTIVE' S LETTER

I am pleased to report that 2006/07, our 150th anniversary, was
outstanding for Burberry. The year saw us proudly celebrating our
past, intensely focussed on driving the present, while thoughtfully
planning for the future.

It began with completion of my six month transition phase with
then Chief Executive, Rose Marie Bravo. This period allowed
me the time to appreciate fully the power of the Burberry brand,
our solid platform upon which to build and the unique cultural
attributes which we will continue to honour. I also had the
opportunity to spend time with our key partners, suppliers and
customers, as well as to begin working with Burberry’s seasoned
management team. I thank Rose Marie for guiding my education
in the complexities and nuances of this special business, and for
her confidence in the process. Her partnership was invaluable
on many levels. John Peace, Burberry’s Chairman, similarly
played an integral role during this period. I expect management
and shareholders to continue to benefit greatly from his acumen
and insights.

Over the course of the summer and early autumn, our senior
executives completed a major strategic review of the business.
During this process, we more precisely defined our opportunities
and refined our strategy, distilling five strategic themes to direct
Burberry’s future growth.

We also began implementing these strategies, with some early
success. This included initiation of a fundamental transformation
of our culture from its historical wholesale origins to a more
responsive and dynamic retail orientation. As part of this,
we created a new design calendar to enable monthly product
flows to our stores, and implemented a basic replenishment
programme to excellent results. Product development focused
on the runway and luxury components of our offering. We
accelerated store expansion while initiating new in-store
procedures to increase productivity. We also began a review
of the back-end of our business and developed a strategy for
our first fully integrated supply chain. These initial successes
were accomplished by a strong group of senior executives
working as an integrated team with our valued employees
worldwide, and I thank them for warmly welcoming me to this
exciting enterprise. Their passion, dedication and commitment
have been most inspiring.

I also want to give special thanks to Christopher Bailey,
Burberry’s Creative Director, for his amazing contribution.
Christopher leads the creative side of the business with
consummate skill as we continue to build the luxury dimensions
of our brand, while refining and innovating our casual base.
He received many accolades and awards this year, including
the prestigious US GQ Designer of the Year award. Christopher
is not only a brilliant Creative Director for Burberry, but a great
partner as we reshape the brand to capitalise further on
its opportunities.

Looking beyond the scope of Burberry’s commercial activities, 
we also finalised plans to create the first Burberry Foundation 
– a charitable foundation that will be the primary vehicle through
which the Group contributes above its usual activities to the
communities in which we live and work. The Foundation is
designed to be a focal point around which we can further unite 
in support of important causes.

Looking ahead to 2007/08, we recognise that along with
the many opportunities, the year will offer some challenges.
Burberry is moving into the most extensive phase of Project Atlas
implementation, while continuing to evolve and accelerate growth
of the business. We have planned this deployment in meticulous
detail, but the very nature of the project involves a degree of
uncertainty. Key aspects of our supply chain integration will
also continue to be implemented.

We face the coming year with confidence given the strength of
our brand, relevance of our strategies, talent of our teams around
the world and a favourable outlook for the luxury sector. Together
we are committed to writing another exciting chapter – Chapter
151 – for this iconic British brand.

Thank you,

Angela Ahrendts
Chief Executive Officer
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BUSINESS REVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

Business review
Burberry’s 150th year was marked by outstanding performance:
a balance of strong financial results, important strategic advances
and significant investment for the future. The Group generated
total revenue of £850.3m, representing 15% underlying(1) growth
and a sharp acceleration from 3% in the previous financial year.
Growth in operating profit before Project Atlas and plant closure
costs (“Adjusted EBIT”)(2) accelerated to 12%, for a total of
£185.1m. Adjusted diluted EPS(2) increased 21% to 29.1p.
During the year, the Group completed a major strategic review
of the business, more precisely identifying its opportunities and
refining its strategy, as represented by these five strategic
themes:

– Leverage the franchise
– Intensify non-apparel development
– Accelerate retail-led growth
– Invest in under-penetrated markets
– Pursue operational excellence

In line with these themes, Burberry initiated incremental
investment across the business to drive future performance.
This investment was primarily directed toward enhancing the
luxury component of the brand, advancing retail expansion,
evolving to a more retail-oriented operating model and improving
operational capabilities. These themes of strategic evolution and
investment are reflected in the review of Burberry’s 2006/07
results set forth below.

Regions
All regions demonstrated progress in the year, with growth
accelerating in the second half.

– Europe (excluding Spain)
Sales performance was generally strong for the year. Excellent
retail gains combined with wholesale strength to produce
20% underlying growth in the region. Sustained demand
across a majority of markets, particularly Italy, Germany and
Greece, drove strong wholesale performance. Retail sales
were robust across the region with leading comparable
store sales increases for the Group. These gains were
complemented by contributions from new space additions.
Retail strength also drove double digit gains in the UK market.
During the year, Burberry opened stores in Manchester (UK),
Prague (Czech Republic) and Vienna (Austria) and five
concessions and an outlet in the region.

– North America
Strong performance across both the retail and wholesale
channels produced 18% underlying revenue growth. Ongoing
efforts with key accounts and the attractive Spring/Summer
collection drove second half wholesale gains, and a strong
performance for the year. In retail, sales growth was balanced
between gains at existing stores and contributions from new
space. In line with the strategy to accelerate expansion in
under-penetrated markets, the Group opened five stores
and two outlets in North America during the year. New stores
included Atlantic City (New Jersey), Bergen County (New
Jersey), Kansas City (Missouri), North Los Angeles (California)
and Northbrook (Illinois).

Retail and wholesale revenue by geographical market (destination)
Reported % change Revenue Mix %

2006/07 2005/06 Reported Underlying(1) 2006/07 2005/06
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Europe (excluding Spain) 229.8 191.5 20% 20% 27% 26%
North America 196.5 177.9 11% 18% 23% 24%
Asia Pacific 167.5 144.6 16% 18% 20% 19%
Spain 151.8 134.1 13% 2% 18% 18%
Rest of World 18.6 13.7 36% 36% 2% 2%

Total 764.2 661.8 16% 16% 90% 89%
Licensing 86.1 81.1 6% 10% 10% 11%

Total 850.3 742.9 14% 15% 100% 100%

(1) Underlying figures exclude the financial effect of the Taiwan acquisition and the portion of Burberry’s business in Spain affected by the retail conversion, in both
reporting periods. In addition, underlying figures are calculated at the same exchange rates used in the 2005/06 year’s reported results for the period. Burberry
completed the acquisition of the operations and assets of its distributors in Taiwan in August 2005 (the “Taiwan acquisition”) and initiated actions related to the retail
conversion in Spain during the third quarter of 2005/06.

(2) “Adjusted” refers to profitability measures calculated before Atlas and plant closure costs:
– Atlas costs of £21.6m (2006: £11.1m) relate to the Group’s infrastructure redesign initiative announced in May 2005
– Plant closure costs of £6.5m relate to the closure of the Treorchy manufacturing facility in March 2007
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BUSINESS REVIEW

– Asia Pacific
Double digit gains in both the retail and wholesale channels
drove an 18% increase in Asia Pacific revenue for the year.
Wholesale gains were led by demand from travel retail
customers and initial sales of global products into the
Japanese market. Retail performance was generally strong
throughout the region with overall growth balanced between
existing and new space. Stores in Hong Kong and other
Southeast Asia markets achieved particularly strong gains.
The Taiwan acquisition added to the reported increase.
During the period, the Group opened a store in Sydney
(Australia) and three concessions in Korea and Japan.

– Spain
Spain achieved a 2% underlying revenue gain for the year.
The underlying decline in wholesale revenue, primarily driven
by reduced orders in the speciality store channel, partially
offset underlying retail strength. Led by new space additions,
retail performance was complemented by excellent gains
at existing stores and concessions. Completing their first
full year of operation, the womenswear concessions
demonstrated notable progress. As part of the objective to
enhance brand positioning in this market, Burberry opened
stores in Madrid and Seville. The Group also opened five
concessions during the period. In addition, 24 childrenswear
shop-in-shops were converted to the concession format late
in the year.

– Rest of World
RoW revenues largely represent sales to emerging markets,
including the Middle East, Eastern Europe, Russia and South
America. Wholesale sales to these areas increased 36%
underlying in the year, largely on increased sales to existing
customers. These customers sell Burberry products primarily
through franchised stores. The stores achieved excellent
performance during the year. In conjunction with these
franchise partners, the Group opened stores in Istanbul
(Turkey), Kiev (Ukraine) and Mexico City (Mexico).

– Japan licensing
Japan licences accounted for approximately 64% of
Burberry’s licensing revenue for the financial year. Led by
apparel, ongoing licences produced a good gain in the
period. This was partially offset by the effect of licence
terminations, as part of Burberry’s ongoing initiative to adjust
the product mix in this market. The net result was a modest
underlying increase in Japan licensing revenue.

Channels
Revenue performance across Burberry’s three channels of
distribution was generally strong for the year, with each channel
responding to the Group’s renewed strategic emphases.

– Retail
Retail sales increased 24% underlying, 29% reported.
Comparable store sales increased 12%, with all regions
achieving double digit gains. Benefiting from new luxury
products, an effective marketing campaign, enhanced
product flow and basic replenishment, Burberry experienced
increases in store traffic and average selling prices. Underlying
average retail selling space increased approximately 13%.
The Taiwan acquisition and Spain retail conversion contributed
ten percentage points to the reported gain. Currency
movements reduced the reported gain by five percentage
points. The Group opened 12 stores, one replacement
store, a net 13 concessions and three outlets, reflecting
a substantial increase in new space activity relative to the
previous year.

As a result, retail represented 48% of total revenue for the
year and is now Burberry’s largest distribution channel – an
important strategic milestone in keeping with the Group’s
emphasis on retail-led growth. This channel shift has
fundamental implications for the Group’s margin structure,
leading to increases in both gross margin and expense ratio.

Revenue by channel of distribution
Reported % change Revenue Mix %

2006/07 2005/06 Reported Underlying(1) 2006/07 2005/06
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Retail 410.1 318.5 29% 24% 48% 43%
Wholesale 354.1 343.3 3% 8% 42% 46%
Licensing 86.1 81.1 6% 10% 10% 11%

Total 850.3 742.9 14% 15% 100% 100%
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

CONTINUED

– Wholesale
Gaining momentum throughout the year, wholesale sales
increased 8% underlying, 3% reported. With the exception of
Spain, all regions achieved double digit underlying increases.
Sales gains, primarily in the second half, were boosted by
initial success of the basic replenishment programme and
incremental orders associated with the new market calendar.
On a reported basis, this increase was reduced by three
percentage points due to the Spain retail conversion and
Taiwan acquisition, and a further two percentage points by
currency movements.

– Licensing
Strong growth in product licence revenue (approximately 36%
of licensing revenue) coupled with the modest underlying
increase in Japan licensing revenue produced a 10%
underlying increase in total licensing revenue for the year.
Among product licences, fragrances led gains, benefiting
from the major launches of Burberry London for women and
men in 2006 and introduction of the new Burberry Summer
scent in Spring 2007. Watches also performed well in the
period, driven by both core and fashion styles. The first
collection under Burberry’s new global eyewear agreement
launched during the second half. Supported by an extensive
marketing campaign and a plan for distribution in 15,000
doors worldwide, eyewear contributed to product licence
revenue growth. Currency movements reduced total
underlying licensing revenue growth by four percentage
points, resulting in a 6% reported gain.

Products
Burberry’s evolution from its historical wholesale origins to
a more dynamic, retail-oriented operating culture had important
implications for product design and merchandising during the
year. Considering in-store environments, the Group seeks to
enhance the aesthetic cohesion across product categories
generally, and maximise the visual impact of each individual
capsule presentation specifically. Toward this goal, Burberry
centralised its design process in London, largely eliminating
regional design centres, and physically integrated the category-
specific design teams, to create a single, integrated design
function. As part of enhancing the clarity of in-store presentations,
product teams reduced significantly the number of styles
developed within each collection. The product design cycle
was revamped to increase the number of collections created,
allowing new merchandise to be offered in stores monthly.
These design and merchandising initiatives have been enabled
by increased investment in product development and design
and merchandising talent.

– Runway
Burberry’s runway collection enjoyed outstanding results in
the year. The Spring and Autumn collections continued to
be among the most critically acclaimed and followed in Milan.
Commercially, in keeping with Burberry’s strategy to enhance
the luxury and high-fashion elements of its business, sales of
runway apparel collections approximately doubled for these
two seasons. The addition of a women’s Spring/Summer
2007 pre-collection in order to enhance new product flow
contributed to this success. This pre-collection strategy
continues with future seasons. Integration of design teams
has stimulated incorporation of runway design innovation
across all collections.

Revenue by product category
Reported % change Revenue Mix %

2006/07 2005/06 Reported Underlying(1) 2006/07 2005/06
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Womenswear 305.5 249.3 23% 19% 36% 34%
Menswear 227.0 206.2 10% 13% 27% 28%
Accessories 211.2 189.2 12% 15% 25% 25%
Other 20.5 17.1 20% 21% 2% 2%
Licensing 86.1 81.1 6% 10% 10% 11%

Total 850.3 742.9 14% 15% 100% 100%
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– Womenswear
Led by key strategic categories, womenswear produced
an excellent performance. Outstanding outerwear sales,
benefiting from product innovation, seasonless styles and
balanced assortments, were a consistent feature throughout
the year. Within outerwear, rainwear was a particular highlight.
Strength in women’s runway apparel also contributed to the
category’s growth. During the year, the Group made good
progress in its objective to increase the sartorial/tailored
segment of the product mix, while evolving its core
casual offering.

– Menswear
Key womenswear trends were mirrored in menswear.
Reflecting similar product development emphases, outerwear
was a key driver of menswear revenue. Runway apparel
performed well throughout the year. Strength in selected
casual apparel categories also contributed to menswear’s
growth. As part of the Group’s efforts to integrate further its
operations, the International and Spain menswear divisions
jointly developed a global outerwear offering.

– Accessories
The Group intensified non-apparel development. Driven
by product design and development efforts to enhance
innovation and elevate assortments, luxury handbag sales
gained momentum throughout the year – accounting for an
increasing percentage of the accessory mix. Successfully
broadening distribution of these products within Burberry’s
store network also demonstrated their relevance to a wider
consumer base. An exclusive range of handbags designed
in celebration of Burberry’s 150th anniversary – the Burberry
Icons Collection – was a highlight of the year. In the Group’s
core scarf category, new designs were an important factor
underpinning strong performance. Good progress in the small
leathergoods, belt and shoe categories was also achieved
in the year.

– Marketing
New product initiatives and the increasing retail orientation
of the business are inducing a realignment of marketing
strategies. In keeping with efforts to enhance the brand’s
consistency across consumer touch points, all Burberry visual
imagery is now derived from a single source – whether print
advertisement, catalogue or in-store display. The seasonal
image campaign is also segmented to emphasise the primary
sectors and groups within the product line. The programme’s
various elements are synchronised to appear with the flow of
related products to stores. The Group is also reallocating
marketing investment with a greater emphasis on direct,
digital and event strategies.

Operations
Enhancing operating efficiency and effectiveness is a primary
objective for the Group.

– Project Atlas
Project Atlas, the cornerstone of Burberry’s efforts to improve
operational efficiency, completed its second year. During
the period, key systems deployments were implemented as
scheduled, with minor alterations to originally planned phasing
to better accommodate changes in Burberry’s business.
Completed SAP deployments include UK-based financial and
non-stock procurement, production planning, manufacturing
and procurement. During the second half the Group also
initiated a tactical software solution providing improved
visibility of retail sales and inventory. The approximately £6m
of benefits associated with Project Atlas during the year were
derived from reduced procurement and sourcing costs and
replenishment-related gains. Expenses incurred in 2006/07
totalled £21.6m. During the next six months, Atlas enters its
most intensive stage with major SAP deployments in the
Group’s core product development operations and key
geographical units.

– Supply chain
Important supply chain initiatives during the year included:
– Burberry appointed its first head of global supply chain,

developed a strategy for implementing a single, integrated
structure across the business and began the process of
building the required organisation.

– To improve sourcing efficiency, the Group took initial steps
to rationalise its supplier base and move toward a more
vertical sourcing structure.

– The Group completed the closure of a manufacturing facility
in March 2007. This resulted in a £6.5m charge in the
2006/07 financial year to cover redundancy payments and
outplacement and training services for affected employees,
a community contribution and asset write-offs. Expense
savings associated with elimination of manufacturing losses
are expected to be approximately £1.5m annually.

– Global headquarters
In December 2006, Burberry entered into a lease for a new
global headquarters. Located in central London (Westminster),
the site will allow the Group to consolidate its operations,
including design, showrooms, merchandising, marketing,
supply chain, finance and executive and administrative
functions, within a single facility. These functions are currently
divided among five locations in London. The relocation is
expected to take place in late 2008.
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Financial summary
– Revenue increased 15% on an underlying basis (14% reported)

to £850.3m for the year.
– Gross margin improved from 60.0% to 61.3% as a result of

the increase in the retail channel’s share of revenue, reduced
markdowns, favourable product mix and sourcing gains.
This increase was partially offset by increased product
development costs and fulfilment expenses during this period
of accelerated growth, as well as the licensing channel’s
reduced share of revenue.

– The channel shift in favour of retail was also an important
contributor to the increase in the adjusted expense ratio
(before Atlas and plant closure costs) from 37.8% to 39.5%.
Additional factors underlying this increase include expenses
associated with accelerated retail expansion and investment
in people relating to product and supply chain initiatives. This
increase was partially offset by initial Atlas expense benefits.

– The Group maintained its adjusted retail/wholesale EBIT
margin at 14.6% in 2006/07 relative to 14.5% in 2005/06.
Total adjusted EBIT margin was 21.8% relative to 22.3% in
the previous period. This decrease was driven by licensing’s
reduced share of revenue.

– Adjusted EBIT increased to £185.1m, a 12% gain. Excluding
the effect of currency movements (an approximate £8.4m
translation-related reduction), adjusted EBIT increased 17%.

– Burberry’s effective tax rate declined from 32.2% to 29.5%.
This decline resulted from an approximate 1% ongoing
decrease driven by the changing regional mix of the 
Group’s business, coupled with an approximate 1.5% 
one-time reduction relating to the settlement of certain 
transfer pricing arrangements.

– Adjusted diluted EPS increased 21% to 29.1p.
– Including Atlas and plant closure costs, operating profit was

£157.0m with diluted EPS of 24.7p.
– Full year capital expenditure totalled £38.8m.
– The Group generated £84.8m of free cash in the year
– The directors have proposed a 39% increase in the final

dividend to 7.625p which would result in a full year dividend
of 10.5p, a 31% increase.

– In the year, the Group repurchased 12.3m shares (2.7% of
shares outstanding at 31 March 2006) at a total expenditure
of £62.2m.

2007/08 outlook
Burberry’s current outlook for the 2007/08 financial year includes
the following features:

– Retail
Burberry plans an approximate 13% increase in average
retail selling space. The majority of space expansion will
be concentrated in the US and European markets.

– Wholesale
Based upon orders received to date, first half wholesale sales
are expected to achieve a mid-teens percentage underlying
gain relative to the comparative period.

– Licensing
The Group anticipates broadly flat underlying licensing
revenue relative to 2006/07:
– Licences in Japan are expected to produce a moderate

underlying revenue gain for the year primarily as a result
of continued apparel growth.

– Growth in selected product licence categories is expected
to be offset by decreases at others, reflecting product
cycles and channel transitions.

– On a reported basis, Yen-related exchange rate movements
will reduce licensing revenue in excess of £6m.

– Project Atlas
In keeping with alterations to systems implementation 
phasing required by changes in the business, Atlas 
expenses are budgeted at approximately £15m for the
financial year. In line with previous statements, Burberry
expects P&L benefits associated with Project Atlas of
approximately £20m in the period.

– Tax rate
The Group anticipates an effective tax rate of approximately
31%.

– Capital expenditures
Capital expenditures are budgeted at approximately £60m.
The majority of investment is directed to retail operations,
including planned renovation of approximately 20 high
visibility stores.
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Burberry Group turnover is composed of revenue from three
channels of distribution: retail, wholesale and licensing operations.
Retail revenue is generated primarily from the sale of women’s
and men’s apparel and accessories through the Group’s directly
operated store network. Wholesale revenue arises from the sale
of these products to wholesale customers worldwide, principally
leading and prestige department and speciality retailers and
franchisees. Licence revenue consists of royalties receivable
from Japanese and product licensees. At 31 March 2007, the
Group operated 292 retail locations (2005/06: 260) consisting
of 77 Burberry stores (2005/06: 66), 182 concessions
(2005/06: 164) and 33 outlet stores (2005/06: 30).

Turnover
Total turnover advanced to £850.3m from £742.9m in the
prior period, representing an increase of 14%, or 15% on an
underlying basis. In determining “underlying” performance,
results are adjusted to exclude the financial effects of the Taiwan
acquisition, the portion of Burberry’s business in Spain affected
by the retail conversion and the impact of currency exchange
rate differences between periods. The Taiwan acquisition and
Spain retail conversion shift sales from Burberry’s wholesale
channel to its retail channel. The financial effects of the relevant
businesses are excluded from both reporting periods.

Operating profit
Gross profit as a percentage of turnover was 61.3% in 2006/07
relative to 60.0% in the prior year. The increase was driven by
the increase in the retail channel’s share of revenue, reduced
markdowns, favourable product mix and sourcing gains. This
gain was partially offset by increased product development and
fulfilment expenses during this period of accelerated growth,
as well as the licensing channel’s reduced share of revenue.

Adjusted net operating expenses (before Atlas and plant closure
costs) as a percentage of turnover increased to 39.5% from
37.8% in the previous period. This increase in the adjusted
expense ratio reflected the change in Burberry’s cost structure
with the revenue shift to the retail channel. Additional factors
driving the rise include expenses associated with accelerated
retail expansion and investment in people relating to product and
supply chain initiatives. This increase was partially offset by initial
Atlas expense benefits.

As a result of the elements above, adjusted EBIT increased
12% to £185.1m, or 21.8% of turnover relative to 22.3% in the
previous year. Excluding the impact of exchange rate movements
adjusted EBIT rose 17%. Exchange rate differences relative to
the previous period reduced reported operating profit by £8.4m.

Expenses associated with Project Atlas totalled £21.6m (2006:
£11.1m) and the plant closure resulted in a £6.5m charge.
Reported operating profit was £157.0m for the year.

Financial review

Group results
2007 2006

Percentage Percentage
Year to 31 March £m of turnover £m of turnover

Turnover
Retail 410.1 48.2% 318.5 42.9%
Wholesale 354.1 41.7% 343.3 46.2%
Licensing 86.1 10.1% 81.1 10.9%

Total turnover 850.3 100.0% 742.9 100.0%
Cost of sales (329.0) (38.7%) (296.8) (40.0%)

Gross profit 521.3 61.3% 446.1 60.0%
Adjusted operating expenses (336.2) (39.5%) (280.5) (37.8%)

Adjusted EBIT 185.1 21.8% 165.6 22.3%
Atlas costs (21.6) (2.5%) (11.1) (1.5%)
Plant closure costs (6.5) (0.8%) – –

Operating profit 157.0 18.4% 154.5 20.8%
Net finance (expense)/income (0.7) – 2.5 0.3%

Profit before taxation 156.3 18.4% 157.0 21.1%
Taxation (46.1) (5.4%) (50.6) (6.8%)

Attributable profit for the year 110.2 13.0% 106.4 14.3%

Adjusted diluted EPS 29.1p – 24.1p –
Diluted EPS 24.7p – 22.3p –

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares (millions) 446.1 – 477.6 –
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The table below sets out the principal components of cash flow for the year to 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006 and net funds
at period end:

2007 2006
Year to 31 March £m £m

Adjusted EBIT 185.1 165.6
Atlas & plant closure costs (28.1) (11.1)

Operating profit 157.0 154.5
Depreciation and related charges 26.7 24.9
Loss/(Profit) on disposal of fixed assets 1.1 (1.6)
Charges in respect of employee share incentive schemes 10.8 7.4
Increase in stocks (33.4) (17.8)
(Increase)/Decrease in debtors (33.8) 2.2
Increase/(Decrease) in creditors 32.8 (21.2)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 161.2 148.4
Net interest (paid)/received (1.6) 1.6
Taxation paid (45.8) (43.6)
Capital expenditures and acquisition related payments (35.7) (50.7)
Sale of shares by ESOPs 6.1 2.4
Issue of ordinary share capital 0.6 3.7

Free cash flow 84.8 61.8
Share repurchases (62.2) (191.6)
Equity dividends paid (36.5) (32.8)

Movement in net funds resulting from cash flows (13.9) (162.6)

Exchange rate (loss)/gain (1.4) 5.2

Movement in net funds (15.3) (157.4)

Net funds at end of period (2.8) 12.5
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Net finance income
Net interest expense was £0.7m in the year to March 2007,
compared to net interest income of £2.5m in the prior period,
reflecting the change in the Group’s capitalisation. In the prior
year period, the Group maintained a cash balance in advance
of completing in March 2006 its £250m share repurchase plan.
Burberry continued to repurchase shares during the year.

Profit before taxation
Burberry reported adjusted profit before taxation of £184.4m
in the year to March 2007 compared to £168.1m in the prior
period. Including Atlas and plant closure costs, profit before
taxation was £156.3m in the current period.

Attributable profit
Burberry recorded a 29.5% effective tax rate (2005/06: 32.2%)
on profit, resulting in a £46.1m tax charge, and reported
attributable profit of £110.2m for the year to March 2007
compared to £106.4m reported in the prior period. The decline
in Burberry’s effective tax rate resulted from an approximate 1%
ongoing decrease driven by the changing regional mix of the
Group’s business, coupled with an approximate 1.5% one-time
reduction relating to the settlement of certain transfer pricing
arrangements.

Adjusted diluted earnings per share increased 21% to 29.1p
compared to 24.1p in the prior period. Including Atlas and plant
closure costs, the Group reported diluted earnings per share of
24.7p. In the year to March 2007, the diluted weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue was 446.1m (2005/06:
477.6m).

Cash flow and net funds
Historically, Burberry’s principal uses of funds have been to
support capital expenditures and working capital growth in
connection with the expansion of its business, acquisitions,
share repurchases and dividends. Principal sources of funds
have been cash flow from operations and borrowings under
its credit facilities. Burberry expects to finance the expansion
of its business, capital expenditures, including strategic
infrastructure investments, share repurchases and shareholder
dividends with cash generated from operating activities and
the use of credit facilities.

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £161.2m compared
to £148.4m in the prior period. Stock levels increased £33.4m
as a result of growth in the business, the expanded retail network
and the replenishment programme. The £33.8m increase in
debtors and £32.8m increase in creditors are in line with growth
of the business.

Capital expenditures and acquisition related payments
included net purchases of fixed assets of £34.3m relating
primarily to continued investment in the Group’s retail
operations and infrastructure.

In line with its risk management policy, Burberry has continued
to hedge principal foreign currency transaction exposures arising
in respect of Yen denominated royalty income and Euro
denominated product purchases and sales.

In connection with share incentive awards, the Group sold
£6.1m (2005/06: £2.4m) of equity from its Employee Share
Ownership Trust and received £0.6m (2005/06: £3.7m) from
the issue of new shares following the exercise of share options.

In the year to March 2007 the Group repurchased 12.3m shares
at a total expenditure of £62.2m.

The Group paid an interim dividend of 2.875p per share (2005:
2.5p) on 1 February 2007. A final dividend of 7.625p per share
is proposed, payable August 2007. As proposed, the total
dividend for 2006/07 would increase 31% to 10.5p per share
(£45.6m aggregate amount).

At 31 March 2007, 437.8m ordinary shares were outstanding
(446.7m at 31 March 2006).
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01 John Peace (58)†‡

Chairman

John Peace has been Chairman of Burberry since June
2002 and is Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He was
appointed Group Chief Executive of GUS plc in January 2000
and following the demerger of GUS plc to form Experian Group
Limited and Home Retail Group plc at the end of 2006, he
became Chairman of the Board of Experian. John Peace will
join the Board of Standard Chartered plc as Deputy Chairman
and Senior Independent Director with effect from 1 August 2007. 
He is also the Chairman of the Board of Governors of Nottingham
Trent University.

02 Rose Marie Bravo (56)†

Vice-Chairman

Rose Marie Bravo was appointed Vice-Chairman of Burberry
on 1 July 2006 after serving as Chief Executive since 1997. Prior
to this, she served as President of Saks Fifth Avenue from 1992
to 1997, and as a member of the Board of Saks Holding Inc.
From 1974 to 1992, she held various positions at RH Macy &
Co, culminating with her 1987 to 1992 tenure as Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the I Magnin Speciality Division. Rose
Marie Bravo is a non-executive director of Tiffany & Co. and The
Estée Lauder Companies Inc.

Executive directors

03 Angela Ahrendts (46)†

Chief Executive Officer

Angela Ahrendts became Chief Executive Officer of Burberry 
on 1 July 2006, having served as an executive director since
January 2006. Prior to her appointment, Angela held various
senior positions at Liz Claiborne Inc from 1998, most recently as
Executive Vice President. She was also Executive Vice President
of Henri Bendel from 1996 to 1998 and President of Donna
Karan International from 1989 to 1996.

04 Stacey Cartwright (43)
Chief Financial Officer

Stacey Cartwright was appointed Chief Financial Officer of
Burberry on 1 March 2004. She had previously been Chief
Financial Officer at Egg plc between 1999 and 2003, and from
1988 to 1999 she held various finance-related positions at
Granada Group plc.

Non–executive directors

05 Philip Bowman (54)*†‡

Non-executive director

Philip Bowman joined the Board in June 2002 and is the Senior
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
He was Chief Executive of Scottish Power plc until its acquisition
by Iberdrola SA at the end of April 2007 and is a non-executive
director of Scottish & Newcastle plc and Berry Bros & Rudd
Limited as well as a member of the Advisory Board of Alchemy
Partners. He previously served as Chief Executive of Allied
Domecq plc between 1999 and 2005 and as an executive
director of Bass plc (now Mitchells & Butler plc and Intercontinental
Hotels Group plc) between 1990 and 1995. Philip Bowman was
non-executive Chairman of Coral Eurobet Limited from 2004 to
2005 and a non-executive director of British Sky Broadcasting
Group plc from 1994 to 2003. He also acted as Chairman
of Liberty plc from 1998 to 2000.

06 David Tyler (54)*†‡

Non-executive director

David Tyler became a non-executive director in June 2002,
having been a director since 1997. He was appointed Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee in March 2007. David was
Group Finance Director of GUS plc from 1997 until its demerger
in October 2006. He is currently a non-executive director of
Experian Group Limited and Reckitt Benckiser plc. Earlier in his
career, David worked at Unilever plc, County NatWest Limited
and Christie’s International plc.

07 Stephanie George (50)*†‡

Non-executive director

Stephanie George joined the Board in March 2006. She is
currently Executive Vice President of Time Inc., with responsibility
for the publishing divisions and overall management of People, 
In Style, Entertainment Weekly, Real Simple, Essence and the
Time Inc. Media Group. Before this, Stephanie spent 12 years
at Fairchild Publications, first as publisher of W magazine and
then as President, Women’s Wear Daily Media Worldwide.
Stephanie also sits on the Board of Lincoln Center.

08 Ian Carter (45)*†‡

Non-executive director

Ian Carter was appointed as a non-executive director on 1 April
2007. He is CEO of Hilton International Company and Executive
Vice President of Hilton Hotels Corporation, and was a director 
of Hilton Group plc until the acquisition of Hilton International by
Hilton Hotels Corporation in February 2006.

Key to membership of Committees
*Audit Committee
†Nomination Committee
‡Remuneration Committee
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The directors present their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year to 31 March 2007.

Principal activities and business review
The Group designs, sources, manufactures and distributes luxury
apparel and accessories globally through its own retail stores,
concessions and wholesale customers. Burberry also licenses third
parties to manufacture and distribute products using the “Burberry”
trademark. The Chairman’s letter on page 39, the Company
Overview and Strategy sections on pages 03 to 34 and the section
of the Business and Financial Review on pages 42 to 49 report on
the activities and results for the year and give an indication of the
Company’s future developments.

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is included on pages 58 to 60 which, when taken together
with the sections of the Annual Report referred to above, fulfil the
requirements of the Business Review and which are incorporated
into this report by reference.

Results and dividends
The attributable profit for the year is £110.2m (2006: £106.4m) 
and has been transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend of 2.875p per ordinary share was paid to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company on 1 February 2007. The
directors recommend that a final dividend of 7.625p per ordinary
share in respect of the year to 31 March 2007 be paid on 2 August
2007 to those persons on the Register of Members at the close of
business on 6 July 2007. This will make a total dividend of 10.5p per
ordinary share. The dividends paid and recommended in respect of
the year to 31 March 2007 total £45.6m.

Abacus Corporate Trustee Limited, as trustee of the Burberry Group
plc ESOP Trust (“the Trust”), has waived all dividends payable by the
Company in respect of the ordinary shares held by it as trustee of
the Trust. The dividends waived in the year to 31 March 2007 were
in aggregate £385,196 (2006: £368,628).

Directors
The names and biographical details of the directors holding office
at the date of this report are shown on page 51.

Guy Peyrelongue resigned as a director of the Company with effect
from 31 March 2007.

As Ian Carter was appointed after the Company’s Annual General
Meeting in 2006, in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association he will retire and a resolution proposing his election
will be put forward at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

John Peace will be retiring by rotation at this year’s Annual General
Meeting who, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Details of the directors’ service agreements are given in the Report
on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters on pages 65 to 73.

Directors’ interests
Interests of the directors holding office at 31 March 2007 in the
shares of the Company and its subsidiaries are shown within
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters on
page 73. There were no changes to these interests between the
period 31 March 2007 and 15 May 2007.

Corporate governance
The Company’s statement on corporate governance is set out on
pages 54 to 57.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 15 May 2007, the Company had been notified of the following
interests in the Company’s ordinary shares in accordance with the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules:

Number of % of total 
ordinary shares voting rights

Schroders Plc 36,760,709 8.33%
Legal and General Group plc 31,131,808 7.11%
JPMorgan Chase & Co 22,510,589 5.10%
BlackRock, Inc 22,055,375 5.04%
Franklin Resources Inc and affiliates 21,980,778 4.98%
FMR Corp 18,315,823 4.16%
The Capital Group of Companies, Inc 13,695,000 3.09%

Share capital
The Company issued a total of 3,347,919 ordinary shares during 
the year following the exercise of options granted under the Burberry
Senior Executive IPO Share Option Scheme and the vesting of
awards granted under the Burberry IPO Senior Executive Restricted
Share Plan.

Purchase of own shares
During the financial year, the Company repurchased and
subsequently cancelled 12,281,000 ordinary shares at an aggregate
cost of £62.2m.

In order to retain maximum flexibility, the Company proposes to
renew the authority granted by ordinary shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting in 2006, to repurchase up to just under 10% of
its issued share capital (as at 15 May 2007). Further details are
provided in the separate circular to shareholders incorporating the
Notice of this year’s Annual General Meeting.

Interests in own shares
Details of the Company’s interests in its own shares are set out
in note 22 to the financial statements.

Charitable and political donations
During the year to 31 March 2007, the Group committed £374,002
for the benefit of charitable causes (2006: £314,214), of which
£201,276 was donated during the year. The Group is intending to
focus on charitable activity more closely and increase its donations
through the establishment of a charitable trust called the Burberry
Foundation.

The Company made no political donations during the year in line 
with its policy.

In keeping with the Company’s approach in prior years, shareholder
approval is being sought at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
as a precautionary measure, for the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Burberry Limited, to make donations and/or incur
expenditure which may be construed as “political” by the wide
definition of that term included in the relevant legislation. Further
details on these resolutions can be found in the separate circular
to shareholders enclosed with this report.
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Employment policies
– Equal opportunities

The Group is committed to ensuring the consistent profitable
growth of its business and a policy of equal opportunity in
employment is integral to this commitment. The aims of the
Group’s policy are to ensure that the most capable job applicants
are recruited and the most competent employees in the Group
progress. All employees will receive fair and equal treatment
irrespective of sex, race, ethnic origin, nationality, marital status,
age, religion, disability and sexual orientation. In the situation
where an employee becomes disabled, the Group will endeavour
to assist the employee by adapting the job or by offering a transfer
to another position if appropriate.

– Health and safety
In the year to 31 March 2007, there were ten accidents in the
UK reportable under the UK RIDDOR legislation (the “Reporting
of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations
1995”). Broadly, this covers those accidents resulting in more
than three days absence from work: the RIDDOR accident rate
for our UK business was 0.30 per 100,000 hours worked
(2006: 0.26).

Further information regarding the Group’s employment policies
are provided in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report on
pages 61 to 64.

Employee involvement
– Employee communication

The Group believes that employee communication is important 
in building strong relationships with, and in motivating,
employees. The Group makes use of various methods, all of
which are implemented globally, including quarterly managers’
meetings, face-to-face briefings, open discussion forums with
senior management, regular letters from the Chief Executive
Officer to employees, direct mail, email and a corporate intranet
to ensure that matters of interest and importance are conveyed 
to employees quickly and effectively. In addition, an “Annual
Review” highlighting the Group’s performance and its ongoing
strategic initiatives is sent to all operational managers worldwide.

– Employee share ownership
The Group recognises the importance of good relationships 
with employees of all levels and runs incentive schemes and
share ownership schemes for the benefit of employees. Further
details of these schemes is set out in the Report on Directors’
Remuneration and related matters on pages 65 to 73. During
2006, the Group implemented a Save As You Earn Scheme for
eligible employees in the UK and certain overseas jurisdictions.

Further details on the Group’s approach to employee involvement
and communications are provided in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report on pages 61 to 64.

Creditor payment policy
For all trade creditors, it is policy to:

– agree and confirm the terms of payment at the commencement
of business with that supplier.

– pay in accordance with contractual and other legal obligations.
– continually review the payment procedures and liaise with

suppliers as a means of eliminating difficulties and maintaining
a good working relationship.

The Company had no trade creditors as at 31 March 2007 
(2006: £nil).

Provision of information to auditors
In accordance with The Companies (Audit, Investigations and
Community Enterprise) Act 2004 amending the Companies Act
1985, each of the Company’s directors in office as at the date
of this report confirms that:

– so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware.

– he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the
British Academy of Film & Television Arts, 195 Piccadilly, London
W1J 9LN commencing at 9.30 am on Thursday, 12 July 2007. 
The Notice of Meeting is included in the separate circular to
shareholders which accompanies this Annual Report. It is also
available on the “Investor Information” section of the Company’s
website (www.burberrygroupplc.com).

Auditors
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as 
auditors to the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Michael Mahony
General Counsel and Secretary
23 May 2007

Registered Office:
18-22 Haymarket
London SW1Y 4DQ
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The Board supports the principles advocated by the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) published in July 2003
and, in accordance with the Listing Rules of the United Kingdom
Listing Authority, sets out below its report on the application of those
principles for the year under review. Following the demerger from
GUS in December 2005 and during the year a number of reviews
and changes to the governance structure of the Group took place
to ensure compliance with the Code. Unless otherwise stated below
and in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters,
the Company has complied with the provisions set out in Section 1
of the Code throughout the year.

The Board
The Board is collectively responsible to shareholders for the success
of the Group and concentrates its efforts on strategy, management
performance, governance and internal control. As at the date 
of this report, the Board has eight members; the Chairman, the
Vice-Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer
and four independent non-executive directors. The Board meets at
least five times a year and holds additional meetings as necessary.
During the year under review the Board held five meetings, with
one meeting being held overseas. The Board considers that it
met sufficiently often to enable the directors to discharge their
duties effectively.

During the year, the Board reviewed the schedule of matters
reserved to it for decision and approval which include, but are 
not limited to:

– the approval of financial statements
– any interim dividend and the recommendation of the

final dividend
– the Group’s business strategy
– annual budget and operating plans
– major capital expenditure, acquisitions or divestments
– the systems of corporate governance, internal control and

risk management

The Chairman ensures that the Board is supplied in a timely manner
with information in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to
effectively discharge its duties. In addition, directors are also supplied
with a monthly management report, which provides information on
operational and financial performance and the Group’s business
plans. Directors may obtain, in the furtherance of their duties,
independent professional advice, if necessary, at the Group’s
expense. In addition, all directors have direct access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary.

As an ongoing process, directors are briefed and provided with
information concerning major developments affecting their roles and
responsibilities. In particular, the directors’ knowledge of the Group’s
worldwide operations is regularly updated by arranging presentations
from local management.

In order to ensure that the Group and the Board are able to draw
from an appropriate balance of skills and experience, the terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (further details of which are
provided below), include the responsibility for reviewing succession
plans for both Board and senior executive positions.

At the request of any non-executive director, the Chairman will
arrange meetings consisting of only the non-executive directors
to allow the opportunity for any concerns to be expressed. 
The Chairman maintained regular contact and met with the 
Senior Independent Director and other non-executive directors
during the year although a formal meeting was not held.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter
reserved for the Board as a whole.

There is a clear division of the roles and responsibilities of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. These were set out in
writing and agreed by the Board during the year. The Chairman is
responsible for leading the Board in reviewing the Group’s strategy
and monitoring high-level progress. The day-to-day business 
of the Group is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer. 
Philip Bowman is the Senior Independent Director.

On 1 July 2006, Angela Ahrendts was appointed Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, having served as an executive director since
9 January 2006. Rose Marie Bravo ceased to serve as the Chief
Executive of the Company on 1 July 2006 and was appointed
Vice-Chairman on that date. The Board considered that, given her
knowledge of the Group’s affairs and her experience and expertise,
it remained desirable for the Group to retain the services of Rose
Marie Bravo.

Guy Peyrelongue, who was appointed a non-executive director at
the time of the IPO, retired on 31 March 2007. Ian Carter joined the
Board as a non-executive director on 1 April 2007. As Ian Carter’s
appointment was made subsequent to the date of the 2006 Annual
General Meeting, he will offer himself for election at this year’s Annual
General Meeting.

Given the Group has operated independently of GUS since the IPO
in 2002 and fully demerged from GUS in 2005, the Board considers
John Peace and David Tyler to be independent since the former
shareholder relationship does not affect their judgement. If there are
specific matters relating to the Group’s previous relationship with
GUS that may cause a conflict of interest to arise, in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, the relevant director
will not participate in the determination of the matter concerned.

John Peace, Philip Bowman, Ian Carter, Stephanie George and
David Tyler are, in the opinion of the Board, independent of
management and free from any business relationship which could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.
During the year under review the majority of the Board (excluding
the Chairman) comprised independent non-executive directors.
Biographical details of each of the directors and details of their
membership of the Board’s committees are set out on page 51.
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Board appointments
Board nominations are recommended to the Board by the
Nomination Committee under its terms of reference. All directors are
subject to election by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
following their appointment and thereafter at least once every three
years in line with the Company’s Articles of Association and provision
A.7.1. of the Code. The biographical details of those directors
seeking election and re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting can be found on page 51 of this Annual Report.

Directors – development
On appointment, directors are furnished with an induction pack of
information, which includes key Group policies, guidance notes and
information on corporate governance. The Group also ensures that
each director undergoes an induction programme whereby they will
visit key sites and meet members of the management team following
their appointment.

Board evaluation
Following the demerger from GUS in December 2005 and the
changes to senior management, an external review of the Board
and its committees was carried out during the year by an external
facilitator by way of interviews. The findings of the review to assess
the effectiveness of the Board and its committees, were reviewed
by the directors. Following that review, a number of changes to the
Board and the committees have been made.

In addition, the matters reserved for the Board and terms of
reference of its committees were reviewed and updated in light
of best practice and guidance.

Committees
The Board is supported by the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
committees.

The committees, if they consider it necessary, can engage third-party
consultants and independent professional advisers and can call
upon other resources of the Group to assist them in developing their
respective roles.

In addition to the relevant committee members and the Company
Secretary, external advisers and, on occasion, other directors attend
committee meetings but only at the invitation of the chairmen of
the committees.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors:

Philip Bowman (Chairman)
Ian Carter (appointed 18 May 2007)
Stephanie George (appointed 19 May 2006)
David Tyler

The Committee’s full terms of reference were reviewed and approved
during the year and are available on the Company’s website
www.burberrygroupplc.com and from the Company upon request.

The Audit Committee is responsible for:

– monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements and
any formal announcements relating to the Group’s performance.

– reviewing the Group’s internal financial controls and risk
management systems.

– monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function.

– assessing the independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the
external auditors.

– developing and implementing policies on the engagement of the
external auditors for the supply of non-audit services.

– making recommendations for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors and approving their
remuneration and terms of engagement.

– reviewing arrangements by which staff may, in confidence, raise
concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting and other matters.

The Board is satisfied, in accordance with the provisions of the
Code, that at least one member of the Audit Committee has recent
and relevant financial experience given the nature of the senior
management positions previously held by Philip Bowman and
David Tyler (see biographical details on page 51).

The Committee met three times during the year, with both the
external auditors and a representative of the Group’s internal audit
department present. The attendance record of Committee members
is recorded in the table on page 56.

The Committee is responsible for the review and monitoring of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures and risk
management systems. During the year, the Committee reviewed 
the Group’s internal audit plan and approved the internal audit plan
for the financial year to 31 March 2008. In addition, the Committee
reviewed the adequacy of the “whistle-blowing” arrangements in
place to enable employees to raise, in confidence, any concerns
they may have. The Committee is satisfied that such arrangements
remain appropriate.

During the financial year, the Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the external audit process and the qualification, expertise,
resources and independence of the external auditors. The
Committee also reviewed the proposed audit fee and terms of
engagement for the financial year to 31 March 2007 and has
recommended to the Board that it propose to shareholders that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as the Group’s
external auditor.
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The Committee monitors the types of non-audit work that are
undertaken by the external auditors to ensure that their objectivity
and independence is not compromised. Any proposed non-audit
assignments require the prior approval of the Audit Committee, 
and regular reports are also provided to the Committee detailing 
all such work undertaken.

Details of the fees paid to the external auditor during the financial
year can be found in note 5 in the financial statements.

Stephanie George was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee on 19 May 2006. Following her appointment the
membership of the Committee complied with the Code.

Remuneration Committee
The report of the Remuneration Committee is set out on pages 
65 to 73.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises:

John Peace (Chairman)
Angela Ahrendts (appointed 23 March 2007)
Philip Bowman
Rose Marie Bravo
Ian Carter (appointed 18 May 2007)
Stephanie George (appointed 23 March 2007)
Guy Peyrelongue (retired 31 March 2007)
David Tyler (appointed 23 March 2007)

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying and
recommending appointments or renewal of appointments to 
the Board. The procedure for appointments is set out in its terms 
of reference, which were reviewed and updated during the year. 
The full terms of reference for the Nomination Committee can be
found on the Company’s website www.burberrygroupplc.com 
and are available from the Company on request.

Angela Ahrendts, Stephanie George and David Tyler were appointed
as members of the Nomination Committee in March 2007. Following
the appointment of Stephanie George and David Tyler the membership
of the Nomination Committee complied with the Code.

As part of the process of succession planning, an independent
external search consultant was engaged to identify a potential
candidate for the position of non-executive director. Following
a review of the potential candidates identified, the Committee
recommended the appointment of Ian Carter to the Board. Ian Carter
was formally appointed to the Board on 1 April 2007 and appointed
a member of the Nomination Committee on 18 May 2007.

Board and committee attendance
The attendance of the individual directors at Board and committee
meetings during the financial year was as follows:

Audit Remuneration Nomination 
Board Committee Committee Committee

Total number of meetings 
during the financial year 5 3 3 1
John Peace (Chairman) 5 n/a 3 1
Angela Ahrendts(1) 5 n/a n/a n/a
Philip Bowman(2) 5 2 2 1
Rose Marie Bravo 5 n/a n/a 1
Stacey Cartwright 5 n/a n/a n/a
Stephanie George(1)(3) 5 2 3 n/a
Guy Peyrelongue(2)(4) 3 n/a 2 1
David Tyler (1)(5) 5 3 1 n/a

(1) Angela Ahrendts, Stephanie George and David Tyler were appointed members 
of the Nomination Committee on 23 March 2007, following a review of the
membership to ensure that the majority of the members are independent
non-executive directors.

(2) Where directors are unable to attend meetings, they receive papers for
consideration and are given the opportunity to submit comments prior to the
meeting, and if necessary follow up with the relevant Chairman on the decisions
taken at that meeting.

(3) Stephanie George was appointed a member of the Audit Committee on 
19 May 2006. She has attended all committee meetings since her appointment.

(4) Guy Peyrelongue resigned as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on
23 March 2007. He resigned as a director of the Company on 31 March 2007.

(5) David Tyler was appointed Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on
23 March 2007. He has attended all committee meetings since his appointment.

Relations with shareholders
The Board recognises the importance of maintaining good
communications with its shareholders and does this through
its Annual and Interim Reports, quarterly trading updates and the
Annual General Meeting. The Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer make presentations to institutional shareholders
and analysts immediately following the release of the preliminary
and interim results; these presentations are made available on
the Company’s website. The Company communicates with its
institutional investors frequently and regularly through a combination
of formal and informal meetings, participation at investor conferences
and ad-hoc briefings with management. The Board is kept abreast
of the views of major shareholders by briefings from the Company’s
Senior Vice-President of Strategy and Investor Relations. Analysts’
notes and brokers’ briefings are also used to achieve a greater
understanding of investors’ views. The non-executive directors,
including the Senior Independent Director, are available to meet with
major shareholders to discuss issues of importance to them, should
a meeting be requested.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Notice of the
2006 Annual General Meeting was sent to shareholders at least 20
working days before the Meeting. A poll vote was taken on each of
the resolutions put before shareholders.
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Guy Peyrelongue was unable to attend the 2006 Annual General
Meeting. It is the intention that all directors will attend the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and will be available to answer shareholders’
questions. In keeping with the Company’s usual practice, voting on
each of the resolutions to be put to shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting will be conducted by a poll. The level of
proxies lodged on each resolution and the number of proxy votes 
for, against and withheld on each resolution will be made available 
at the Annual General Meeting on request and will be published 
on the Company’s website as soon as reasonably practicable.

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
Details on the Company’s approach to CSR are given on pages 61
to 64.

Accountability and audit
The Board acknowledges that it should present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s position and
prospects. In this context, reference should be made to the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 74, which includes
a statement in compliance with the Code regarding the Group’s
status as a going concern, and to the Report of the Auditors on
page 75 which includes a statement by the auditors about their
reporting responsibilities. The Board recognises that its responsibility
to present a balanced and understandable assessment extends
to interim and other price sensitive public reports and reports to
regulators as well as information required to be presented by law.

Internal control
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group’s
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. 
Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the 
risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the
key procedures, which have been established to provide internal
control. As part of the process that the Group has in place to review
the effectiveness of the internal control system there are procedures
designed to capture and evaluate failings and weaknesses, and
in the case of those categorised by the Board as “significant”,
procedures exist to ensure that necessary action is taken to
remedy the failings.

In accordance with the revised guidance for directors on internal
control (“the Revised Turnbull Guidance”), the Board confirms that
there is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the Group. These include those relating
to social, environmental and ethical matters. This process was in
place throughout the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. The process will be
regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee which reports its findings
for consideration by the Board, and is in accordance with the
Revised Turnbull Guidance.

The key procedures operating within the Group are as follows:

Risk assessment
The Group’s business objectives are incorporated into the annual
budgeting and planning cycle. Progress towards the achievement of
such objectives is monitored by a variety of financial measures and
non-financial performance indicators.

The Risk Committee of executive management meets formally at
least every six months to re-evaluate risk and to consider the work
of the Internal Audit and Risk Assurance team. During the year the
Committee met on three occasions. The Director of Audit and Risk
Assurance attends these meetings.

The Audit Committee has delegated responsibility for considering
operational, financial, compliance and other risks.

Control environment and control activities
The Group consists of a number of business units, each with its own
management structure which forms part of the overall management
structure of the Group. The senior executives of these units report
to the executive directors.

The Group has established procedures for the delegation of
authorities for matters that are considered significant, either because
of their value or the impact on the Group, to ensure that approval is
considered at an appropriate level.

The Group’s trading units operate within a framework of policies
and procedures which are either already laid down or are being
established in organisation or authority manuals. Policies and
procedures cover key issues such as authorisation levels,
compliance with legislation and physical security.

The Group has implemented various strategies to deal with the
risk factors that have been identified. Such strategies include a
framework of internal control and the use of third-party services
to assist in monitoring specific issues. In addition, other approaches
are taken, such as insurance.

Information and communication
The Group has a comprehensive system of budgetary control,
focused on monthly performance reporting which is at an
appropriately detailed level. A summary of results supported by
commentary and performance measures is provided to the Board
each month. The performance measures are subject to review 
to ensure that they provide relevant and reliable indications of
business performance.

A summary of the key business risks and relevant control measures
is submitted by the executive directors to the Audit Committee at
the end of the financial year. The Audit Committee meets with both
external and internal auditors.

Monitoring
A range of procedures is used to monitor the effective application of
internal control within the Group. These include management review,
management confirmations of compliance with standards and
procedures as well as internal audit and other specialist reviews.
The Internal Audit department is responsible for reporting to the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of internal control systems.
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The management of the business and the execution of the Group’s
growth strategies are subject to a number of risks, the occurrence
of any one of which may adversely affect the management of the
Group and the execution of growth strategies.

The key business risks affecting the Group are set out below. 
The steps the Group takes to address these risks, where they are
matters within its control, are also described. Such steps will mitigate
but not eliminate these risks. Some of the risks relate to external
factors which are beyond the Group’s control. The order of the risks
is in no way an indication of their relative importance, and each of the
risks should be considered independently. If more than one of the
events contemplated by the risks set out below occurs, it is possible
that the combined overall effect of such events may be compounded.

Risks are formally reviewed by a Risk Committee of executive
management including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary and also by the Audit Committee.
Key business risks are also considered generally as part of the
Group’s strategy development and ongoing business review
processes.

The cumulative change within the business places 
a significant pressure on resources
The combination of the global change programme (Project Atlas),
the changing business model and the development of the global
supply chain combine to exert significant pressure on the business.
Governance processes have been put in place for each major
programme and these are supplemented by monthly operational
meetings with senior management to review operational performance.
The senior management team also continues to be strengthened to
further support these key initiatives.

There is a substantial change programme (Project Atlas) being
rolled out throughout the business to improve the infrastructure
and business efficiency
Whilst Project Atlas is designed to deliver significant business
benefits and to improve the quality of the Group’s IT infrastructure,
if it is not effectively managed and resourced the benefits may fail
to be delivered and it could compromise business operations.
A governance framework has been established involving Board 
level sponsorship and a Steering Committee. External consultants
are being used to supplement internal skills where required. 

We face increasingly intense competition
Competition in the luxury goods sector has intensified in recent
years and we are faced with increasing competition in many of our
product categories and markets. We compete with international
luxury goods groups who control a number of luxury brands and
may have greater financial resources and bargaining power with
suppliers, wholesale accounts and landlords than we do. If we are
unable to compete successfully, our operating results and growth
may be adversely impacted.

The inability to anticipate and respond to changes in consumer
demand and fashion trends on a timely basis could adversely
impact sales
Our business depends, in part, on our ability to shape, stimulate and
anticipate consumer demand by producing innovative, fashionable and
functional products. The Burberry check has been used as an integral
part of our product design and to promote the brand. We plan to
continue to vary the manner in which we use the Burberry check as
a design feature and to develop marketing initiatives to minimise its risk
of over exposure. We are increasing the frequency of our collections
so as to be more responsive to fashion and consumer trends.

Our operating results are subject to seasonal fluctuations and
vary based on the weather
In recent years, we have seen more unpredictable global weather
patterns. Our business, particularly with respect to apparel, broadly
operates on a seasonal basis (Spring/Summer and Autumn/Winter)
and we have experienced, and expect to continue to experience,
substantial seasonal fluctuations in sales and operating results.
In particular, our results vary based on the weather because of 
the large proportion of outerwear products we offer and the effect 
of the weather on retail markets generally. As a result of these
fluctuations, comparisons of sales and operating results between
different periods within a single financial year are not necessarily
meaningful. In addition, these comparisons cannot be relied on
as indicators of our future performance.

An economic downturn could affect consumers’ purchases
of discretionary luxury items which could adversely affect
Burberry’s sales
In common with all our competitors, there are many factors which
affect the level of consumer spending on discretionary luxury items.
During a recession, when disposable income is lower, a downturn
in our key markets may adversely affect Burberry’s sales.

A significant proportion of our sales are generated by customers,
(in particular Japanese, Chinese and other Asian customers) who
purchase our products while travelling either overseas or domestically.
As a result, shifts in travel patterns or a decline in travel volumes
could materially affect our trading results.

Burberry is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations
We derive a significant percentage of our profits from our Japanese
licensing arrangements. As a consequence, we are exposed to a
significant risk associated with the Yen to Sterling exchange rate.

In addition the Group is expanding its operations in the US as part
of our strategy to accelerate retail expansion in key under-penetrated
markets. As the Group’s presence in the US increases, we will be
exposed to an increased risk associated with the US Dollar to
Sterling exchange rate.

We manage a significant proportion of the Yen exposures by the
use of forward exchange contracts. Currency fluctuations affecting
the Yen and the US Dollar will nevertheless affect our results
and profitability.
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Terrorism
A major terrorist attack, particularly in central London, New York,
Barcelona or Tokyo could severely impact the operation of our
businesses. In such circumstances we cannot ensure uninterrupted
operation of the business, particularly in the short-term. In the
longer-term the operation of the business may be hindered if the
effects of a terrorist attack have a more prolonged effect. Business
continuity plans are in place to mitigate but not eliminate the
operational risks.

We are dependent on the strength of our trademarks and other
intellectual property rights
Our trademarks and other proprietary rights are fundamentally
important to our success and competitive position. Unauthorised
use of the “Burberry” name, the Burberry check and the Prorsum
horse logo as well as the distribution of counterfeit products damage
the Burberry brand image and profits. If a third-party registers our
trademarks or similar trademark, in a country where we do not
currently trade, this would create a barrier to our commencing
trade under those marks in that country. In addition, if a third-party
publishes harmful material using our trademarks, Burberry’s brand
image could suffer.

We have a dedicated team operating internationally to establish and
protect our trademarks and other intellectual property rights. Where
infringements are identified, we resolve these through a mixture of
criminal and civil legal action and negotiated settlement.

Nevertheless, we cannot guarantee that the actions we have taken
to establish and protect our trademarks and other proprietary rights
will be adequate to prevent imitation of our products by others.
Trademarks and intellectual property rights, while subject to
international treaties, are largely driven by national law and the
protection of intellectual property rights varies from one jurisdiction
to another. We cannot therefore necessarily be as effective in all
jurisdictions in addressing counterfeit products. In many territories
we are dependent upon the vigilance and responsiveness of law
enforcement bodies whose priorities may differ from our own. 
They are also subject to budgetary constraints and prioritise their
actions accordingly. Whilst we work closely with customs and other
law enforcement bodies, ultimately we cannot direct their actions.

There is a risk of over-reliance on key product manufacturers
In a number of key product categories Burberry is reliant on a
small number of suppliers. During the year, the Group has further
strengthened its supply chain management team to enable us to
continue to evolve and develop our manufacturing base to further
mitigate the risk associated with over-reliance on key product
suppliers. Where suitable alternatives exist, the Group has reduced
volumes with key suppliers on whom the Group is over-reliant and
continues to look for suitable additional suppliers to further reduce
such over-reliance.

A lack of flexibility in our supply chain would limit our ability 
to respond efficiently to changing circumstances and fashion
trends, hindering the Group’s ability to take advantage of growth
opportunities and enabling competitors to take market share
If our suppliers do not have sufficient manufacturing capacity or fail to
deliver products on time and/or to the appropriate quality standards,
sales for an entire season could be significantly adversely affected.
Further, such a failure could affect wholesale customers’ confidence
which could adversely affect subsequent seasons. We have evolved
our design calendar to enable increased product refreshment and
replenishment. This will enable us to respond more efficiently to
changing circumstances and to reduce the risks associated with
placing excessive capacity with key product suppliers.

Burberry could suffer if its manufacturers are unable to produce
goods at a competitive price, on time and to our specification
Burberry continues to evolve its sourcing strategy, refining its
selection of suppliers to maintain and enhance product quality
whilst improving sourcing efficiency. There are opportunities to
develop more robust supplier management processes and these
will help ensure that we continue to produce merchandise of the
right quality, in accordance with our ethical policy, and delivered
in accordance with our requirements. This process may adversely
affect relationships with existing suppliers during the transition period.
If our suppliers fail to ship product on time, or quality is substandard,
this could lead to us missing delivery dates to our customers,
potentially resulting in cancelled orders or price reductions.

If Burberry loses key management or is unable to attract and
retain the talent required for its business, its operating results
could suffer
Burberry’s performance depends largely on its senior managers and
design teams. The resignation of key individuals and the inability to
recruit people with the right experience and skills to facilitate future
business growth could adversely impact Burberry’s results. To mitigate
these issues the Remuneration Committee regularly benchmarks the
Group’s incentive schemes against the market and considers the
framework in place to recruit, incentivise and retain key individuals.
As part of the process, the Remuneration Committee is recommending
to shareholders the implementation of the Exceptional Performance
Share Plan, which is designed to reward very high performance.

In addition, there is an ongoing recruitment programme overseen by
the Human Resources Director and Chief Executive Officer to ensure
that we strengthen and develop our senior management team.
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A substantial proportion of Group revenue and profits is reliant
upon business in Japan and key global licensees
A significant source of profit is derived from the royalties received
from licensees, specifically our licensees in Japan, and our fragrance
licensee InterParfums S.A.. We rely on licensees, among other
things, to maintain operational and financial control over their
businesses. Should our licensees fail to effectively manage
their operations our income from royalties would decline.

Failure to manage these key relationships effectively could have
a material impact on the sales, profitability and reputation of the
Group. To minimise the risks in Japan, we have established our
own offices and operations in Tokyo.

A number of our licences have been renegotiated to give us improved
control over the brand, and more active product development is
being undertaken with our key licensees. We regularly implement
royalty reviews of our licensees, but we cannot guarantee that they
will reveal any non-compliance with the terms of the relevant licence.

We may be unable to control our wholesale and licence
distribution channels satisfactorily
We rely on our ability to control our distribution networks and
licensees to ensure that our products are sold in environments
consistent with our luxury image. An action by any significant
wholesale customer or licensee, such as presenting Burberry
products in a manner inconsistent with our preferred positioning,
would be damaging to our brand image. If, due to regulatory,
legal or other constraints, we are in any way unable to control
our wholesale distribution networks and licensees, the Burberry
brand image, and therefore our results and profitability, may be
adversely affected.

In key emerging markets, particularly China, we are largely
dependent upon third-party operators with the associated lack
of direct control and transparency
In key emerging markets, we operate through third-party franchisees.
In particular, a third-party retail operation has been developed in
China. We largely depend upon the expertise of these franchisees
given our relative lack of experience in this region. During the year,
we have strengthened our resources internally, and where appropriate
have our own staff based within these operations who work closely
with our franchisees to further develop operational models to enable
greater control and visibility.

We have a number of key customers whose business
represents a substantial portion of our sales
We dedicate resources to these customers and maintain close
relationships with such customers so we can understand and
respond to their needs.

We rely upon our licensees, suppliers, franchisees, distributors
and agents to comply with relevant legislation
We expect our licensees, suppliers, franchisees, distributors and
agents to comply with employment and other laws relating to their
country of operation and to operate to good ethical standards.
We are, however, unable to guarantee that this is the case,
although we are improving our processes to gain assurance
that our licensees, suppliers, franchisees, distributors and agents
comply with our terms and conditions and relevant local legislation
and good practice.
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Business often has environmental and social impacts, both good
and bad, and we recognise our responsibility to manage these
carefully and with the same degree of rigour as any other aspect
of our business. The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)
Committee at Burberry meets to ensure that the overall management
of these impacts are given due consideration.

The CSR Committee is chaired by the Company Secretary, who
takes overall responsibility for CSR matters. The Committee held two
formal meetings in the financial year to 31 March 2007. In addition
to this, the Environmental Committee, comprising of operational 
staff from our UK, Spain and US divisions, met four times and the
Risk Committee, which considers CSR issues, met three times.

Burberry is included in the FTSE4Good Indices.

Supply chain
Our approach
As a global luxury goods company, the substantial majority of
Burberry’s products are manufactured in the UK, Italy and elsewhere
in the European Union, but as other markets develop their own
advanced manufacturing plants we are increasingly sourcing from
emerging economies where it is appropriate and provided our
standards are met.

We have established labour and environmental standards that we
expect all our suppliers to meet. These are based on internationally
accepted codes and are published in full on our website at
www.burberrygroupplc.com/brby/cp/csr/. We support these
standards with a programme of independent audits, which is
managed internationally by a specialist team in the UK using expert
third-party auditors. In the last year 100 of our suppliers’ facilities
were audited to check their compliance with our standards. In
addition, we collaborate with other luxury goods companies and
organise long-term management training programmes and training
for our suppliers’ workers. In addition Burberry is investing in its 
own specialists on the ground, who take responsibility for the
implementation of our standards.

Consistent with our luxury goods positioning and the demand from
our customers we use fur in some of our products. Any animal
product (including leather) should be produced without inflicting
unnecessary cruelty or threatening the environment. We therefore
need to assure ourselves of the origin of the animal products that
we use and the welfare standards on farms. We actively seek out
suppliers who can demonstrate high standards of animal welfare,
and who will establish processes to help us trace individual skins,
as well as auditing their farms to ensure that high welfare standards
are maintained. The farms in question are open to third-party
inspections at any time.

In the past year we have established supply arrangements of this
kind with suppliers for furs including Fox (Alopex Lagopus and Vulpes
Vulpes), Finn Racoon (Nyctereutes Procyonoides) and Mink (Mustela
Vison). We have also educated our buyers and designers about our
rationale for confining ourselves to using specific species and only
using qualified suppliers.

Operational responsibility for this area resides with Burberry’s
CSR Manager who is supported by an internal team and external
experts. Performance in this area is reported to the Risk Committee
(comprising the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary) as well as to the CSR Committee.

In 2007/08 we intend to:
– Continue to assess our suppliers’ adherence to our ethical

standards.
– Increase the number of random spot check visits by Burberry

CSR personnel to ensure high standards.
– Increase the levels of “on the ground” resource to better enable

our suppliers to achieve high standards.
– Increase levels of stakeholder engagement so that, where

applicable, we can align our activities with the expectations
of our stakeholders.

– Continue and increase our involvement in leading industry CSR
initiatives, cooperating in innovation and best practice to raise
industry standards.

– Start the roll-out of confidential worker hotlines, both to act 
as a counselling line for workers and to provide a tool for
whistle-blowing on poor practice.

Our 2006/07 objectives were to:
– Employ an additional CSR manager in Asia, dedicated to working

with our suppliers on ethical supply chain issues in the region.
– Deliver substantive training, both internally and externally, in our

key locations.
– Launch an online resource for suppliers to help them self-assess

and keep up to date with standards.
– Continue working with our appointed auditing partners to improve

conditions in high-risk areas, utilising the new CAPAR system.

All of the above have been achieved. However, we will continue
to provide both internal and external training on ethical and
environmental compliance to further embed this practice into the
way we do business. In addition, we are now members of SEDEX
(www.sedex.org), an online database that enables our suppliers
to self-assess and share their audit data with other buyers. 

Employment
The Group employs approximately 5,000 people worldwide of which
2,000 are located in Britain. In the past five years Burberry’s British
workforce has increased by 500 people (or over 30%), and half of
this growth has been in manufacturing, especially of our high-value
products such as the Burberry trench coat, which is produced at
Castleford and Rotherham in Yorkshire.

The Group remains committed to employing and retaining the best
talent. People are selected on the basis of skills and without regard
to age, colour, disability, gender, marital status, race, national origin,
religion or sexual orientation. Where appropriate, preference is given
to internal candidates as job opportunities arise. External recruitment
takes place when new skills or specialist experience is required.

As the Group continues to grow internationally, more emphasis
is being placed on cross–border transfers in order to ensure we
improve the strength of our management for the future. One of the
main focuses of attention for the coming year is talent management
and succession planning and a more formalised process of
reviewing and managing our in-house talent is being developed.
In line with our global focus, an increasing number of employees
attend language training courses and this is set to continue.
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The performance of all employees is reviewed annually providing
everyone with the opportunity to discuss their views and aspirations.
The performance rating is also used as one of the factors which
determines pay, supporting our aim of paying for performance. 

The Group believes in respecting individuals and their rights in the
workplace. Policies are in place to ensure that there is a fair and
equitable process for any employee to follow should they have a
grievance. There are specific policies in place covering harassment
and bullying and whistle-blowing.

The Group needs to continuously review its supply chain to ensure
that product is sourced from the appropriate locations consistent
with customer expectations and business efficiency. Following
such a review in September 2006, we made a proposal to close
the Burberry factory at Treorchy which made approximately 25%
of the Group’s requirement for polo shirts and began a period of
consultation with the staff and trade unions at the site.

From the outset, we made every possible effort to mitigate the
consequences for our employees. A comprehensive retraining and
outplacement programme was established and Burberry extended
the initial proposed closing date of January 2007 to 30 March 2007
to allow employees more time to find alternative employment. As a
result, more than 120 of the original 300 employees had already left
for new jobs by the time the site closed on 30 March 2007 and
the outplacement service identified over 280 other employment
opportunities in the local area. To help address the wider long-term
issues we will be donating £150,000 a year over the next ten years
to projects determined by the local community. We offered a very
substantially enhanced redundancy package to our employees
focusing both on long service employees and the 50% of the
workforce who had five years service or less.

Employee communications
The Group is keen to ensure it communicates significant information
about its performance and activities to all its employees. As the
Group grows in size it becomes more important to put in place
more formal mechanisms for achieving this. To this end we have
established a quarterly global review meeting attended by senior
managers and made accessible to all employees internationally
through the internet. In addition attention is being focused on
implementing a more comprehensive intranet service.

People management
Burberry’s recent and rapid growth requires the support of a world
class Human Resources function that can support cultural change,
harmonise and simplify HR systems and processes, and realise
and support opportunities for development within the organisation.
The function also needs to approach the areas of employee
relations, performance management and people development
more consistently at the local level as we increase the number
of staff moving between our various functions internationally. 

We are making headway in this area. Our medium-term challenges
are to:

– Move from a personnel and administrative function to a more
sophisticated HR service.

– Replace our regional HR department structure with a more
global model.

– Reorganise our existing HR infrastructure in order to improve 
our services without substantially increasing our headcount.

Our 2006/07 objectives were to: 
– Expand our involvement with universities and MBA colleges.
– Increase the level of language training across the Group.
– Increase the number of inter-group transfers for management

development purposes.

We have met all of the above objectives. Specifically, we have
been in contact with numerous business schools such as ESSEC
to develop courses that support the development of our managers.
We now offer courses in French, English, Spanish and Italian to our
staff with many of our senior staff taking one-to-one lessons. We
also have international secondments taking place all over the world
including exchanges between Milan and New York, the UK and New
York, the UK and Paris, the US and Spain, and Korea and the US. 

Health and safety 
In 2003 we began a partnership with a third-party health and safety
auditor in the UK to review our existing standards. Since then, we
have continued with an audit programme and made sure that all
of our UK manufacturing sites are audited at least annually with our
major offices and retail locations being audited at least once every
three years. We are pleased to see that our overall UK audit scores
are steadily improving as a result of the thorough implementation of
audit recommendations (prioritised by level of risk) and improved
overall housekeeping.

As with many global businesses, the challenge we face is to find
a consistent approach to the management and reporting of health
and safety worldwide that is easy to administer yet meets regional
legislative expectations. We have already extended the auditing
programme to include some of our major European retail stores
and have also had audits undertaken in our US operation. 

In 2007/08 we intend to: 
– Align our European and US auditing programmes.
– Integrate health and safety into our store design procedures

worldwide.
– Obtain Board approval for our new global health and safety 

policy and governance framework.

Our 2006/07 objectives were to:
– Extend the UK auditing approach to other European retail sites.
– Roll-out a new global health and safety audit programme.
– Work with US insurers to further enhance our health and safety

programme in this region.

As suggested above, our work to meet these objectives is ongoing.
The health and safety audit programme is being continually revised
in line with legislative changes and the management information 
from our US insurers has been used to tailor the current programme.

Community affairs 
Traditionally, our community efforts have been relatively localised
but unified by a focus on fashion and textiles education, medical
research and awareness, humanitarian issues and the arts.

Examples from 2006/07 include:
– As part of our 150th anniversary celebrations, Burberry

sponsored the “Anglomania” exhibition at the Metropolitan
Museum of Art in New York, which celebrated British fashion.
Also during the year, Burberry sponsored the David Hockney
Portraits exhibition at the National Portrait Gallery in London,
which celebrated the life and works of David Hockney.
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– A cocktail reception hosted by Burberry at its New York 57th
Street Store in support of the Kristin Zimberg Fund at The Tower
Cancer Research Foundation. Burberry donated 15% of the
evening’s sales to the Fund, raising $4,000.

– A $10,000 donation from Burberry for the opening of the
Orange County Performing Arts Center. The Center’s mission
is to present the finest in performing arts to the community and
achieve greater understanding, appreciation and support for 
the arts through meaningful education initiatives and community
partnerships.

In 2007 we will launch the Burberry Foundation to coordinate
and expand the charitable activity in which Burberry is involved
worldwide. Once established, the Foundation will look to efficiently
develop partnerships with selected charitable organisations that
are better placed to deliver tangible benefits more directly to
the community over the longer-term. We will be developing our
objectives and plans more fully over the coming months. We also
intend to harness the enthusiasm and commitment of our employees
in engaging in charitable activities.

The environment
Our manufacturing, distribution and retail activities can have
significant environmental impacts. We have set ourselves priorities
to manage and reduce waste; to understand and reduce the volume
of packaging; to improve our energy efficiency, and to monitor key
suppliers to ensure acceptable levels of performance. A review 
of these priorities was carried out in March 2006 and we will be
undertaking another in 2007. 

We have a relatively long history of environmental management,
particularly within the UK business. We have sought to engage,
educate and involve one new business region each year and to
then include it in our Environmental Management System (“EMS”).
Those parts of the business included in the system benefit from
involvement in the Environmental Committee. Here they can share
best practice and monitor and compare environmental performance
and rise to the challenge of meeting a progressive set of environmental
objectives and targets. We are pleased to confirm that in 2007/08
the EMS will be close to including all of our global businesses and
we already have numerous success stories to share from those
areas currently operating within the system. 

For example:
– In mid 2006 our 40,000 square metre wholesale facility in

Barcelona began work to have its environmental approach
independently certified against the ISO 14001 international
standard. We anticipate that this will be achieved by the middle
of the next financial year, when we will consider extending this
to other facilities where it is likely to be effective.

– From the outset the design and construction of our new state
of the art warehousing facility in New Jersey incorporated
environmental concerns, using energy efficient motion-sensitive
lighting, and the separation and recycling of materials.

– Our retail stores will continue to use a number of techniques
to save energy. These include close monitoring of energy
consumption, incentives for staff, and the installation of energy
efficient and energy saving technologies. Between 2002/03 and
2006/07, three stores in Britain reduced their absolute energy
consumption by 23% or over 600,000 kWh.

For the last four years we have changed the way Burberry ships
its goods from location to location. Our main tactics have been to
improve our planning so that goods are more readily shipped by sea
rather than by air, and to reduce transhipments by sending goods
directly from our suppliers to our various locations therefore avoiding
our central distribution point in the UK. We estimate that we have
saved roughly 4,800 tonnes of CO2e in this way. 

In 2007/08 we intend to:
– Have over 90% of our directly owned business operations

covered by the EMS.
– Develop an off the shelf environmental training pack for

managers, based on Group best practice.
– Examine the opportunities for extending ISO 14001 certification,

following its application at our major Spanish wholesale site.

Our 2006/07 objectives were to: 
– Perform environmental reviews of our operations in Hong Kong,

Taiwan, China and Korea.
– Extend our EMS to cover our activities in the Far East.
– Carry out further staff awareness initiatives.

The reviews of our Chinese and Korean operations will take place
in 2007, following which these regions will be formally included in the
EMS. In 2006 we carried out environmental training days at 
our head office and three of our manufacturing sites.
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Burberry CSR data 2006/07

2007 2006 2005

SUPPLIERS
Number of third-party audits 100 73(1) 43

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Riddors per 100,000 hours worked in the UK 0.3 0.26 0.3
Third-party health and safety audits in the UK and Europe 12 11 14

ENVIRONMENT
ENERGY
Energy use (Mil kWh) 48.9 37.3 46.6
UK energy use (Mil kWh) 25.0 27.4 28.1
Spain wholesale (Mil kWh) 8.0 8.5(1) 9.3
US (Mil kWh) 9.4 8.2 7.7
Asia and Korea (Mil kWh) 2.2 1.7 1.5
European retail (Mil kWh) 4.3 – –
Energy use (kWh per £1,000 of turnover) 57.5 50.2 65.1

WASTE
Packaging used (tonnes) 1,424 1,357 1,325
UK total (tonnes) 895 822(1) 731
of which transit packaging (tonnes) 354 385(1) 520
Spain total (tonnes) 529 535 594
Packaging used (kg per £1,000 of turnover) 1.7 1.8 1.9

Solid waste (tonnes) 1,579 – –
UK total (tonnes) 1,046 – –
of which % recycled 23% – –
Spain total (tonnes) 533 632 819
of which % recycled 40% 35% 26%
Solid waste (kg per £1,000 of turnover) 1.86 – –

CO2

Tonnes CO2 from building energy use 17,300 15,200 –
from electricity 14,200 11,700 –
from gas 2,600 2,900 –
from fuel oil 500 600 –
Building energy CO2 (kg per £1,000 of turnover) 20.3 20.5 –

Tonnes CO2 from air travel 2,000 1,600 –
UK-based employees 1,400 1,200 –
Spanish-based employees 600 400 –
Air travel CO2 (kg per £1,000 of turnover) 2.4 2.2 –

COMMUNITY
Indirect donations (£m) 64,667 169,046 142,999
Direct donations (£m) 374,002 314,214 346,423

Key figures
Full time equivalents 5,218 4,651 4,131
Turnover (£m) 850.3 742.9 715.5

(1) Restated from prior year based on improved data
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AND RELATED MATTERS

This report sets out the Group’s policy and disclosure in relation to directors’ remuneration. It has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 1985 and of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance.

Unaudited information
Remuneration Committee 
The Remuneration Committee comprises:

David Tyler (Chairman with effect from 23 March 2007)
Guy Peyrelongue (Chairman to 23 March 2007)
Philip Bowman
Ian Carter (appointed 18 May 2007)
Stephanie George (appointed 19 May 2006)
John Peace

The Remuneration Committee decides both the level and structure of executive directors’ pay and monitors senior management pay. 
The remuneration of the non-executive directors is a matter for the Board as a whole. The Remuneration Committee meets at least 
twice a year and holds additional meetings as necessary. During the year under review, the Committee met three times.

The Remuneration Committee has been assisted in its considerations during the year by Kepler Associates who were appointed by the
Committee following the IPO in June 2002. Kepler Associates do not provide any other services to the Company.

As reported in last year’s Annual Report, the Board reviewed its schedule of matters reserved to it for decision and the terms of reference
of its committees during the year. Following the review, the terms of reference of the Committee were amended as a result of the demerger
from GUS in December 2005 and in light of best practice and guidance. As a result of this review, the Board has determined that the
remuneration of the Chairman is a matter for the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the Group’s website www.burberrygroupplc.com or upon request.

The revised Combined Code on Corporate Governance, which will apply to the Company for future financial periods, provides that the
Chairman of the Board may be a member of the Remuneration Committee. The Board considers that the membership of the Committee 
will therefore become fully compliant with the revised Code.

Details of the number of meetings and attendance at those meetings during the year are set out in the table on page 56.

Remuneration policy
The Remuneration Committee believes the Group’s remuneration should be competitive and strongly linked to performance. It therefore 
has a remuneration policy based on the following two principles. 

First, in order to attract, motivate and retain exceptional talent to enable the Group to compete effectively with the world’s leading luxury
brands, the Remuneration Committee bases the quantum of total remuneration on competitive practice. For some roles the Group competes
for talent in the same global marketplace as other luxury brands, many of which are based in the US. Total remuneration for executive
directors and other senior executives is benchmarked against Burberry’s main global competitors and UK companies of comparable size.
The Remuneration Committee recognises that for each executive the relative importance of each of these benchmarks may be different.
Benefits are based on competitive market practice for each executive, having regard to individual circumstances. 

The second principle is to emphasise variable pay in order to establish a clear link between pay and performance, to align remuneration
closely with shareholders’ interests and to incentivise and reward both very good performance and exceptional performance. For this
reason the Remuneration Committee has decided that all future awards under the current share incentive plans will be subject to secondary
performance conditions. To provide a balanced focus between short and long term business objectives, variable pay for executive directors
includes an annual cash bonus based on growth in profit before tax and individual performance and long-term share-based incentives linked
primarily to increases in shareholder value and to continued employment over three to five years. 

Remuneration packages are established and regularly reviewed against the agreed policy to ensure that they meet the policy principles.
When seeking to attract new executives the Remuneration Committee endeavours to incorporate these policy objectives into the
remuneration package.

The Remuneration Committee believes that share ownership provides an effective way to align the interests of shareholders and executive
directors. The Committee plans to implement a Shareholding Policy during 2007/08 which will require executive directors over time to
achieve a holding in Burberry shares equivalent to at least one and a half times base salary (at least three times base salary for the Chief
Executive Officer).
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Performance graph 
The following graph shows the Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) for Burberry Group plc compared to the companies in the FTSE 100 Index
assuming £100 was invested on 12 July 2002, the date of Burberry’s IPO. The FTSE 100 Index has been selected because Burberry’s
market capitalisation is close to that of companies at the lower end of the FTSE 100 Index.

Value of £100 invested on Burberry flotation date

Elements of remuneration 
Remuneration is structured such that performance-related elements represent the majority of potential total remuneration. 

The Group implements its remuneration policy through the provision of the following elements:

Base salary 
The Group aims to provide salaries which are competitive with those of comparable roles at companies of a similar size and global 
reach within the luxury goods sector (including those in the US and those which are privately-owned) and UK companies of similar size. 
These companies are representative of Burberry’s competitors for executive talent. When making salary determinations, the Remuneration
Committee takes into account not only this competitive information but also each executive director’s contribution to the business during 
the year. On recruitment, the Remuneration Committee also considers the executive’s current remuneration and the overall package required
to attract, incentivise and retain the relevant executive.

Annual bonus
Each year the Remuneration Committee sets bonus targets by reference to internal and external expectations. Bonuses are currently based
on profit growth and individual performance. The Remuneration Committee believes that linking incentives to profit growth helps to reinforce
the Group’s profitability and growth objectives. Targets are calibrated by Kepler Associates using benchmarks that include broker earnings
estimates for Burberry, earnings estimates for competitors, targets for profit growth consistent with median/upper quartile shareholder returns,
latest projections for the current year, budget, strategic plan, long-term financial goals, etc. Actual bonus awards are subject to the discretion
of the Remuneration Committee.

The Burberry Co-Investment Plan (the “Co-Investment Plan”)
The Group encourages executive directors and other senior management to hold shares in Burberry. To facilitate this, executive directors
may, at the invitation of the Remuneration Committee, defer receipt of all or part of their annual bonus and invest it in Burberry shares, 
with up to a 2:1 match based on individual and Group performance during the year. The matching share awards do not vest for three years
and are forfeited if the executive leaves due to resignation within that period. To further link pay and performance and to align remuneration
with shareholders interests, it is planned that the vesting of the future matching share awards granted for future years will be subject to the
achievement of secondary performance conditions after three years. Further details of this are set out in the circular to shareholders which
includes the Notice of Meeting.
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The Burberry 2004 Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan (the “2004 RSP”)
Under this plan, executives may be awarded shares up to a maximum value of one times base salary (up to two times in exceptional
circumstances). The vesting of 2004 RSP awards is based 50% on Burberry’s three-year Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) relative to peers
and 50% on three year growth in Profit Before Tax (“PBT”). Awards vest in full only if Burberry achieves at least upper quartile TSR relative 
to its global peers and at least 15% per annum PBT growth. A proportion of an award (12.5%) may vest if TSR performance exceeds the
median of the peer group or if PBT growth exceeds 5% per annum over three years. Of the shares which meet the performance criteria,
50% vest after three years. The remaining 50% vest in two equal tranches on the fourth and fifth anniversaries of the award date. 

The Remuneration Committee chose TSR relative to a group of Burberry’s global peers because it felt that this is an objective measure
of the Group’s success and aligns with shareholder interests. Growth in PBT was chosen as it continues to be the primary measure used
by management and the Remuneration Committee believes strong pre-tax profit growth is key to delivering superior shareholder returns.

The TSR group for the 2006 award comprised: Bulgari, Christian Dior, Coach, Compagnie Financière Richemont, Estée Lauder, Fossil,
Hermès, Hugo Boss, IT Holding, Liz Claiborne, LVMH Moët Hennessy Louis Vuitton, Movado, Nordstrom, PPR, Polo Ralph Lauren, Saks,
Swatch, Tiffany & Co, Tod’s and Waterford Wedgwood. 

In 2004 and 2005, the peer group included Barneys New York, Neiman-Marcus and Tommy Hilfiger. These companies are no longer listed
and as a result Estée Lauder, Fossil, Liz Claiborne and Nordstrom were added to the peer group in 2006.

IPO plans 
A number of share-based incentives were put in place at the time of Burberry’s IPO in 2002. Awards are only outstanding under the
Executive Share Option Scheme 2002. No further grants will be made under this plan. Details of this plan are set out on page 72.

All employee share-based plans 
In order to encourage broad ownership of Burberry shares the Group offers two share-based plans to its employees; 

– A Share Incentive Plan (“SIP”). Adopted at the time of the IPO, this plan has been used to award free shares to all Group employees
as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

– A Save As You Earn Scheme (“SAYE”). This was adopted at the time of the IPO and implemented during the year. This allows directors
and eligible employees to save a portion of their salary which can be used to purchase Burberry shares after three years at a 20%
discount to the market price at the date of invitation. 

Benefits 
Benefits for executive directors include a company car, allowances, private medical insurance and legal expenses. 

Audited information
Directors’ remuneration 
The remuneration of the executive directors of Burberry Group plc in the period 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2007 is detailed below. 

Executive director remuneration 
Aggregate emoluments by director

Allowances Aggregate
Salary paid in cash Bonus Benefits emoluments
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Angela Ahrendts
Year to 31 March 2007 690(1) 357 2,550(2)(3)(4) 203 3,800
Year to 31 March 2006 173 82 570(5) 184(6) 1,009

Stacey Cartwright
Year to 31 March 2007 438 146(7) 450(3)(8) 7 1,041
Year to 31 March 2006 381 103(7) 95 9 588

Rose Marie Bravo
Year to 31 March 2007(9) 426 169 483(3) 37 1,115
Year to 31 March 2006(9) 966 579(10) 242 70 1,857

Total
Year to 31 March 2007 1,554 672 3,483 247 5,956
Year to 31 March 2006(11) 1,879 928 907 268 3,982

(1) Angela Ahrendts received a salary of $1.3m which was paid to her in Sterling at the prevailing GBP/USD exchange rate at the time of payment.
(2) Angela Ahrendts is eligible to receive an annual bonus not exceeding 150% of annual salary.
(3) Under the terms of the Co-Investment Plan, directors may defer some or all of their after-tax bonus to purchase shares in Burberry Group plc.
(4) Includes recruitment bonus and personal achievement bonus.
(5) Includes recruitment bonus and part compensation for awards forfeited at previous employer.
(6) Principally comprised relocation expenses from the US to the UK.
(7) Allowances for Stacey Cartwright include the cash equivalent of a company car.
(8) Stacey Cartwright is eligible to receive an annual bonus not exceeding 100% of annual salary.
(9) Rose Marie Bravo’s remuneration has been converted using the average GBP/USD exchange rate for the year of 1.90 (2006: 1.78).
(10) Includes housing and travel allowances and cash payments in lieu of the dividends payable on restricted shares held by Rose Marie Bravo under the IPO Restricted Share Plan.
(11) Figures disclosed include amounts relating to a former director of the Company (£528,000).
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Directors’ pension entitlements 

Rose Marie Bravo 
US pension scheme 
Pension contributions are made to a 401(k) scheme operated by Burberry in the US. The cost of providing this for Rose Marie Bravo was
$20,125 (£10,592) in the year to 31 March 2007 (2006: $18,500 (£10,393)).

In the year to 31 March 2002 it was agreed to set up a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for Rose Marie Bravo. This Plan is an
unfunded arrangement into which notional contributions are paid. Interest is earned on the Plan at the same rate as the guaranteed interest
fund for the US 401(k) scheme. Details of the pension benefits earned by Rose Marie Bravo under her Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan during the year to 31 March 2007 are set out in the table below.

Accrued benefit Transfer value of accrued benefit

Transfer 
value of 

As at Transferred As at increase in As at Change Transferred As at
31 March Gross Increase net during 31 March accrued 31 March during the during the 31 March

2006 Increase of inflation the Year 2007 benefit 2006 Year Year 2007

Total ($000) 2,534 469 395 – 3,003 469 2,534 469 – 3,003
Total (£000) 1,334 247 208 – 1,581 247 1,334 247 – 1,581

Note: calculations assume US annual inflation rate of 2.93%. The GBP/USD exchange rate used in the calculations is 1.90.

Angela Ahrendts 
The Group makes an annual contribution equal to 30% of Angela Ahrendts’ base salary to the Burberry Defined Contribution Pension Plan.
For the year to 31 March 2007, the value of the Group’s contribution was £206,853 (2006: £51,871).

Stacey Cartwright
Stacey Cartwright is entitled to an annual contribution equal to 30% of base salary into her pension plan and has elected that a portion 
be paid as a cash supplement. For the year to 31 March 2007, the cash supplement was £98,720 (2006: £55,130).The contribution 
paid into her personal pension plan was £32,530 in the year to 31 March 2007 (2006: £21,120). 

Interests in the Co-Investment Plan
No awards were made under the Co-Investment Plan in respect of the financial year to 31 March 2006.

The interests of the executive directors, who served during the financial year, in shares granted under this scheme as at 31 March 2007
were as follows.

Number of Invested Shares Number of Matching Shares(1)

Purchased Sold As at Awarded Lapsed As at
during during 31 March during during 31 March Vesting

the year the year 2007 the Year the Year 2007 date

Rose Marie Bravo – – 102,683 – – 282,571 21/07/2008
Stacey Cartwright – – 38,295 – – 104,580 21/07/2008

(1) The Matching Share awards are made on a gross basis and are taxed at the point of vesting. The market value of these awards at the date of grant (21 July 2005) was
428.4p per share.
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Interests in the 2004 RSP 
The interests of the executive directors in ordinary shares subject to awards under this plan as at 31 March 2007 were as follows. 

Number of ordinary shares

As at Granted As at 
31 March during 31 March Vesting 

2006 the year 2007 date(3) Expiry date

Stacey Cartwright 46,296 – 46,296 02/08/2007 02/08/2014
23,148 – 23,148 02/08/2008 02/08/2014
23,148 – 23,148 02/08/2009 02/08/2014 
66,568 – 66,568 21/07/2008 21/07/2015
33,284 – 33,284 21/07/2009 21/07/2015
33,284 – 33,284 21/07/2010 21/07/2015 

– 47,418(1) 47,418 10/08/2009 10/08/2016
– 23,709(1) 23,709 10/08/2010 10/08/2016
– 23,710(1) 23,710 10/08/2011 10/08/2016
– 11,854(2) 11,854 27/11/2009 27/11/2016
– 5,927(2) 5,927 27/11/2010 27/11/2016
– 5,928(2) 5,928 27/11/2011 27/11/2016

(1) The market value of these awards at the date of grant was 474.00p per share.
(2) The market value of these awards at the date of grant was 590.50p per share.
(3) See page 67 for vesting criteria.

On 31 January 2006, Angela Ahrendts was granted a one-off award under the terms of her service agreement over 508,474 ordinary
shares. The rules applicable to the award are the same as for the 2004 RSP other than in respect of the time of vesting. The interests 
of Angela Ahrendts in shares subject to this award as at 31 March 2007 were as follows.

Number of ordinary shares

As at Granted As at 
31 March during 31 March Vesting 

2006 the year 2007 date(1) Expiry date

Angela Ahrendts 254,237 – 254,237 01/12/2008 31/01/2016
127,118 – 127,118 01/12/2009 31/01/2016
127,119 – 127,119 01/12/2010 31/01/2016

(1) See page 67 for vesting criteria.

Interests in the Burberry Group plc SIP
On 20 August 2004, all qualifying employees based in the UK were awarded shares under the SIP. The interests of the executive directors
in shares under this scheme as at 31 March 2007 were as follows. 

Number of ordinary shares

As at Granted As at 
31 March during 31 March Exercise Vesting 

2006 the year 2007 price date Expiry date(1)

Stacey Cartwright 800 – 800 Nil 20/08/2007

(1) No date has been specified when awards lapse. The cessation date of the trust in which the awards are held is 18 July 2082. 
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Interests in the Burberry Group plc SAYE Scheme
On 23 June 2006, options were granted under the SAYE scheme to the following executive directors:

Number of ordinary shares Exercise period

As at Granted Exercised/ As at 
Date of 31 March during lapsed during 31 March

grant 2006 the year the year 2007 From to Exercise price (p)

Angela Ahrendts 23/06/2006 – 2,667 – 2,667 01/09/2009 28/02/2010 350.5
Stacey Cartwright 23/06/2006 – 2,667 – 2,667 01/09/2009 28/02/2010 350.5

Market price of the Company’s ordinary shares
Details of the market price of the Company’s ordinary shares are shown in the table below.

Year to 31 March

2007 2006

At the year end 653.0p 464.0p
Highest price during the year 677.5p 475.0p
Lowest price during the year (Offer price at IPO: 230p) 411.3p 358.0p

Service agreements 
Attracting the best talent in the global luxury goods business can require fixed contract terms which result in termination payments in excess
of one year’s remuneration. Burberry does not offer such terms unless the Remuneration Committee considers it absolutely necessary 
in the particular circumstances to attract a highly talented individual and even in these circumstances will ensure that, after an initial period,
termination payments will not exceed one year’s remuneration. Save for the service contract of Angela Ahrendts, there are no service
contracts for any director which could result in termination payments of more than one year’s remuneration. 

Rose Marie Bravo 
Rose Marie Bravo was employed by Burberry as Chief Executive under a service agreement dated 28 May 2002 which was amended
in June 2004 and October 2005. 

The 2005 amendment addressed Rose Marie Bravo ceasing to be the Chief Executive on 30 June 2006 and becoming Vice-Chairman
on a part-time basis. Following the change in Rose Marie Bravo’s role, all unvested shares under the IPO Restricted Share Plan vested in
accordance with the terms of her service agreement and Rose Marie Bravo receives a reduced annual salary of US$650,000 for a minimum
of 12 days’ work a month. Her maximum bonus entitlement remained 100% of annual salary. Benefits continue to be paid to Rose Marie
Bravo as provided for under her existing current service agreement. However all allowances ceased with effect from 31 December 2006. 

If Rose Marie Bravo’s service agreement is terminated without cause or as a result of a change of control she would be entitled to 12 months’
salary and half her maximum bonus entitlement.

Angela Ahrendts 
Angela Ahrendts relocated from the US to the UK and commenced her employment with Burberry as an executive director on 9 January
2006 under a service agreement dated 10 October 2005. She was appointed Chief Executive Officer on 1 July 2006. Angela Ahrendts 
may terminate the service agreement on six months’ notice. 

Under the service agreement: 

– The Group agreed to pay Angela Ahrendts a special recruitment and retention bonus of US$4m payable in four tranches, the first 
two of which were paid on 9 January 2006 and 9 October 2006. The remaining payments will be made on 9 July 2007 and 9 
January 2008. 

– Angela Ahrendts is eligible for a personal achievement bonus subject to achievement of objectives set by the Remuneration Committee
of up to US$4m – US$1.75m was paid on 31 December 2006, up to US$1.5m will be payable on 31 December 2007 and up to
US$750,000 will be payable on 31 December 2008.

If Angela Ahrendts’ service agreement is terminated without cause before January 2008, she would be entitled to two times her annual 
salary and two times her maximum annual bonus opportunity and the balance of her recruitment and personal achievement bonus. Her
share incentives would vest on a time pro-rated basis subject to a minimum vesting of 50% in respect of her restricted shares. She would
also receive her pension and overseas allowances for a further 12 months, together with relocation expenses. 
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After January 2008 if Burberry terminates the agreement without cause but in circumstances where the Remuneration Committee
determines that Angela Ahrendts’ performance or that of the Group does not meet the financial expectations of the Board or shareholders,
her entitlements in respect of salary and bonus will be reduced so that she will receive 12 months’ salary and half of her maximum bonus
opportunity. However, if Burberry terminates the service agreement after January 2008 in circumstances where there is not poor performance
as described above, then the termination payments will remain as provided for in the paragraph above, save that the entitlements in respect
of salary and bonus would decline to 12 months’ salary and 12 months’ maximum bonus opportunity over the period from January 2009 to
January 2010. 

If any person acquires control of Burberry before 9 January 2008, Angela Ahrendts can terminate her employment on 30 days’ notice 
and her entitlement will be determined on the basis of poor performance as set out in the paragraph above. 

Stacey Cartwright
Stacey Cartwright is employed by Burberry as Chief Financial Officer under a service agreement dated 17 November 2003. 
Her term of appointment commenced on 1 March 2004. 

Burberry may terminate Stacey Cartwright’s appointment by giving 12 months’ written notice. Stacey Cartwright may terminate 
her employment by giving six months’ written notice. 

External appointments
The Group recognises that executive directors may be invited to become non-executive directors of other companies and that such
appointments can broaden their knowledge and experience to the benefit of the Group. Rose Marie Bravo served as a non-executive
director of Tiffany & Co. and The Estée Lauder Companies Inc. during the year, and received the following remuneration. 

Tiffany & Co. $62,000 and 10,000 options
The Estée Lauder Companies Inc. $78,000 in cash, 634.34 stock units (share payout)

(including dividend entitlement) and 5,000 share options

Non-executive director remuneration
John Peace was appointed to the Board of the Company on 7 June 2002 as non-executive Chairman. David Tyler was formally appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company on 7 June 2002. Guy Peyrelongue and Philip Bowman were each appointed as non-executive
directors of the Company on 21 June 2002. Stephanie George was appointed as a non-executive director on 31 March 2006.

Non-executive directors are appointed for an initial three-year term after which they may continue to serve for a maximum period of six years,
subject to six months’ notice by either party.

Fees for non-executive directors are determined by the Board within the limits set by the Articles of Association and having regard to market
practice. The base fee paid to the non-executive directors was £45,000 per annum, with an additional £8,000 and £10,000 per annum paid
to the chairmen of the Remuneration and Audit committees respectively.

As part of the Group’s shareholding guidelines, non-executive directors are expected to acquire shares with a market value of a minimum of
£6,000 worth of shares for each year of their appointment. The shares must be held for the longer of three years from date of purchase and
the duration of a non-executive director’s term on the Board.

Non-executive director fees
Fees

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

John Peace(1) 100 100 
Philip Bowman 55 53 
Stephanie George 45 –
Guy Peyrelongue 53 52 
David Tyler(1) 45 44 
Total 298 285(2)

(1) The fees for John Peace (Chairman) and David Tyler were paid to GUS throughout the year.
(2) Figures disclosed include amounts relating to a former director (£36,000).
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IPO PLANS 
The Burberry IPO Restricted Share Plan and IPO Share Option Scheme 
On 11 July 2002 awards were made to executive directors serving at the time under the IPO Restricted Share Plan (“IPO RSP”) and IPO
Share Option Scheme (“IPO Option Scheme”) in respect of services provided prior to the IPO. The primary purpose of these one-off awards
was to retain senior executives, before and following the IPO. The plans were described in detail in the IPO documentation and subsequent
annual reports. The interests of the executive directors, who served during the financial year, in shares subject to these awards as at
31 March 2007 were as follows. 

IPO RSP shares

As at Lapsed Vested As at 
31 March during during 31 March Vesting 

2006 the year the year 2007 date

Rose Marie Bravo 2,500,000 – 2,500,000(1) – 01/07/2006

(1) Rose Marie Bravo’s 2,500,000 IPO RSP shares were sold at a price of 446p per share on 14 July 2006.

The Burberry Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2002 
The interests of the executive directors, who served during the financial year, in options granted under this scheme as at 31 March 2007
were as follows. 

Number of ordinary shares under option

Granted/
As at lapsed Exercised As at 

31 March during during 31 March Exercise Vesting Expiry
2006 the year the year 2007 price date date

Rose Marie Bravo 277,777 – 277,777(1) – 258p 12/06/2006 12/06/2013
277,778 – 277,778(1) – 378p 02/08/2005 02/08/2014
277,778 – 277,778(1) – 378p 02/08/2006 02/08/2014
277,777 – – 277,777 378p 02/08/2007 02/08/2014
277,778 – 277,778(1) – 423p 21/07/2006 21/07/2015
277,778 – – 277,778 423p 21/07/2007 21/07/2015
277,777 – – 277,777 423p 21/07/2008 21/07/2015

Stacey Cartwright 61,729 – – 61,729 378p 02/08/2005 02/08/2014
61,729 – – 61,729 378p 02/08/2006 02/08/2014
61,727 – – 61,727 378p 02/08/2007 02/08/2014

(1) The market price when Rose Marie Bravo exercised her options on 18 January 2007 was 634p.

Gains made by directors on share options and awards 
The table below shows gains made by individual directors from the exercise of Burberry share options, together with the gain from the
exercise of IPO RSP awards, during the year to 31 March 2007. The gains are calculated as at the exercise date. 

Year to 
31 March 

2007
£’000

Rose Marie Bravo £14,203
Total gains on share options and awards £14,203 
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Directors’ interests 
The beneficial interests of the directors of the Company in the ordinary shares of Burberry Group plc (in addition to interests in options and
share awards) are shown below:

Holding of Holdings of Holdings of
ordinary shares ordinary shares Restricted Shares

as at as at as at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 31 March 2007

Angela Ahrendts – – 508,474(1)

Rose Marie Bravo 102,683(2) 155,762(2) 282,571(3)

Stacey Cartwright 48,295(2)(4) 48,295(2)(4) 448,854(5)

John Peace 155,738 155,738 –
Philip Bowman 35,000 35,000 –
Guy Peyrelongue 6,522 6,522 –
David Tyler 48,664 48,664 –
Stephanie George – – –

(1) Angela Ahrendts was granted a one-off award over 508,474 shares, the rules applicable to the award are the same as for the 2004 RSP other than in respect of the
time of vesting.

(2) This includes the invested shares under the Co-Investment Plan.
(3) This includes the unvested matching shares under the Co-Investment Plan.
(4) This excludes 800 free shares granted under the SIP (see page 69 for further details). In addition, as at 31 March 2007, Stacey Cartwright holds a non-beneficial interest

in one share of Swiss Fr 1,000 in Burberry (Suisse) S.A. held in order to comply with the provisions of the Articles of Association of that company. The share capital of
Burberry (Suisse) S.A. consists of 4,424 shares.

(5) This includes unvested restricted shares granted under the 2004 RSP and the unvested Matching shares under the Co-Investment Plan.

There are no other non-beneficial interests.

As potential beneficiaries under the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust (“the Trust”), Rose Marie Bravo, Angela Ahrendts and Stacey Cartwright
are deemed to have an interest in the Company’s ordinary shares held by the Trust. The Trust held 2,865,655 ordinary shares as at
31 March 2007. 

There has been no change in the above interests between 31 March 2007 and 15 May 2007. 

IFRS 
Appropriate adjustments have been made, where relevant, to performance targets and tests under the Company’s incentive plans to ensure
consistency of measurement during the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS reporting.

Audit statement 
In their audit opinion on page 75, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP refer to their audit of the disclosures required by Part 3 of Schedule 7A 
to the Companies Act 1985. These comprise the following disclosures in this remuneration report: the disclosures under the headings
“Aggregate emoluments by director” “Directors’ pension entitlements”, “Interests in the Co-Investment Plan”, “Interests in the 2004 RSP”,
“Interests in the Burberry Group plc SIP”, “Interests in the Burberry Group plc SAYE Scheme” on pages 67 to 70; the disclosures under 
the heading “Non-executive director remuneration” and “IPO plans” on pages 71 to 72. 

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by: 

David Tyler
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

23 May 2007
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, 
the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters and the
Group and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared
the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European
Union, and the parent Company financial statements and the Report
on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). The Group and
parent Company financial statements are required by law to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

– select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently.

– make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent.

– state that the Group financial statements comply with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, and with regard to the parent
Company financial statements that applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements.

– prepare the Group and parent Company financial statements 
on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group will continue in business, in which case there
should be supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary. 

The directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the Group financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the
parent Company financial statements and the Report on Directors’
Remuneration and related matters comply with the Companies Act
1985. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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THE MEMBERS OF BURBERRY GROUP PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of Burberry Group
plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the Group
Income Statement, Group Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense, Group Balance Sheet, Group Cash Flow Statement, and
the related notes. These Group financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent Company financial
statements of Burberry Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2007
and on the information in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and
related matters that is described as having been audited. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report
and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report,
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the
Company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235
of the Companies Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or 
into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by 
our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the Group 
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance 
with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given 
in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Group financial
statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes
that specific information presented in the Business and Financial
Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section 
of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received
all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the Combined
Code (2003) specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are
not required to consider whether the Board’s statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance procedures
or its risk and control procedures.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group financial
statements. The other information comprises only the Chairman’s
Letter, Chief Executive’s Letter, Financial Highlights, Business and
Financial Review, Risks, the Directors’ Report, the unaudited part
of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters,
the Corporate Governance Statement and the Corporate Social
Responsibility Statement. We consider the implications for our 
report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the Group financial statements. 
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant 
to the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the Group
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied 
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the Group financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of 
the presentation of information in the Group financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

– the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, of the
state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 March 2007 and of its profit
and cash flows for the year then ended.

– the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

– the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the Group financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

23 May 2007
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Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

Turnover 3 850.3 742.9
Cost of sales (329.0) (296.8)

Gross profit 521.3 446.1
Net operating expenses 4 (364.3) (291.6)

Operating profit 157.0 154.5

Financing

Interest receivable and similar income 6 5.5 4.3
Interest payable and similar charges 6 (6.2) (1.8)

Net finance (charge)/income 6 (0.7) 2.5

Profit before taxation 5 156.3 157.0
Taxation 7 (46.1) (50.6)

Attributable profit for the year 110.2 106.4

The profit for the year is attributable to the equity holders of the Company and relates to continuing operations.

Pence per share
Earnings per share
– basic 8 25.2p 22.9p
– diluted 8 24.7p 22.3p

£m £m

Non-GAAP measures
Operating profit 157.0 154.5
Project Atlas costs 4 21.6 11.1
Treorchy closure costs 4 6.5 –

Adjusted operating profit 185.1 165.6

Pence per share
Adjusted earnings per share
– basic 8 29.7p 24.7p
– diluted 8 29.1p 24.1p

Dividends per share
– interim 9 2.875p 2.5p
– proposed final (not recognised as a liability at 31 March) 9 7.625p 5.5p
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INCOME AND EXPENSE

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

Attributable profit for the year 110.2 106.4

Cash flow hedges – gains/(losses) deferred in equity 22 9.1 (3.8)
Foreign currency translation differences 22 (28.9) 15.6
Net actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme 22 (0.5) 0.7
Tax on items taken directly to equity 22 (1.5) 1.5

Net income recognised directly in equity (21.8) 14.0
Cash flow hedges – transferred to the income statement 22 (5.9) (0.7)
Tax on items transferred from equity 22 1.8 0.2

Net income recognised directly in equity net of transfers (25.9) 13.5

Recognised income for the year 84.3 119.9

Total impact on adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 – 1.9

Total recognised income for the year 84.3 121.8

All the recognised income and expense for the year is attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 133.6 135.4
Property, plant and equipment 11 162.7 167.0
Deferred taxation assets 12 24.6 16.6
Trade and other receivables 13 5.1 4.2

326.0 323.2

Current assets
Stock 14 149.8 124.2
Trade and other receivables 13 137.2 108.0
Derivative financial assets 15 5.3 2.8
Income tax recoverable – 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents 16 131.4 113.7

423.7 348.9

Total assets 749.7 672.1

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities 17 (10.4) (14.6)
Deferred taxation liabilities 12 (10.2) (10.5)
Retirement benefit obligations 18 (1.8) (1.8)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 – (2.8)

(22.4) (29.7)

Current liabilities
Bank overdrafts and borrowings 20 (134.2) (101.2)
Derivative financial liabilities 15 (0.5) (2.1)
Trade and other payables 21 (170.7) (126.9)
Income tax liabilities (25.0) (25.6)

(330.4) (255.8)

Total liabilities (352.8) (285.5)

Net assets 396.9 386.6

EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Ordinary share capital 22 0.2 0.2
Share premium account 22 167.3 151.8
Capital reserve 22 26.0 25.8
Hedging reserve 22 1.8 (0.2)
Foreign currency translation reserve 22 (6.2) 21.2
Retained earnings 22 207.8 187.8

Total equity 396.9 386.6

Approved by the Board on 23 May 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

John Peace Stacey Cartwright
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit 157.0 154.5
Depreciation 25.9 22.5
Amortisation 1.8 2.0
Impairment (releases)/charges (1.0) 0.4
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.1 (1.6)
Charges in respect of employee share incentive schemes 10.8 7.4
Increase in stocks (33.4) (17.8)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (33.8) 2.2
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 32.8 (21.2)

Cash generated from operations 161.2 148.4
Interest received 4.6 3.0
Interest paid (6.2) (1.4)
Taxation paid (45.8) (43.6)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 113.8 106.4

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (34.3) (30.7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 3.6
Payment of deferred consideration (1.4) (19.2)
Acquisition of subsidiary 26 (0.1) (4.4)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (35.7) (50.7)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid in the year 22 (36.5) (32.8)
Issue of ordinary share capital 0.6 3.7
Purchase of shares through share buy back 22 (62.2) (191.6)
Sale of own shares by ESOPs 22 6.1 2.4
Draw down on loan facility 20 10.0 50.0

Net cash outflow from financing activities (82.0) (168.3)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3.9) (112.6)
Effect of exchange rate changes on opening balances (1.4) 5.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 62.5 169.9

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 57.2 62.5

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 16 72.0 70.2
Short-term deposits 16 59.4 43.5

Cash and cash equivalents as per the balance sheet 131.4 113.7
Bank overdrafts 20 (74.2) (51.2)

Cash and cash equivalents per the cash flow statement 57.2 62.5
Bank borrowings 20 (60.0) (50.0)

Net (debt)/cash (2.8) 12.5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Basis of preparation

Burberry Group is a luxury goods manufacturer, wholesaler and retailer in Europe, North America and Asia Pacific; licensing activity is also
carried out, principally in Japan. All of the companies which comprise Burberry Group are owned by Burberry Group plc (“the Company”)
directly or indirectly. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Burberry Group have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), IFRIC interpretations and parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007
IFRS 8 Operating Segments Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2006
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 November 2006
IFRIC 11 IFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material financial impact on the
financial statements of the Group.

The parent Company has not adopted IFRS as its statutory reporting basis. Audited financial statements for the parent Company have been
prepared in accordance with UK GAAP.

Basis of consolidation
The Group’s annual financial statements comprise those of the parent Company and its subsidiaries, presented as a single economic entity.
The results of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. 

The effects of intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the Group financial statements. 

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred out of the Group. Where there is a loss of control of a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include
the results for the portion of the reporting period during which Burberry Group plc had control. 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 
No critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) have been made by management in the process of applying the
entity’s accounting policies which would have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
Preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires that management make certain estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. If in the future such
estimates and assumptions, which are based on management’s best judgement at the date of the financial statements, deviate from actual
circumstances, the original estimate and assumptions will be modified as appropriate in the period in which the circumstances change.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Such estimates include, but are not limited to goodwill and asset impairment, stock provisioning, income and deferred tax. These are
discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill
The Group is required to test whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The use of this method requires the estimation of future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing operation of the cash generating unit and the choice of a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When a review for impairment is conducted, the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is determined
based on value-in-use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

1 Basis of preparation continued

Stock provisioning
The Group manufactures and sells luxury goods and is subject to changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, it is
necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of stocks and the associated provisioning required. Stock provisioning is based 
on the age and condition of stock, as well as anticipated saleability.

Income and deferred taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes in 
each territory. There are many transactions and calculations during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax determination 
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts which were initially recorded, such differences will impact the 
income tax and deferred tax provisions and assets in the period in which such determination is made.

2 Accounting policies

The consolidated financial information of Burberry Group plc and all its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with IFRS. 

The principal accounting policies of the Group are:

a) Turnover
Turnover, which is stated excluding Value Added Tax and other sales related taxes, is the amount receivable for goods supplied (less returns,
trade discounts and allowances) and royalties receivable.

Wholesale sales are recognised when goods are despatched to trade customers, as this reflects the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, with provisions made for expected returns and allowances. Retail sales, returns and allowances are reflected at the dates
of transactions with customers. Provisions for returns on retail and wholesale sales are calculated based on historical return levels. Royalties
receivable from licensees are accrued as earned on the basis of the terms of the relevant royalty agreement, which is typically on the basis
of production volumes.

b) Share schemes
Share incentive plans
The cost of the share incentives received by employees (including directors) is measured with reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments awarded at the date of grant. The Black-Scholes option pricing model is used to determine the fair value of the award made.
The impact of performance conditions is not considered in determining the fair value on the date of grant, except for conditions linked to 
the price of Burberry Group plc shares i.e. market conditions. Vesting conditions which relate to non-market conditions are allowed for in 
the assumptions used for the number of options expected to vest. The estimate of the number of options expected to vest is revised at 
each Balance Sheet date. 

The cost of the share-based incentives is recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the awards, with a corresponding increase
in equity.

The proceeds received from the exercise of the equity instruments awarded, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium. 

c) Operating leases
Burberry Group is a lessee of property. Gross rental expenditure in respect of operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the leases. Certain rental expense is determined on the basis of turnover achieved in specific retail locations and is accrued for on
that basis.

Lease premiums and incentives
Amounts paid to acquire the rights to a lease (“Lease premiums”) are written off in equal annual instalments over the life of the lease contract.
Lease incentives, typically rent free periods and capital contributions, are recognised over the full term of the lease. 

d) Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to Burberry Group plc’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the shareholders.
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2 Accounting policies continued

e) Pension costs
Defined benefit schemes
Prior to the demerger of the Group from GUS plc on 13 December 2005, it was agreed that existing employees of the Burberry Group who
were participating in the GUS defined benefit pension scheme would continue to do so until 31 December 2007 or such earlier date as
required by HM Customs & Revenue or by Burberry. When eventual withdrawal of members of the Burberry Group from the GUS pension
scheme takes place on or before 31 December 2007, Burberry must pay any liabilities due under section 75 or 75A of the Pensions Act
1995. GUS has indemnified Burberry on an after tax basis against any amounts which are in excess of £1.25m. 

Eligible employees of Burberry Group also participate in defined benefit schemes in the US, France and Taiwan. 

Where arrangements are funded, assets are held in independently administrated trusts. The cost of providing defined benefit schemes
to participating Burberry employees is charged to the Income Statement over the anticipated period of employment.

The asset or liability recognised in the Balance Sheet, in respect of defined benefit schemes, represents Burberry’s share of the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date, less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised
actuarial gains and losses and past service costs.

Net actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly to equity through the Group Statement of Recognised Income and Expense (“SORIE”).

Defined contribution schemes
Burberry Group eligible employees also participate in defined contribution pension schemes, the principal one being in the UK with its assets
held in an independently administered fund. The cost of providing these benefits to participating Burberry employees is recognised in the
Income Statement and comprises the amount of contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the year.

f) Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is the excess of purchase consideration over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill on acquisition is recorded
as an intangible fixed asset. Fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that existed at the date of
acquisition, reflecting their condition at that date. Adjustments are also made to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into
alignment with those of Burberry Group. 

Goodwill is assigned an indefinite useful economic life. Impairment reviews are performed annually, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Trademarks and trading licences
The cost of securing and renewing trademarks and other intellectual property is capitalised as an intangible fixed asset and amortised
by equal annual instalments over its useful economic life, typically ten years. The useful economic life of trademarks and other intellectual
property is determined on a case-by-case basis, in accordance with the terms of the underlying agreement.

Computer software
The cost of acquiring computer software (including licences and separately identifiable external development costs) is capitalised as 
an intangible asset at purchase price, plus any directly attributable cost of preparing that asset for its intended use. Software costs are
amortised by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful economic lives, which are up to five years.

g) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost, based on historical revalued amounts, less accumulated depreciation 
and provision to reflect any impairment in value. 

Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost or deemed cost, less residual value, of the assets in equal
annual instalments over their estimated useful lives at the following rates:

Land Not depreciated
Freehold buildings Up to 50 years
Leaseholds – less than 50 years expired Over the unexpired term of the lease
Plant, machinery, fixtures and fittings 3 – 8 years
Retail fixtures and fittings 2 – 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment Up to 5 years

Profit/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Profits and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment represent the difference between the net proceeds and net book value at the
date of sale. Disposals are accounted for when the relevant transaction becomes unconditional.
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2 Accounting policies continued

h) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

i) Stock
Stock and work in progress are valued on a first-in-first-out basis at the lower of cost (including an appropriate proportion of production
overhead) and net realisable value. Provision is made to reduce cost to no more than net realisable value having regard to the age and
condition of stock, as well as its anticipated saleability.

j) Taxation including deferred tax
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement
because it excludes items of income or expense which are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items which are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates which have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, if the temporary difference arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit 
or loss, it is exempt from deferred tax. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

k) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued
or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

l) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the Balance Sheet when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A financial asset is no longer recognised when, the contractual rights to the cash flow expire or substantially all risks and
rewards of the asset are transferred. A financial liability is no longer recognised, when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. 

The Group’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, borrowings and
derivative instruments, the accounting for which is explained below.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term deposits with an original maturity date of three months or less, held with banks,
liquidity funds as well as bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are recorded under current liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a third-party with no intention of trading
the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the Balance Sheet date. Receivables
are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Income Statement.
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2 Accounting policies continued

l) Financial instruments continued
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables arise when the Group acquires money, goods or services directly from a supplier. They are included in current
liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the Balance Sheet date. Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised costs and
the difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Income Statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the Balance Sheet date.

Derivative instruments
Burberry Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates arising on certain trading
transactions. The principal derivative instruments used are forward currency contracts taken out to hedge highly probable future royalty
receivables and product purchases. 

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the trade date and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: (1) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets and liabilities or a firm commitment
(fair value hedge); or (2) hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges); or (3) classified as held for trading.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or loss immediately, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that is attributable to the hedged risk.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are deferred in equity.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Amounts deferred in equity
are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss. If it is expected that all or a portion of a loss
deferred in equity will not be recovered in one or more future periods or the hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur the amount
that is not expected to be recovered will be reclassified to the Income Statement. If a derivative instrument is not designated as a hedge,
the gain or loss on revaluation is recognised in the Income Statement.

m) Foreign currency translation 
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).

Transactions in foreign currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies within each entity in the Group, are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are held at the year end,
are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the Balance Sheet date. Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in the Income Statement in the period in which they arise, except where these exchange differences form part of a net investment
in overseas subsidiaries of Burberry Group, in which case such differences are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve
within equity. 

Translation of the results of overseas businesses
The results of overseas subsidiaries are translated into the Group’s presentation currency of Sterling each month at the weighted average
exchange rate for the month according to the phasing of the Group’s trading results. The weighted average exchange rate is used, as it 
is considered to approximate the actual exchange rates on the date of the transactions. The assets and liabilities of such undertakings are
translated at the year end exchange rates. Differences arising on the retranslation of the opening net investment in subsidiary companies,
and on the translation of their results, are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve within equity. 
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2 Accounting policies continued

m) Foreign currency translation continued
The principal exchange rates used were as follows:

Weighted average profit rate Closing rate

Year to Year to Year to Year to
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2007 2006 2007 2006

Euro 1.49 1.46 1.47 1.43
US Dollar 1.91 1.78 1.97 1.74
Hong Kong Dollar 14.80 13.77 15.38 13.48
Korean Won 1,801 1,797 1,851 1,688

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

The average exchange rate achieved by Burberry Group on its Yen royalty income, taking into account its use of Yen forward sale 
contracts on a monthly basis approximately 12 months in advance of royalty receipts, was Yen 199.2: £1 in the year to 31 March 2007
(2006: Yen 190.3: £1).

n) Non-GAAP measures
Non-GAAP measures are presented in order to provide a clear and consistent presentation of the underlying performance of the Group’s
ongoing business. Such presentation will be prepared on a consistent basis in the future.

3 Segmental analysis

(i) Primary segment – analysis by origin
The geographical segment from which the products or services are supplied to a third-party or another segment defines analysis by origin. 
All licensing activity is recorded in Europe since the intellectual property of Burberry is owned by Burberry Limited, a UK-based subsidiary. 

(a) Turnover and profit before taxation – by origin of business
Europe comprises operations in France, Germany, Italy, Switzerland, Austria, Belgium, Czech Republic, Hungary and the UK. North 
America comprises operations in the USA. Asia Pacific comprises operations in Australia, Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Singapore 
and Taiwan. 

Europe (excluding Spain) North America Asia Pacific Spain Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Year to 31 March £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Gross segment turnover 433.9 386.6(1) 192.6 173.2 214.4 182.4 177.6 154.9 1,018.5 897.1(1)

Inter-segment turnover (163.2) (153.2)(1) – – (1.3) (0.5) (3.7) (0.5) (168.2) (154.2)(1)

Turnover 270.7 233.4 192.6 173.2 213.1 181.9 173.9 154.4 850.3 742.9

Operating profit 96.9 104.8 12.5 6.3 34.2 22.3 13.4 21.1 157.0 154.5
Net finance (charge)/income (0.7) 2.5

Profit before taxation 156.3 157.0
Taxation (46.1) (50.6)

Attributable profit for the year 110.2 106.4

(1) Restated for inter-segment turnover and reclassifications

The results above are stated after the allocation of costs of a Group wide nature. Inter-segment turnover reflects the level of revenue between
segments and is priced at arm’s length.
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(b) Other segmental items – by origin of business
Europe (excluding Spain) North America Asia Pacific Spain Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Year to 31 March £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Capital expenditure 15.8 13.6 11.5 12.5 3.0 2.9 8.5 4.0 38.8 33.0
Depreciation 10.1 8.1 8.2 7.7 2.5 2.3 5.1 4.4 25.9 22.5
Impairment charge – 0.6 – 0.2 – – – – – 0.8
Release of impairment charge (0.7) (0.4) (0.3) – – – – – (1.0) (0.4)
Amortisation 1.6 1.7 – – 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 1.8 2.0
Other non-cash expenses
– share-based payments 3.9 2.8 2.8 1.9 2.1 1.4 2.0 1.3 10.8 7.4

(c) Assets and liabilities – by origin of business
Europe (excluding Spain) North America Asia Pacific Spain Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
As at 31 March £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Segmental assets 179.1 142.3 143.8 145.9 33.8 28.7 120.1 103.5 476.8 420.4
Segmental liabilities (97.2) (67.5) (29.2) (25.5) (11.9) (12.8) (35.1) (30.9) (173.4) (136.7)

Net operating assets 81.9 74.8 114.6 120.4 21.9 15.9 85.0 72.6 303.4 283.7

Goodwill 116.9 121.2
Deferred consideration for acquisitions (10.0) (11.5)
Net (debt)/cash (2.8) 12.5
Taxation (including deferred taxation) (10.6) (19.3)

Net assets 396.9 386.6

(ii) Secondary segment – analysis by class of business (being the channels to market)
Retail Wholesale Total Retail and Wholesale Licensing Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Year to 31 March £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Gross segment turnover 410.1 318.5 495.0 469.4(1) 905.1 787.9(1) 86.1 81.1 991.2 869.0(1)

Inter-segment turnover – – (140.9) (126.1)(1) (140.9) 126.1(1) – – (140.9) (126.1)(1)

Turnover 410.1 318.5 354.1 343.3 764.2 661.8 86.1 81.1 850.3 742.9

Other segmental items
Segment assets 470.3 415.1(1) 6.5 5.3(1) 476.8 420.4
Capital expenditure 38.7 33.0 0.1 – 38.8 33.0
(1) Restated for inter-segment turnover and reclassifications

The results above are stated after the allocation of costs of a Group wide nature.

(iii) Additional information
Analysis of turnover is shown below as additional information:

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Turnover by product £m £m

Womenswear 305.5 249.3
Menswear 227.0 206.2
Accessories 211.2 189.2
Other 20.5 17.1

Wholesale and Retail 764.2 661.8
Licensing 86.1 81.1

Total 850.3 742.9

Number of directly operated stores, concessions and outlets open at 31 March 292 262
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3 Segmental analysis continued

(iii) Additional information continued
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Turnover by destination £m £m

Europe (excluding Spain) 229.8 191.5 
North America 196.5 177.9 
Asia Pacific 167.5 144.6 
Spain 151.8 134.1 
Rest of the World 18.6 13.7 

Wholesale and Retail 764.2 661.8 
Licensing 86.1 81.1 

Total 850.3 742.9 

4 Net operating expenses 
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Distribution costs (149.7) (125.9) 
Administrative expenses (excluding Atlas and Treorchy costs) (185.5) (156.3) 
Project Atlas costs (21.6) (11.1) 
Treorchy closure costs (6.5) – 
Property rental income under operating leases 0.1 0.1 
(Loss)/profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.1) 1.6 

Total (364.3) (291.6) 

Operating profit for the year to 31 March 2007 includes a charge of £21.6m (2006: £11.1m) relating to Project Atlas, our major infrastructure
redesign initiative, which was announced in May 2005. This project is designed to create a substantially stronger platform to support long-
term operations and growth of the Group through the redesign of Burberry’s business processes and systems. Investment in Project Atlas
is expected to total around £50m over the three year period to 31 March 2008. 

Burberry completed the closure of its polo shirt manufacturing facility in Treorchy, South Wales, during the year. This resulted in closure costs
of £6.5m. Included in the closure costs is £1.2m representing the present value of ten annual payments of £150,000 Burberry has committed
to the local Treorchy community (discounted at 4.5%).

5 Profit before taxation 
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Profit before taxation is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
– within cost of sales 1.5 1.3 
– within distribution costs 3.2 2.8 
– within administrative expenses 21.2 18.4 
Amortisation of trademarks and other intellectual property (included in administrative expenses) 1.8 2.0 
Fixed asset impairment charge relating to certain retail assets (included in administrative expenses) – 0.8 
Release of asset impairment charge relating to certain retail assets (included in administrative expenses) (1.0) (0.4) 
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.1 (1.6) 
Project Atlas costs 21.6 11.1 
Treorchy closure costs 6.5 – 
Employee costs (see note 28) 174.0 148.7 
Operating lease rentals 
– minimum lease payments 31.0 27.7 
– contingent rents 17.1 13.5 
Auditors’ remuneration 2.8 2.4 
Net exchange (gain)/loss included in income statement (0.6) 0.8
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5 Profit before taxation continued

Auditors’ remuneration is further analysed as follows:
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Audit services in respect of the accounts of the Company 0.4 0.4 
Audit services in respect of the accounts of subsidiary companies 0.5 0.5 
Other audit services supplied pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.4 
Services relating to taxation
– compliance services 0.1 0.2 
– advisory services 1.7 0.9

Total 2.8 2.4

All work performed by the external auditors is controlled by an authorisation policy agreed by the Audit Committee. The over-riding principle
precludes the auditors from engaging in non-audit services that would compromise their independence. Non-audit services are provided by
the auditors where they are best placed to provide the service due to their previous experience or market leadership in a particular area.

6 Net finance (charge)/income
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Bank interest income 4.6 3.7 
Interest income receivable from GUS related companies – 0.1 
Other interest income 0.9 0.5 

Interest receivable and similar income 5.5 4.3 
Interest expense on bank loans and overdrafts (6.2) (1.8) 

Net finance (charge)/income (0.7) 2.5

7 Taxation

(i) Analysis of charge for the year recognised in the Income Statement
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Analysis of charge for the year £m £m

CURRENT TAX 
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year to 31 March 2007 at 30% (2006: 30%) 28.8 30.4 
Double taxation relief (7.4) (7.1) 
Adjustment in respect of prior years 1.9 0.4 

23.3 23.7 
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year 31.6 28.3 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (4.2) 1.4 

Total current tax 50.7 53.4 
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7 Taxation continued
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Analysis of charge for the year £m £m

DEFERRED TAX
UK deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (3.2) 0.2 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.6) 0.7 

(3.8) 0.9 
Foreign deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1.5) (1.9) 
Effects of changes in tax rates 0.5 – 
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2 (1.8) 

Total deferred tax (4.6) (2.8) 
Total current tax 50.7 53.4

Total tax on profit 46.1 50.6

(ii) Analysis of charge for the year recognised in equity
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

CURRENT TAX
Current tax credit on share options (retained earnings) (2.8) (0.6) 
Current tax credit on exchange differences on loans (foreign currency translation reserve) (1.3) (0.2) 

Total current tax recognised in equity (4.1) (0.8) 

DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax charge/(credit) on cash flow hedges recognised directly to equity (hedging reserve) 3.0 (1.5) 
Deferred tax credit on cash flow hedges settled during the year (hedging reserve) (1.8) (0.2) 
Deferred tax credit on share options (retained earnings) (4.4) (2.0) 
Deferred tax charge on actuarial gains/losses recognised during the year (retained earnings) – 0.2 
Deferred tax credit on exchange differences on loan (foreign currency translation reserve) (0.2) – 

Total deferred tax recognised in equity (3.4) (3.5) 

The tax rate applicable on profit varied from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK due to the following factors: 
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Tax at 30% on profit before taxation 46.9 47.1 
Rate adjustments relating to overseas profits (0.9) (0.9) 
Permanent differences 2.1 3.6 
Tax losses for which no deferred tax recognised 0.2 – 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (2.7) 0.8 
Adjustments to deferred tax relating to changes in tax rates 0.5 –

Total taxation 46.1 50.6

The advanced pricing agreement in relation to internal sales between the UK and USA, previously under negotiation with the UK and USA
Competent Authorities, has been finalised in the period. The net tax benefit to the Group has been recognised as a prior year adjustment
to the current tax charge. As part of the agreements with GUS plc (Burberry Group’s former parent company), certain tax liabilities, which
arise and relate to matters prior to 31 March 2002 will be met by GUS plc. Any liability arising after 1 April 2002 will be payable by the
Burberry Group.
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8 Earnings per share 
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on attributable profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year. Basic and diluted earnings per share before Atlas and Treorchy costs are also disclosed to indicate the
underlying profitability of Burberry Group. 

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Attributable profit for the year before Atlas and Treorchy costs 130.0 114.8
Effect of Atlas and Treorchy costs (after taxation) (19.8) (8.4)

Attributable profit for the year 110.2 106.4

The weighted average number of ordinary shares represents the weighted average number of Burberry Group plc ordinary shares in issue
throughout the year, excluding ordinary shares held in Burberry Group’s Employee Share Option Plans (“ESOPs”).

Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. In addition, account is taken
of any awards made under the share incentive schemes, which will have a dilutive effect when exercised.

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Millions Millions

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 437.8 464.4
Dilutive effect of the share incentive schemes 8.3 13.2

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 446.1 477.6

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Basic earnings per share Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share before Atlas and Treorchy costs 29.7 24.7
Effect of Atlas and Treorchy costs (4.5) (1.8)

Basic earnings per share 25.2 22.9

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Diluted earnings per share Pence Pence

Diluted earnings per share before Atlas and Treorchy costs 29.1 24.1
Effect of Atlas and Treorchy costs (4.4) (1.8)

Diluted earnings per share 24.7 22.3

9 Dividends
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Prior year final dividend paid (5.5p per share (2006: 4.5p)) – GUS group – 14.2
– other shareholders 24.0 7.3

Interim dividend paid (2.875p per share (2006: 2.5p)) – other shareholders 12.5 11.3

Total 36.5 32.8

A final dividend in respect of the year to 31 March 2007 of 7.625p (2006: 5.5p) per share, amounting to £33.1m (2006: £24.0m), has been
proposed for approval by the shareholders at the AGM subsequent to the Balance Sheet date. The final dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the year end and will be paid on 2 August 2007 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 6 July 2007. 
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10 Intangible assets
Trademarks and Computer

Goodwill trading licences software Total
Cost £m £m £m £m

As at 1 April 2005 114.0 11.8 5.2 131.0 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3.3 0.1 – 3.4 
Additions 3.9 0.1 4.9 8.9 

As at 31 March 2006 121.2 12.0 10.1 143.3 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (4.4) (0.3) (0.1) (4.8) 
Additions 0.1 0.7 3.8 4.6 

As at 31 March 2007 116.9 12.4 13.8 143.1 

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2005 – 2.3 3.5 5.8 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes – – 0.1 0.1 
Charge for the year – 0.9 1.1 2.0 

As at 31 March 2006 – 3.2 4.7 7.9 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes – (0.2) (0.2) 
Charge for the year – 0.9 0.9 1.8 

As at 31 March 2007 – 4.1 5.4 9.5 

Net book value
As at 31 March 2007 116.9 8.3 8.4 133.6 
As at 31 March 2006 121.2 8.8 5.4 135.4

Impairment testing of goodwill
The cash generating units which have the most significant carrying values of goodwill allocated to them are Spain and Korea. The carrying
value of the goodwill allocated to these cash generating units is:

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Spain 86.9 89.1 
Korea 22.3 23.1 
Other 7.7 9.0 

Total 116.9 121.2

At 31 March 2007 no impairment was recognised (2006: nil), as the recoverable amount of the goodwill for each cash generating unit
exceeded its carrying value. The recoverable amount has been determined based on value in use. The value in use calculation was
performed using pre-tax cash flow projections for 2007/08 based on financial plans approved by management. No growth has been
assumed in the cash flow projections beyond this period, (2006: 3%). These cash flows were discounted at a rate of 13.6% (2006: 12%)
for Spain and 12.5% (2006: 11%) for Korea, being Burberry Group’s pre-tax weighted average cost of capital adjusted for country specific
tax rates. 
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11 Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures, Assets

Freehold land and Leasehold fittings and in the course
buildings improvements equipment of construction Total

Cost £m £m £m £m £m

As at 1 April 2005 82.0 55.5 93.7 4.6 235.8 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3.7 3.8 2.9 0.2 10.6 
Additions 0.1 8.7 17.0 2.2 28.0 
Disposals – (0.3) (2.3) – (2.6) 
Reclassifications 0.3 3.7 0.3 (4.3) – 
Acquisition of subsidiary – – 0.6 – 0.6 

As at 31 March 2006 86.1 71.4 112.2 2.7 272.4 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (5.8) (7.1) (5.1) (0.2) (18.2) 
Additions 0.3 11.3 17.8 4.8 34.2 
Disposals (0.1) (2.1) (7.6) – (9.8) 
Reclassifications – 0.6 1.4 (2.0) – 

As at 31 March 2007 80.5 74.1 118.7 5.3 278.6 

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2005 17.2 13.3 50.9 – 81.4 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.7 0.6 1.6 – 2.9 
Charge for the year 2.5 4.3 15.7 – 22.5 
Impairment charge on certain retail assets – 0.1 0.3 – 0.4 
Disposals – (0.1) (1.7) – (1.8) 
Reclassifications 0.3 – (0.3) – – 

As at 31 March 2006 20.7 18.2 66.5 – 105.4 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1.3) (1.6) (2.9) – (5.8) 
Charge for the year 3.0 5.4 17.5 – 25.9 
Impairment release on certain retail assets – (0.1) (0.9) – (1.0) 
Disposals (0.1) (1.4) (7.1) – (8.6) 

As at 31 March 2007 22.3 20.5 73.1 – 115.9 

Net book amount
As at 31 March 2007 58.2 53.6 45.6 5.3 162.7 
As at 31 March 2006 65.4 53.2 45.7 2.7 167.0

During the year to 31 March 2007 the trading performance of certain European and North American retail store assets which had previously
been impaired were reviewed and due to improved trading conditions it was considered appropriate to release £1m of the impairment
provision (2006: £0.4m charge). This release has been included in net operating expenses in the Income Statement. The impairment release
was based on a review of the value of the assets in use and on pre-tax cash flows attributable to these assets in accordance with IAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”. Pre-tax cash flow projections are based on financial plans approved by management and extrapolated beyond the
budget year to the anticipated lease exit dates using growth rates and inflation rates appropriate to each country’s economic conditions.
The pre-tax discount rate used in these calculations was 11%. 

Based on a valuation report prepared by Colliers Conrad Ritblat Erdman, dated 16 May 2006, the existing use value of Burberry Group’s
ten most significant freehold properties is £144m (based on closing exchange rates at 31 March 2007). This valuation is higher than the net
book value of these assets. The directors do not intend to incorporate this valuation into the accounts but set out the valuation for information
purposes only.

The lease of the new global headquarters was signed in December 2006. The agreement incorporated a put option with the developers of
the site for the Haymarket property with an exercise date of no later than 31 March 2008. The agreed price is in excess of the current net
book value. 

92

BURBERRY GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2006/07

6891 Accounts 2006-07  25/6/07  10:25  Page 92



93

BURBERRY GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2006/07

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

12 Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, and to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are shown in the table below:

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Deferred tax assets 24.6 16.6 
Deferred tax liabilities (10.2) (10.5) 

Net amount 14.4 6.1 

The movement in the deferred tax account is as follows: 
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

As at 1 April 6.1 2.0 
Impact of adopting IAS 32 and IAS 39 – (1.5) 
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.3 (0.7) 
Credited to the income statement 4.6 2.8 
Credited to equity 3.4 3.5 

End of the year 14.4 6.1 

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration the off-setting of balances within the
same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised
stock profit

Accelerated and other
capital stock Share Derivative Unused tax 

allowances provisions schemes instruments losses Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 1 April 2005 16.4 (1.4) (0.4) – (0.7) 0.8 14.7 
Impact of adopting 
IAS 32 and IAS 39 – – – (0.1) – – (0.1) 
Effect of foreign 
exchange rate changes 1.2 (0.2) – – – 0.1 1.1 
Charged/(credited) to the 
income statement (1.7) (0.1) 0.4 – 0.2 (0.2) (1.4) 
Charged to equity – – – 0.1 – – 0.1
Other movements 0.1 (0.1) – – (0.2) (3.4) (3.6 )

As at 31 March 2006 16.0 (1.8) – – (0.7) (2.7) 10.8 
Effect of foreign 
exchange rate changes (1.6) 0.2 – – – (0.1) (1.5 )
Charged/(credited) to 
the income statement (0.8) (0.1) – – 0.2 0.1 (0.6) 
Charged to equity – – – 0.1 – – 0.1

As at 31 March 2007 13.6 (1.7) – 0.1 (0.5) (2.7) 8.8
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12 Deferred taxation continued

Deferred tax assets
Unrealised
stock profit

Accelerated and other
capital stock Share Derivative Unused tax 

allowances provisions schemes instruments losses Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2005 0.1 6.4 8.1 – 0.2 1.9 16.7
Impact of adopting 
IAS 32 and IAS 39 – – – (1.6) – – (1.6)
Effect of foreign 
exchange rate changes – 0.4 – – – – 0.4
(Charged)/credited to 
the income statement 0.6 0.5 (1.2) (0.2) – 1.7 1.4
(Charged)/credited to equity – – 2.0 1.8 – (0.2) 3.6
Other movements (0.6) 0.7 – – (0.2) (3.5) (3.6)

As at 31 March 2006 0.1 8.0 8.9 – – (0.1) 16.9
Effect of foreign 
exchange rate changes (0.1) (0.6) – – – (0.5) (1.2)
(Charged)/credited to 
the income statement 0.9 (0.6) 2.6 0.2 0.1 0.8 4.0
(Charged)/credited to equity – – 4.4 (1.1) – 0.2 3.5
Other movements – – (3.2) – – 3.2 –

As at 31 March 2007 0.9 6.8 12.7 (0.9) 0.1 3.6 23.2

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £6.7m (2006: £5.8m) in respect of losses amounting to
£18.6m (2006: £25.2m) that can be carried forward against the future taxable income. These losses have no set expiry date. Other deferred
tax assets of £0.1m (2006: £0.1m) were not recognised in respect of temporary differences totalling £0.1m (2006: £0.1m), as it was not
probable that there will be future taxable profits against which these assets can be offset. 

Deferred tax has not been recognised in respect of temporary differences of £85.1m (2006: £70.6m) relating to the unremitted earnings of
subsidiaries on the grounds that no remittance of profits retained at 31 March 2007 is required or intended in such a way that incremental 
tax would arise. 

13 Trade and other receivables
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Non-current
Deposits and prepayments 5.1 4.2

Total non-current trade and other receivables 5.1 4.2

Current
Trade receivables 114.7 93.6
Provision for doubtful debts (3.5) (4.2)

Net trade receivables 111.2 89.4
Other receivables 9.4 3.1
Prepayments and accrued income 16.6 15.5

Total current trade and other receivables 137.2 108.0

Total trade receivables 142.3 112.2

The principal non-current receivable of £2.1m is due within five years from the Balance Sheet date, with the remainder due at various stages
after this.

All of the non-current receivables are non-interest bearing.
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14 Stock
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Raw materials 17.7 15.6
Work in progress 5.9 6.4
Finished goods 126.2 102.2

Total stock 149.8 124.2

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Cost of stock recognised as an expense during the year 333.5 298.9
Stock physically destroyed in the year 1.1 1.3
Reversal during the year of previous write downs of stock (5.6) (3.4)

Total cost of sales 329.0 296.8

The reversal during the year of the previous write down of stock was considered appropriate as a result of the changes in market conditions. 

15 Derivative financial instruments

The Group Income Statement is affected by transactions denominated in foreign currency. To reduce exposure to currency fluctuations,
the Group has a policy of hedging foreign currency denominated transactions by entering into forward exchange contracts. These can
be analysed into two categories.

Cash flow hedges
Burberry Group’s principal foreign currency denominated transactions arise from royalty income and the sale and purchase of overseas
sourced products. In the UK, the Group manages these exposures by the use of Yen and Euro forward exchange contracts for a period
of 12 months in advance. In addition, the Group’s overseas subsidiaries hedge the foreign currency element of their product purchases
on a seasonal basis. This hedging activity involves the use of spot and forward currency instruments.

Fair value hedges
Certain intercompany loan balances are hedged using forward exchange contracts to offset any volatility in foreign currency movements and
tax arising thereon. The balances are hedged up to the date of repayment. As at 31 March 2007 and 2006 there were no forward exchange
contract balances outstanding designated in a fair value hedging relationship.

Derivative financial assets
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash flow hedges at beginning of year 1.7 –
Impact of adopting IAS 32 and IAS 39 – 5.8
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (0.1) 0.2
Arising during the year and taken directly to equity 9.7 2.4
Released from equity to the income statement during the year (8.1) (6.7)

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash flow hedges at end of year 3.2 1.7
Forward foreign exchange contracts – held for trading 0.8 0.6
Equity swap contracts – held for trading 1.3 0.5

Total current position 5.3 2.8

Cash flow hedge gains expected to be recognised in the following 12 months 3.2 1.7
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15 Derivative financial instruments continued

Derivative financial liabilities
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash flow hedges at beginning of year (2.0) –
Impact of adopting IAS 32 and IAS 39 – (1.6)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 0.2 (0.2)
Arising during the year and taken directly to equity (0.6) (4.7)
Released from equity to the income statement during the year 2.2 4.5

Forward foreign exchange contracts – cash flow hedges at end of year (0.2) (2.0)
Forward foreign exchange contracts – held for trading (0.3) (0.1)

Total current position (0.5) (2.1)

Cash flow hedge losses expected to be recognised in the following 12 months (0.2) (2.1)

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts 190.1 120.4
Notional principal amounts of the outstanding equity swap contracts 2.3 3.7
Movement on the non-designated hedges for the year recognised within net finance income in the income statement 0.9 0.6
Movement on the non-designated hedges for the year recognised within the foreign currency translation reserve – (0.1)

Gains and losses on cash flow hedges recognised directly to the hedging reserve within equity:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Gain/(losses) deferred in equity 9.1 (3.8)
Transferred from equity to the income statement (5.9) (0.7)
Tax impact (1.2) 1.7

Movement in hedging reserve for the year (refer to note 22) 2.0 (2.8)

The current portion of the financial instruments matures at various dates within one month to one year from the Balance Sheet date.

16 Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 72.0 70.2
Short-term deposits 59.4 43.5

Total 131.4 113.7

The effective interest rate on short-term deposits was 3.6% (2006: 3.4%). These deposits have an average maturity of 28 days 
(2006: 9 days). The effective interest rate is the weighted average annual interest rate for the Group based on local market rates 
on short-term deposits. 
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17 Long-term liabilities
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured:
Other creditors, accruals and deferred income 10.4 9.6
Deferred consideration for acquisition – 5.0

Total 10.4 14.6

Deferred consideration due after more than one year arose from the acquisition of the trade and certain assets of the Burberry business
in Korea. This is payable within the next financial year and has been included within current trade and other payables, refer to note 21.

The maturity of long-term liabilities, all of which do not bear interest, is as follows:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Between one and two years 1.9 5.9
Between two and three years 1.0 1.4
Between three and four years 0.9 1.2
Between four and five years 0.8 0.9
Over five years 5.8 5.2

Total 10.4 14.6

18 Retirement benefit obligations

Burberry Group provides post-retirement arrangements for its employees in the UK and its overseas operations, which are both defined
benefit and defined contribution in nature. Where arrangements are funded, assets are held in independently administered trusts. 

The Balance Sheet obligations in respect of Burberry Group’s post-retirement arrangements, assessed in accordance with IAS 19, were:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Defined benefit schemes
GUS defined benefit scheme UK(1) – –
Supplemental executive retirement plan US(2) 1.4 1.4
Retirement indemnities France 0.2 0.2
Burberry (Taiwan) Co Ltd retirement scheme 0.2 0.2

Total obligation 1.8 1.8

(1) This plan has been renamed the Experian Pension Plan. 
(2) The plans in the US are classified as defined benefit schemes under IAS 19 because their exact cost cannot be quantified as the funds are subject to notional indexation

according to specified investment return indices. 

No prepayments or obligations in respect of defined contributions schemes were outstanding at 31 March 2007 (2006: nil).
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18 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The pension costs charged to the Income Statement in respect of the main plans were:
Year to Year to

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Defined benefit schemes
GUS defined benefit scheme UK 0.1 0.4
Supplemental executive retirement plan US 0.2 0.3
Defined contribution schemes
GUS money purchase pension plan UK – 1.0
Burberry stakeholder plan UK 2.0 –
Burberry money purchase plan US 0.7 0.9
Burberry Asia Limited retirement scheme 0.2 0.1

Total pension costs 3.2 2.7

Defined benefit schemes
GUS defined benefit scheme UK
Prior to the demerger of Burberry from GUS plc on 13 December 2005, it was agreed that existing employees of Burberry Group who were
participating in the GUS defined benefit scheme (the “GUS Pension Scheme”) would continue to do so until 31 December 2007 or such
earlier date as required by HM Customs & Revenue or by Burberry. When the eventual withdrawal of members of the Burberry Group from
the GUS Pension Scheme takes place on or before 31 December 2007, Burberry must pay any liabilities due under section 75 or 75A of 
the Pensions Act 1995. GUS has indemnified Burberry on an after tax basis against any amounts which are in excess of £1.25m.

The following disclosures regarding the GUS defined benefit scheme UK have been included for completeness as required by IAS 19 and
the assets have been restricted in accordance with the standard as it is not likely that Burberry will be able to benefit from this surplus.

The GUS Pension Scheme has rules which specify the benefits to be paid and is financed accordingly, with assets being held in independently
administered funds.

A full actuarial valuation of the GUS Pension Scheme is carried out every three years with interim reviews in the intervening years. The last full
valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2004 by independent qualified actuaries, Watson Wyatt Limited, using the projected unit method.
A full valuation is currently being carried out by Watson Wyatt Limited, the results of which are expected late summer 2007.

As a result of the 31 March 2004 valuation it became possible to separately identify the underlying assets and liabilities which relate to the
Burberry Group. Therefore, since the valuation, Burberry Group has accounted for its proportionate share of the overall defined benefit
obligation, scheme assets and costs.

The valuation of the GUS Pension Scheme used for Burberry Group’s IAS 19 disclosures for the year to 31 March 2007 has been based
on an update of the 31 March 2004 valuation. As at 31 March 2007, this update showed that there was an excess in the value of the assets
of the GUS Pension Scheme, when compared to the value of the liabilities, on the basis set out below. Burberry Group’s proportionate share
of this excess was approximately £5.7m (2006: £1.8m) before allowing for deferred tax. This surplus has been restricted as explained above.

Burberry Group’s disclosures in respect of its continued participation in the GUS Pension Scheme are shown below. The disclosures are
in accordance with IAS 19 and the Group recognise all gains/losses immediately through the SORIE.
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18 Retirement benefit obligations continued

The valuation assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions used in the IAS 19 valuation of the Burberry Group portion of the GUS Pension Scheme are the same
as those used for the whole of the GUS Pension Scheme and are shown below:

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
% %

Discount rate 5.4% 4.9%
Rate of inflation 3.1% 2.9%
Rate of salary increases 4.9% 4.7%
Rate of increases for pensions in payment and deferred pensions 3.1% 2.9%
Expected return on plan assets 7.1% 6.8%

The expected return on plan assets is calculated by reference to the GUS Pension Scheme investments at the year end and is a weighted
average of the expected returns on each main asset type (based on the market yields available on these asset types at the year end). The
main asset types held by the GUS Pension Scheme (expressed as a percentage of total assets) and their expected returns are as follows:

Asset Asset
allocation at Expected allocation at Expected

31 March return for the 31 March return for the
2007 next year 2006 next year

% % % %

Equities 69% 8.1% 67% 7.9%
Fixed and index linked income securities 16% 5.0% 30% 4.6%
Other 15% 4.6% 3% 3.7%

Total 100% 7.1% 100% 6.8%

The IAS 19 valuation assumed mortality will be in line with standard tables known as PMA92C2004 for males and PFA92C2004 for females.
An allowance is also made for anticipated future improvements in life expectancy, by assuming that the probability of death occurring at each
age will decrease by 0.25% each year. Overall, the average expectation of life on retirement in normal health is assumed to be:

– 19.1 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 65 
– 22.2 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 65
– 19.8 years at age 65 for a male currently aged 50
– 23.1 years at age 65 for a female currently aged 50

On 6 April 2006, “A-Day”, the rules of the scheme were changed to allow members to exchange a higher percentage of their pension for
cash on retirement. As such, it has been assumed that non-retired members will exchange a higher percentage, 25% (2006: 20%), of their
pension for cash on retirement. This results in a reduction in the year-end liabilities of £0.2m. This reduction has been treated as follows:

– £0.1m of this reduction will impact the year end Balance Sheet via the SORIE
– £0.1m of this reduction will impact the year end Balance Sheet via the Income Statement

Based on the method and assumptions outlined above, the amount recognised in Burberry Group’s Balance Sheet is determined as follows:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Present value of Burberry Group’s share of scheme’s liabilities (the defined benefit obligation) (37.8) (39.4)
Market value of Burberry Group’s share of scheme’s assets 43.5 41.2

Net assets 5.7 1.8
Restricted recognition of assets (5.7) (1.8)

Net assets recognised in the balance sheet – –
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Amounts for the current and previous two periods are as follows:
As at As at As at

31 March 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 2005

£m £m £m

Defined benefit obligation (37.8) (39.4) (35.0)
Market value of assets 43.5 41.2 34.0

Surplus/(deficit) 5.7 1.8 (1.0)
Restricted recognition of assets (5.7) (1.8) –

Deficit recognised – – (1.0)

Experience adjustments on liabilities 2.7 (3.3) (2.9)
Experience adjustments on assets 0.7 5.8 1.4

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement are as follows:
Year to Year to 

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Current service cost (included in net operating costs) (1.0) (0.9)
Past service cost (included in net operating costs) 0.1 –
Interest cost (included in net finance income) (1.9) (1.8)
Expected return on plan assets (included in net finance income) 2.7 2.3

Total recognised in the income statement (0.1) (0.4)

The amount recognised in the SORIE is as follows:
Year to Year to 

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Gain/(loss) on liabilities 2.7 (3.3)
Gain on assets 0.7 5.8

Total gain 3.4 2.5
Restricted recognition of assets (3.9) (1.8)

Total (loss)/gain included in the SORIE in the year (0.5) 0.7

Cumulative actuarial gain included in the SORIE (1.3) (0.8)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Opening defined benefit obligation (39.4) (35.0)
Current service cost (1.0) (0.9)
Past service cost 0.1 –
Interest cost (1.9) (1.8)
Employee contributions (0.2) (0.2)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on liabilities 2.7 (3.3)
Benefits paid 1.9 1.8

Closing defined benefit obligation (37.8) (39.4)
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18 Retirement benefit obligations continued

Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Opening fair value of plan assets 41.2 34.0
Expected return 2.7 2.3
Actuarial gain on assets 0.7 5.8
Contributions paid by employer 0.6 0.7
Contributions paid by employee 0.2 0.2
Benefits paid (1.9) (1.8)

Closing fair value of plan assets 43.5 41.2

The actual return on the plan assets in the year to 31 March 2007 was £3.4m (2006: £8.1m).

Burberry Group’s total contributions to the GUS Pension Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2007 were £0.6m (2006: £0.7m).
The Group expects to contribute £0.4m in the year to 31 March 2008.

Supplemental executive retirement plan US
Rose Marie Bravo participates in this plan as explained in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters. Payments are made
into the Supplemental executive retirement plan based on a percentage of salary and benefits. Interest is earned on the scheme at a rate
of 3.5% (2006: 4.6%).

Retirement indemnities France
Burberry France S.A. offers lump sum benefits at retirement to all employees that are employed by the Company based on the length
of service and salary. There are no assets held by Burberry Group companies in relation to this commitment.

Burberry (Taiwan) Co. Ltd retirement scheme
Burberry (Taiwan) Co. Ltd offers lump sum benefits at retirement to employees transferred from one of the previous operators based on the
length of service up to date of transfer (i.e. 1 August 2005) and salary at retirement. There are no assets held by Burberry Group companies
in relation to this commitment.

Starting from 1 August 2005, all employees of the Company joined the defined contribution scheme operated under local labour ordinance.

Defined contribution schemes
Burberry stakeholder plan UK
This plan was introduced on 1 April 2006 when the GUS money purchase pension plan UK closed for Burberry employees. All UK
employees are eligible to participate in this scheme. The assets of this scheme are held separately in an independently administered fund. 

Burberry money purchase plan US
Burberry Group administers a money purchase plan in the US (a 401(k) scheme), which covers all eligible full-time employees who have
reached the age of 21 and have completed one full year of service. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of Burberry
Group in an independently administered fund. 

Burberry Asia Limited retirement scheme
Burberry Group administers a money purchase plan in Hong Kong, which covers all eligible full-time employees. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of Burberry Group in an independently administered fund. 

GUS money purchase pension plan UK
This plan was introduced during the year ended 31 March 1999 with the aim of providing pension benefits for those GUS group employees
in the UK who, hitherto, had been ineligible for GUS defined benefit pension scheme membership. On 31 March 2006 all Burberry employees
ceased to be members of this scheme. Employees had the choice to transfer their pensions to the Burberry stakeholder plan UK or a private
scheme of their choice. The assets of this scheme were held separately from those of GUS plc in an independently administered fund. 

19 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Property

obligations
£m

As at 1 April 2006 2.8
Released during the year (2.8)

As at 31 March 2007 –

Property obligations arose from the portfolio of leasehold obligations which the Group maintains and were released during the year. 
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20 Bank overdrafts and borrowings
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured:
Bank overdrafts 74.2 51.2
Bank borrowings 60.0 50.0

Total 134.2 101.2

Bank overdrafts represent balances on cash pooling arrangements in the Group. The effective interest rate for the overdraft balances 
is 4.5% (2006: 5.3%).

A £200m five year multicurrency revolving facility was agreed with a syndicate of third-party banks commencing on 30 March 2005. 
At 31 March 2007, the amount drawn down was £60m (2006: £50m). This drawdown was made in Sterling. Interest is charged on 
this loan at LIBOR plus 0.325% per annum and the borrowing matures on 22 June 2007.

21 Trade and other payables
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured:
Trade creditors 56.8 28.0
Other taxes and social security costs 6.4 6.0
Other creditors 19.4 18.9
Accruals and deferred income 78.1 67.5
Deferred consideration for acquisitions 10.0 6.5

Total 170.7 126.9

Deferred consideration of £10m (2006: £5m) due within one year arose from the acquisition of the Burberry business in Korea. Deferred
consideration arising on the Burberry Taiwan acquisition was fully paid in the year (2006: £1.5m).

22 Share capital and reserves
2007 2006

Authorised share capital £m £m

1,999,999,998,000 (2006: 1,999,999,998,000) ordinary shares of 0.05p (2006: 0.05p) each 1,000.0 1,000.0

Total 1,000.0 1,000.0

Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital Number £m

Ordinary shares of 0.05p (2006: 0.05p) each

As at 1 April 2006 446,712,463 0.2
Allotted on exercise of IPO Option Scheme awards during the year 3,347,919 –
Cancelled on repurchase of own shares (12,281,000) –

As at 31 March 2007 437,779,382 0.2
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22 Share capital and reserves continued

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
Foreign

Ordinary Share currency
share premium Hedging translation Capital Retained Total

capital account reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Balance as at 1 April 2005 0.3 136.1 2.6 5.4 24.9 304.9 474.2
Cash flow hedges – losses deferred in equity – – (3.8) – – – (3.8)
Foreign currency translation differences – – – 15.6 – – 15.6
Net actuarial gains on defined 
benefit pension scheme – – – – – 0.7 0.7
Tax on items taken directly to equity – – 1.5 0.2 – (0.2) 1.5

Net income/(expense) recognised 
directly in equity – – (2.3) 15.8 – 0.5 14.0

Cash flow hedges – transferred 
to the income statement – – (0.7) – – – (0.7)
Tax on items transferred from equity – – 0.2 – – – 0.2
Attributable profit for the year – – – – – 106.4 106.4

Total recognised income/(expenses) 
for the year – – (2.8) 15.8 – 106.9 119.9
Employee share option scheme
– value of share options granted – – – – – 7.4 7.4
– tax on share options granted – – – – – 2.6 2.6
– exercise of share options – 15.7 – – – – 15.7
– price differential on exercise of shares – – – – – (12.0) (12.0)
Share buy back costs (0.1) – – – 0.1 (191.6) (191.6)
Sale of shares by ESOPs – – – – – 2.4 2.4
Redemption of preference shares – – – – 0.8 – 0.8
Dividend paid in the year – – – – – (32.8) (32.8)

Balance as at 31 March 2006 0.2 151.8 (0.2) 21.2 25.8 187.8 386.6
Cash flow hedges – gains deferred in equity – – 9.1 – – – 9.1
Foreign currency translation differences – – – (28.9) – – (28.9)
Net actuarial losses on defined 
benefit pension scheme – – – – – (0.5) (0.5)
Tax on items taken directly to equity – – (3.0) 1.5 – – (1.5)

Net income/(expense) recognised 
directly in equity – – 6.1 (27.4) – (0.5) (21.8)

Cash flow hedges – transferred 
to the income statement – – (5.9) – – – (5.9)
Tax on items transferred from equity – – 1.8 – – – 1.8
Attributable profit for the year – – – – – 110.2 110.2

Total recognised income/(expenses) 
for the year – – 2.0 (27.4) – 109.7 84.3
Employee share option scheme
– value of share options granted – – – – – 10.8 10.8
– tax on share options granted – – – – – 7.2 7.2
– exercise of share options – 15.5 – – – – 15.5
– price differential on exercise of shares – – – – – (14.9) (14.9)
Share buy back costs – – – – – (62.2) (62.2)
Sale of shares by ESOPs – – – – – 6.1 6.1
Transfer between reserves – – – – 0.2 (0.2) –
Dividend paid in the year – – – – – (36.5) (36.5)

Balance as at 31 March 2007 0.2 167.3 1.8 (6.2) 26.0 207.8 396.9

During the year to 31 March 2007, the Company repurchased and subsequently cancelled 12,281,000 ordinary shares, representing
2.7% of the issued share capital, at a total cost of £62.2m. The nominal value of the shares was £6,141 which was transferred to a capital
redemption reserve. Retained earnings were reduced by £62.2m. The share repurchase programme commenced in January 2005 and
since then a total of 72,865,230 ordinary shares have been repurchased and subsequently cancelled. This represents 14.5% of the original
issued share capital at a total cost of £312.2m. The nominal value of the shares was £36,433 and has been transferred to a capital
redemption reserve and the retained earnings have been reduced by £312.2m since this date.
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23 Financial commitments

Burberry Group has commitments relating to future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:
As at 31 March 2007 As at 31 March 2006

Land and Land and
buildings Other Total buildings Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Amounts falling due:
Within one year 30.5 1.0 31.5 26.0 1.3 27.3
Between two and five years 84.5 1.5 86.0 80.2 1.5 81.7
After five years 103.0 0.8 103.8 112.2 2.7 114.9

Total 218.0 3.3 221.3 218.4 5.5 223.9

The financial commitments for operating lease amounts calculated as a percentage of turnover (“turnover leases”) have been based on the
minimum payment that is required under the terms of the relevant lease. Under certain turnover leases, there are no minimums and therefore
no financial commitment is included in the table above. As a result, the amounts charged to the Income Statement may be materially higher
than the financial commitment at the prior year end. 

Where rental agreements include a contingent rental, this contingent rent is generally calculated as a percentage of turnover. Escalation
clauses increase the rental to either open market rent, a stipulated amount in the rental agreement, or by an inflationary index percentage.
There are no significant restrictions imposed by these lease agreements. 

The total of future minimum sublease payments to be received under non-cancellable subleases is as follows:
Land and buildings

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Amounts falling due:
Within one year 0.1 0.1
Between two and five years 0.4 0.4
After five years 0.8 0.9

Total 1.3 1.4

24 Capital commitments
As at As at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

£m £m

Capital commitments contracted but not provided for
– property, plant and equipment 2.5 3.5
– intangible assets 0.1 0.1

Total 2.6 3.6

Contracted capital commitments represent contracts entered into by the year end and future work in respect of major capital expenditure
projects where activity has commenced by the year end relating to property, plant and equipment.
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25 Contingent liabilities

Since 31 March 2006 the following changes to material contingent liabilities have occurred:

During the year ended 31 March 2007, Burberry Group has provided guarantee letters to certain raw material suppliers. The total value
of these guarantees, which expire on 31 July 2007, amounts to £1.1m at 31 March 2007.

Other material contingent liabilities reported at 31 March 2006 remain unchanged and were:

Under the terms of a demerger agreement, entered into with GUS plc on 13 December 2005, Burberry continues to participate in the GUS
defined benefit scheme. Under this scheme Burberry is jointly and severally liable with the other participating GUS companies for any deficit
in this scheme. When Burberry leaves the scheme it will be required to pay an exit charge calculated pursuant to Section 75 or 75A of the
Pensions Act. GUS plc has agreed to pay to Burberry the amount of this liability to the extent it exceeds £1.25m. Refer to note 18.

Under the GUS group UK tax payment arrangements, the Group was jointly and severally liable for any GUS liability attributable to the period
of Burberry Group’s membership of this payment scheme. Burberry Group’s membership of this scheme was terminated with effect from
31 March 2002. 

Burberry (Spain) S.A. is liable for certain salary and social security contributions left unpaid by its sole contractors where the amounts are
attributable to the period in which subcontracting activity is undertaken on behalf of Burberry (Spain) S.A. It is not feasible to estimate the
amount of contingent liability, but such expense has been minimal in prior years.

26 Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 18 October 2006 Burberry Group acquired a shell company in the Czech Republic to enable the Group to buy a lease for a new store.

The net asset value of the shell company acquired was £4,197 consisting of cash of £4,095 and a debtor of £102. No adjustments were
made to the fair values of the assets. Total consideration paid in cash was £71,727 resulting in goodwill of £67,530.

The new store contributed £0.1m to turnover and a total loss of £0.1m was realised for the period since its opening in March 2007. Due
to the fact that Burberry has never had presence in this country, trading history is not available and therefore the estimated financial impact
on the Group had the store opened on 1 April 2006 cannot be determined.

27 Financial risk management

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise cash and short-term deposits, external borrowings, deferred
consideration, as well as trade debtors and creditors, arising directly from operations. 

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks (including currency risk, fair value interest risk and price risk), credit
risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Risk management is carried out by Group Treasury who seek to reduce financial risk and to ensure sufficient liquidity is available to meet
foreseeable needs and to invest in cash assets safely and profitably. This is done in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units.
Group Treasury does not operate as a profit centre and transacts only in relation to the underlying business requirements. The policies of the
Group Treasury department are reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. The Group uses derivative instruments to hedge certain
risk exposures.

(i) Market Risk
Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. Burberry Group
monitors the desirability of hedging the profits and the net assets of the overseas subsidiaries when translated into Sterling for reporting
purposes. It has not entered into any specific transactions for this purpose. 

Burberry Group’s Income Statement is affected by transactions denominated in foreign currency. To reduce exposure to currency fluctuations,
Burberry Group has a policy of hedging foreign currency denominated transactions by entering into forward exchange contracts (see note 15).
The Group’s accounting policy in relation to derivative instruments is set out in note 2.

Price Risk
The Group’s exposure to equity securities price risk is minimal. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.
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(ii) Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that wholesale sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via major credit cards. In addition, receivables
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. 

With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets, which comprise cash and short-term deposits and certain derivative instruments,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying value of these
instruments. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution. 

(iii) Liquidity risk
The Group financial risk management policy aims to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to meet foreseeable needs and close out
market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, the Group treasury department aims to maintain flexibility in funding
by keeping committed credit lines available. For further details of this, see note 20. 

(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates, relates primarily to cash, short-term deposits and external borrowings.

The external borrowings are linked to the LIBOR rate, while cash and short-term borrowings are affected by local market rates around the
Group. The borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Currently, this risk is not hedged as the risk is not considered significant. This situation is monitored by the Group treasury department.

(a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out below is a comparison by category of book values and fair values of Burberry Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities:

Book and fair value

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the Group’s operations: £m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 72.0 70.2
Short-term deposits 59.4 43.5

Total financial assets 131.4 113.7

Interest bearing borrowings (134.2) (101.2)
Other financial liabilities (20.4) (23.9)

Total financial liabilities (154.6) (125.1)

Total net financial liabilities (23.2) (11.4)

The nominal value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair value.
2007 2006

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the currency profile £m £m

Forward foreign currency contracts
– book value 4.8 0.7
– fair value 4.8 0.7
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27 Financial risk management continued

Fair value methods and assumptions
Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between informed and willing
parties, other than a forced or liquidation sale and excludes accrued interest. The principal assumptions are:

i) The fair value of short-term deposits, borrowings and overdrafts approximates to the carrying amount because of the short maturity
of these instruments.

ii) The fair value of foreign currency contracts is based on a comparison of the contractual and market rates after discounting using the
prevailing interest rates at the time. 

(b) Interest rate risk profile
Financial assets
The interest rate risk profile of Burberry Group’s financial assets by currency is as follows:

Cash at 
bank and Short-term

in hand deposits Total
Currency £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2007
Sterling 4.9 2.3 7.2
US Dollar 14.9 – 14.9
Euro 36.2 3.2 39.4
Other currencies 16.0 53.9 69.9

Total financial assets 72.0 59.4 131.4

Floating rate assets 64.2 59.4 123.6
Balances for which no interest is paid 7.8 – 7.8

As at 31 March 2006
Sterling 5.5 5.0 10.5
US Dollar 14.4 0.4 14.8
Euro 37.6 14.0 51.6
Other currencies 12.7 24.1 36.8

Total financial assets 70.2 43.5 113.7

Floating rate assets 56.4 43.5 99.9
Balances for which no interest is paid 13.8 – 13.8

Floating rate assets earn interest based on the relevant national LIBOR equivalents.

Balances for which no interest is paid is made up of Sterling £1.2m (2006: £3.8m), Euros nil (2006: £0.2m) and Hong Kong Dollars £3.2m
(2006: £2.2m), Singapore Dollars £3.0m (2006: £3.3m), Japanese Yen nil (2006: £ 3.9m) and Malaysian Ringgit £0.4m (2006: £0.4m).
These amounts arise principally due to the timing of transactions. 
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Financial liabilities
The interest rate risk profile of Burberry Group’s financial liabilities by currency is as follows:

Financial
Floating liabilities

rate on which
financial no interest
liabilities is payable Total

Currency £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2007
Sterling 62.1 12.1 74.2
US Dollar 14.5 6.6 21.1
Euro 20.2 1.0 21.2
Other currencies 37.4 0.7 38.1

Total financial liabilities 134.2 20.4 154.6

As at 31 March 2006
Sterling 50.0 16.6 66.6
US Dollar – 5.2 5.2
Euro 27.7 1.3 29.0
Other currencies 23.5 0.8 24.3

Total financial liabilities 101.2 23.9 125.1

The floating rate financial liabilities at 31 March 2007 and 2006 incurred interest based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents.

The floating rate financial liabilities at 31 March 2007 and 2006 include overdraft balances of £74.2m (2006: £51.2m). 

(c) Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of Burberry Group’s financial liabilities, other than short-term trade creditors and accruals,
are as follows:

Other
Deferred financial

Debt consideration liabilities Total
£m £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2007
In one year or less, or on demand 134.2 10.0 – 144.2
In more than one year, but not more than two years – – 1.9 1.9
In more than two years, but not more than three years – – 1.0 1.0
In more than three years, but not more than four years – – 0.9 0.9
In more than four years, but not more than five years – – 0.8 0.8
In more than five years – – 5.8 5.8

Total financial liabilities 134.2 10.0 10.4 154.6

108

BURBERRY GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2006/07

6891 Accounts 2006-07  25/6/07  10:25  Page 108



109

BURBERRY GROUP PLC ANNUAL REPORT 2006/07

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

27 Financial risk management continued
Other

Deferred financial
Debt consideration liabilities Total

£m £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2006
In one year or less, or on demand 101.2 6.5 1.9 109.6
In more than one year, but not more than two years – 5.0 1.8 6.8
In more than two years, but not more than three years – – 1.4 1.4
In more than three years, but not more than four years – – 1.2 1.2
In more than four years, but not more than five years – – 0.9 0.9
In more than five years – – 5.2 5.2

Total financial liabilities 101.2 11.5 12.4 125.1

All deferred consideration is payable in cash.

Other financial liabilities principally relate to accrued lease liabilities £7.9m (2006: £6.3m), property related accruals £0.9m (2006: £1.2m)
which are included in other creditors falling due after more than one year, and provisions for certain property obligations £nil (2006: £2.8m),
which are included in provisions.

(d) Currency exposures
The tables below show the extent to which Burberry Group has monetary assets and liabilities at the year end in currencies other than the
local currency of operation, after accounting for the effect of any specific forward contracts used to manage currency exposure. Monetary
assets and liabilities refer to cash, deposits, borrowings and amounts to be received or paid in cash. Foreign exchange differences on
retranslation of these assets and liabilities are recognised in the Income Statement.

Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)

Other
Sterling US Dollar Euro currencies Total

Functional currency of operation £m £m £m £m £m

As at 31 March 2007
Sterling – (11.9) (8.7) (36.4) (57.0)
Other currencies 2.0 0.2 (1.3) – 0.9

Total 2.0 (11.7) (10.0) (36.4) (56.1)

As at 31 March 2006
Sterling – 0.3 8.6 (0.1) 8.8
Other currencies (1.3) (0.2) (0.1) – (1.6)

Total (1.3) 0.1 8.5 (0.1) 7.2
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Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, during the year are as shown below. The directors’ emoluments are separately disclosed in the
Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters. This includes gains arising on the exercise of share options.

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Wages and salaries 143.5 124.7
Social security costs 16.5 13.9
Share-based compensation (all awards settled in shares) 10.8 7.4
Other pension costs (see note 18) 3.2 2.7

Total 174.0 148.7

The average number of full time equivalent employees (including directors) during the year was as follows:
Number of employees

Year to Year to
31 March 31 March

2007 2006

Europe (excluding Spain) 2,415 2,149
North America 1,026 902
Asia Pacific 735 683
Spain 1,042 917

Total 5,218 4,651

Share options granted to directors and employees
The share option schemes have been valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan
2004, which has market based performance conditions attached, has been valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with
a discount applied to this value, based on information obtained by running a Monte Carlo simulation model on the scheme. 

Where applicable, equity swaps have been entered into to cover future Employers’ National Insurance liability (or overseas equivalent) that
may arise in respect of these schemes.

SAYE share option scheme
A Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option scheme offering GUS plc ordinary shares was introduced for employees in the UK by GUS plc
in the year to 31 March 2002, with a further option scheme offered to all UK employees of GUS plc in the year to 31 March 2003. For both
of the grants made, employees were entitled to save for either three years or five years. 

As a result of the demerger from GUS plc on 13 December 2005, the employees who held options at this date as part of the GUS SAYE
share option scheme had six months from the date of the demerger to exercise these options. At 31 March 2007 there were no shares
under option (2006: 129,748 at a weighted average exercise price of 413p).

The administrative costs of this scheme have not been borne by Burberry Group plc and are not considered to be material.

On 23 June 2006 a Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option scheme offering Burberry Group plc ordinary shares was introduced for all
employees in the UK, Europe and Asia Pacific, with a further option scheme offered to all American employees of Burberry Group plc
on 30 March 2007. For both of the grants made, employees are entitled to save for three years. 

The options granted on 23 June 2006 and 30 March 2007 are exercisable from 30 September 2009 and 31 March 2010 respectively 
and are dependent on continued employment, as well as a saving obligation over the vesting period. The exercise price for these options
is calculated at a 20% discount to market price over the three dealing days preceding the grant date. Three day averages are calculated
by taking middle market quotations of a Burberry Group plc share from the London Stock Exchange. 

The fair value of the options granted has been calculated using a risk-free rate of 4.9%, expected volatility of 25.2% and an expected
dividend yield of between 1.6% and 2.1%. The fair values per option for these grants were determined as £1.20 and £2.97 respectively.

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historic annualised standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return
on the shares over a period of time, prior to the grant, equivalent to the life of the option. As share price information was only available for
Burberry Group plc from July 2002 an average of a comparator group of companies was used prior to this date. The average expected
volatility over the life of the option was used.
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Movements in the number of SAYE share options in Burberry Group plc shares outstanding and their weighted average exercise price
are as follows:

Number of Number of
Weighted shares under Weighted shares under

average option as at average option as at
exercise 31 March exercise 31 March

price 2007 price 2006

Outstanding at 1 April – – – –
Granted during the year 354.8 788,517 – –
Lapsed during the year 350.5 (25,949) – –
Exercised during the year – – – –

Outstanding at 31 March 354.9 762,568 – –
Exercisable at 31 March – – – –

SAYE share options in Burberry Group plc shares outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms and exercise prices:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

Exercise 31 March 31 March
Option term price 2007 2006

23 June 2006 – 1 September 2009 350.5 663,584 –
30 March 2007 – 31 March 2010 384.5 98,984 –

Total 762,568 –

Share options and awards
i) GUS schemes
Share options were granted to Burberry employees under the GUS 1998 Approved and Non-Approved Executive Share Option Schemes
during the years to 31 March 2001 and 2002 in respect of the ordinary shares of GUS plc. 

As a result of the demerger from GUS plc on 13 December 2005, the employees who held options at this date as part of the GUS share
option scheme had six months from the date of the demerger to exercise these options. At 31 March 2007 there were no shares remaining
under option (2006: 200,443 at a weighted average exercise price of 616.6p).

ii) The Burberry IPO Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan (the “RSP”)
On 11 July 2002 awards in respect of a total of 8,100,198 ordinary shares were made to directors and senior management under the RSP.

The restricted shares vest in three stages, 50% are exercisable after three years, 25% are exercisable after four years and 25% are exercisable
after five years. The vesting of these share options is dependent on continued employment over the vesting period. The exercise price of
these share options is £nil.

Obligations under this plan will be met by the issue of ordinary shares of the Company.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as follows:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 3,610,000 6,571,640
Lapsed during the year (6,250) (911,640)
Exercised during the year (3,102,500) (2,050,000)

Outstanding at 31 March 501,250 3,610,000
Exercisable at 31 March – 12,499

The weighted average share price for the exercises in the year was £4.56.
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Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
Option term 2007 2006

11 July 2002 – 11 July 2012 501,250 3,610,000

Total 501,250 3,610,000

iii) Burberry Senior Executive Restricted Share Plan 2004 
Between August and November 2006 awards in respect of a total of 2,352,546 (2006: 2,413,206) ordinary shares were made to directors
and senior management under the 2004 RSP. 

The options vest in three stages, 50% are exercisable after three years, 25% are exercisable after four years and 25% are exercisable
after five years. The vesting of these share options is dependent on two performance conditions. Vesting of RSP shares is based 50%
on Burberry’s three year Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”) relative to peers and 50% on three year growth in profit before taxation (“PBT”).
Awards vest in full only if Burberry achieves at least upper quartile TSR compared to its global peers and at least 15% per annum profit
growth (currency adjusted), and the executive remains in employment with Burberry for at least five years. A proportion of an award (12.5%)
may vest if TSR performance exceeds the median of the peer group or if PBT growth exceeds 5% per annum over three years. The vesting
of these share options is also dependent on continued employment over the vesting period. The exercise price of these share options is £nil.

Shares have been purchased by the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust to meet obligations under this plan. Movements in the number of share
options outstanding are as follows:

Number of Number of
shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 3,565,477 1,342,592
Granted during the year 2,352,546 2,413,206
Lapsed during the year (25,000) (190,321)

Outstanding at 31 March 5,893,023 3,565,477
Exercisable at 31 March – –

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
Option term 2007 2006

2 August 2004 – 2 August 2014 1,322,592 1,322,592
21 July 2005 – 21 July 2015 1,709,411 1,734,411
31 January 2006 – 31 January 2016 508,474 508,474
10 August 2006 – 10 August 2016 2,278,837 –
1 September 2006 – 1 September 2016 20,000 –
27 November 2006 – 27 November 2016 53,709 –

Total 5,893,023 3,565,477

For the awards made on 10 August 2006 the fair value for those restricted shares with the PBT performance condition was determined
as £4.76 by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. A discount was applied to the restricted shares with the TSR performance
condition, by applying the Monte Carlo model. The fair value for these restricted shares was determined to be £2.87.

For the awards made on 1 September 2006, the fair value for those restricted shares with the PBT performance condition was determined
as £4.84 by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. A discount was applied to the restricted shares with the TSR performance
condition, by applying the Monte Carlo model. The fair value for these restricted shares was determined to be £2.87.

For the awards made on 27 November 2006, the fair value for those restricted shares with the PBT performance conditions was determined
as £5.90 by applying the Black-Scholes option pricing model. A discount was applied to the restricted shares with the TSR performance
condition, by applying the Monte Carlo model. The fair value for these restricted shares was determined to be £3.56. 
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As dividends accrue during the vesting period, expected dividends were not incorporated into the measurement of fair value. The key factors
used in determining the fair value of the options were as follows:

10 August 1 September 27 November 
2006 2006 2006

Weighted average share price at grant date £4.76 £4.84 £5.90
Exercise price – – –
Option life Equivalent to Equivalent to Equivalent to 

vesting period vesting period vesting period
Expected volatility 29.5% 29.5% 29.5%
Risk free interest rate 4.9% 4.9% 5.0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historic annualised standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates of return
on the shares over a period of time, prior to the grant, equivalent to the life of the option. As share price information was only available for
Burberry Group plc from July 2002 an average of a comparator group of companies was used prior to this date. The average expected
volatility over the life of the option was used.

iv) Burberry Restricted Share Reinvestment Plan 
On 21 July 2005 awards in respect of a total of 782,500 ordinary shares were made to senior management under the Restricted Share
Reinvestment Plan. 

The options vest in two stages, 50% are exercisable after three years and 50% are exercisable after four years. The vesting of these share
options is dependent on the employee holding the original IPO RSP shares which were awarded and which vested on 11 July 2005. The
vesting of these share options is also dependent on continued employment over the vesting period. The exercise price of these share
options is £nil.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as follows:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 782,500 –
Granted during the year – 782,500

Outstanding at 31 March 782,500 782,500
Exercisable at 31 March – –

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
Option term 2007 2006

21 July 2005 – 21 July 2015 782,500 782,500

Total 782,500 782,500

v) The Burberry Senior Executive IPO Share Option Scheme (“the IPO Option Scheme”)
On 11 July 2002 awards in respect of a total of 5,955,198 ordinary shares were made to directors and senior management under the IPO
Option Scheme. Participants’ awards were made in the form of options with an exercise price equal to the price on flotation, £2.30 per
ordinary share. 

The options vest in three stages, 33% are exercisable after one year, 33% are exercisable after two years and 33% are exercisable after three
years. The vesting of these share options is dependent on continued employment over the vesting period. Obligations under this scheme will
be met by the issue of ordinary shares of the Company. 
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Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their weighted average exercise price are as follows:
Number of Number of

Weighted shares under Weighted shares under
average option as at average option as at
exercise 31 March exercise 31 March

price 2007 price 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 230.0p 842,505 230.0p 2,456,683
Exercised during the year 230.0p (245,419) 230.0p (1,614,178)

Outstanding at 31 March 230.0p 597,086 230.0p 842,505
Exercisable at 31 March 230.0p 597,086 230.0p 842,505

The weighted average share price for the exercises in the year was £5.51.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms and exercise prices:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

Exercise 31 March 31 March
Option term price 2007 2006

11 July 2002 – 11 July 2012 230.0p 597,086 842,505

Total 597,086 842,505

vi) The Burberry Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme 2002
During the previous financial years options were granted to directors in respect of ordinary shares in the Company under the Executive Share
Option Scheme. No options were granted in the current financial year (2006: 833,333 at an exercise price of £4.23).

The options vest in three stages, 33% are exercisable after one year, 33% are exercisable after two years and 33% are exercisable after three
years. The vesting of these share options is dependent on continued employment over the vesting period.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their weighted average exercise price are as follows:
Number of Number of

Weighted shares under Weighted shares under
average option as at average option as at
exercise 31 March exercise 31 March

price 2007 price 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 342.0p 3,935,492 315.4p 4,183,378
Granted during the year – – 423.0p 833,333
Lapsed during the year 356.2p (36,660) 361.7p (221,091)
Exercised during the year 330.1p (1,876,983) 274.8p (860,128)

Outstanding at 31 March 357.6p 2,021,849 342.0p 3,935,492
Exercisable at 31 March 307.0p 932,740 320.0p 1,093,276

The weighted average share price for the exercises in the year was £5.73.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms and exercise prices:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

Exercise 31 March 31 March
Option term price 2007 2006

13 June 2003 – 12 June 2013 258.0p 551,915 1,411,509
2 August 2004 – 2 August 2014 378.0p 914,379 1,690,650
21 July 2005 – 21 July 2015 423.0p 555,555 833,333

Total 2,021,849 3,935,492
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vii) All Employee Share Plan
In previous financial years all employees were offered options over ordinary shares in the Company at a nil exercise price under an all
Employee Share Plan. No new awards were made in the year to 31 March 2007 (2006: 369,240).

All awards vest after three years and the vesting of these share options is dependent on continued employment over the vesting period.

These ordinary shares are held in two trusts, being the Burberry Group Share Incentive Plan and the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust.
The ordinary shares must be held in trust between three and five years. 

Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as follows:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 1,017,580 1,029,100
Granted during the year – 369,240
Lapsed during the year (79,350) (143,040)
Exercised during the year (243,260) (237,720)

Outstanding at 31 March 694,970 1,017,580
Exercisable at 31 March 94,150 52,650

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
Option term 2007 2006

12 July 2002 – 18 July 2082(1) 43,450 52,650
30 August 2003 – 18 July 2082(1) 50,700 101,350
30 August 2003 – 7 October 2006 – 174,800
30 July 2004 – 30 October 2007 189,150 212,650
20 August 2004 – 18 July 2082(1) 128,350 148,250
10 June 2005 – 10 June 2008 173,920 200,720
1 September 2005 – 18 July 2082(1) 109,400 127,160

Total 694,970 1,017,580

(1) No date has been specified when awards lapse. The cessation date of the trust in which the awards are held is 18 July 2082.

viii) Co-investment Scheme 
In previous financial years executive directors and other senior management were able to defer receipt of all or part of their annual bonus and
invest it in ordinary shares in the Company with up to a 2:1 match based on individual and Group performance during the year. The matching
share awards do not vest for three years and are forfeited if the executive leaves due to resignation within that period. The exercise price of
these share options is £nil. No new awards were made in the year to 31 March 2007 (2006: 984,473).

Shares have been purchased by the Burberry Group plc ESOP Trust to meet the obligations under this plan.
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Movements in the number of share options outstanding are as follows:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
2007 2006

Outstanding at 1 April 1,074,522 221,703
Granted during the year – 984,473
Lapsed during the year (3,049) (131,654)

Outstanding at 31 March 1,071,473 1,074,522
Exercisable at 31 March – –

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following terms:
Number of Number of

shares under shares under
option as at option as at

31 March 31 March
Option term 2007 2006

29 July 2004 – 29 July 2009 213,996 213,996
21 July 2005 – 21 July 2015 857,477 860,526

Total 1,071,473 1,074,522

29 Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note.The only related party transactions relate to total compensation paid to key management, who are defined
as the executive and non-executive directors. The total compensation paid during the year was as follows:

Year to Year to 
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£m £m

Salaries and short-term benefits 6.2 4.3
Post-employment benefits 0.5 0.5
Share-based compensation 2.3 3.8

Total 9.0 8.6

In addition, aggregate gains on the exercise of options in the year to 31 March 2007 were £14.2m (2006: £8.4m).

GUS plc and other GUS related companies were related parties of the Burberry Group until 12 December 2005 as GUS plc owned the
majority shareholding in Burberry Group plc. On 13 December 2005 Burberry Group demerged from GUS plc, services provided since 
this date have been done so in accordance with the demerger agreement. 

30 Events after the Balance Sheet date

On 21 March 2007, the UK Chancellor announced that the full rate of UK corporation tax would be reduced from 30% to 28% from April
2008. However, this rate reduction has not been substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and therefore as required by IAS 12,
deferred tax assets and liabilities (as set out in note 12) relating to the UK have been measured at the currently enacted tax rate of 30%.
The deferred tax charge that will arise on substantive enactment of the proposed change to the corporation tax rate is not expected to 
have a material financial effect on the Group’s effective tax rate for 2007/08.
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31 Principal subsidiaries
Company Country of incorporation Nature of business

Spain
Burberry (Spain) S.A. Spain Luxury goods wholesaler
Burberry (Spain) Retail S.L. Spain Luxury goods retailer
Mercader y Casadevall S.A. Spain Luxury goods retailer 
Europe
Burberry Limited UK Luxury goods retailer, wholesaler and licensor
Burberry Italy Retail Limited UK Luxury goods retailer
The Scotch House Limited(1) UK Luxury goods brand and licensor
Woodrow-Universal Limited(1) UK Textile manufacturer
Burberry France SASU France Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry (Suisse) S.A.(1) Switzerland Luxury goods retailer
Burberry Italy SRL(1) Italy Luxury goods wholesaler
Burberry (Deutschland) GmbH Germany Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry (Austria) GmbH Austria Luxury goods retailer
Burberry Antwerp N.V. Belgium Luxury goods retailer
Burberry Czech Republic s.r.o. Czech Republic Luxury goods retailer
Burberry Hungary kft Hungary Luxury goods retailer
North America
Burberry Limited USA Luxury goods retailer
Burberry (Wholesale) Limited USA Luxury goods wholesaler
Asia Pacific
Burberry Asia Ltd Hong Kong Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry (Singapore) Distribution Company Pte Ltd Singapore Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry Pacific Pty Ltd Australia Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry Korea Ltd Republic of Korea Luxury goods retailer and wholesaler
Burberry (Taiwan) Co Ltd Taiwan Luxury goods retailer
Burberry (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Luxury goods retailer
Burberry Japan K.K. Japan Luxury goods retailer, wholesaler and licensor

(1) Held directly by Burberry Group plc.

All principal subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned as at 31 March 2007 and operate in the country in which they are incorporated with
the exception of Burberry Italy Retail Limited, which operates principally in Italy. All the subsidiary undertakings have been consolidated as 
at 31 March 2007. Non-operating intermediate holding and financing companies are excluded from the list above.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Turnover by product £m £m £m £m £m £m

Womenswear 197.9 225.7 242.1 242.1 249.3 305.5
Menswear 162.8 190.1 194.5 194.5 206.2 227.0
Accessories (including Childrenswear) 169.5 178.4 185.0 185.0 189.2 211.2
Other 5.1 14.6 15.5 15.5 17.1 20.5
Licensing 58.3 67.0 78.4 78.4 81.1 86.1

Total 593.6 675.8 715.5 715.5 742.9 850.3

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Turnover by destination £m £m £m £m £m £m

Europe (excluding Spain) 159.3 191.0 188.0 188.0 216.3 257.1
North America 140.5 162.4 165.9 165.9 180.4 199.3
Asia Pacific 147.0 162.6 186.6 186.6 201.4 223.1
Spain 143.4 155.8 168.4 168.4 134.1 151.8
Other 3.4 4.0 6.6 6.6 10.7 19.0

Total 593.6 675.8 715.5 715.5 742.9 850.3

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Turnover by operation £m £m £m £m £m £m

Retail 228.4 257.4 265.2 265.2 318.5 410.1
Wholesale 306.9 351.4 371.9 371.9 343.3 354.1
Licensing 58.3 67.0 78.4 78.4 81.1 86.1

Total 593.6 675.8 715.5 715.5 742.9 850.3

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Profit by operation £m £m £m £m £m £m

Wholesale and Retail 64.3 86.6 98.5 94.3 96.2 111.7
Licensing 52.4 56.0 67.0 67.0 69.4 73.4

EBIT(2) (before Atlas and Treorchy costs) 116.7 142.6 165.5 161.3 165.6 185.1
Net interest income/(expense) (0.9) 2.3 4.9 4.9 2.5 (0.7)
Project Atlas costs – – – – (11.1) (21.6)
Treorchy closure costs – – – – – (6.5)
Exceptional/material items (22.0) 2.2 0.8 – – –
Foreign currency loss on loans with GUS group 
(pre-flotation) (2.3) – – – – –
Goodwill amortisation (6.4) (6.8) (6.8) – – –

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 85.1 140.3 164.4 166.2 157.0 156.3
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (32.9) (47.3) (54.5) (54.3) (50.6) (46.1)

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation/
attributable profit 52.2 93.0 109.9 111.9 106.4 110.2

Margin analysis % % % % % %

Gross margin as percentage of turnover 56.0 57.9 59.3 59.3 60.0 61.3

Wholesale and Retail EBIT(2) as a percentage of turnover 12.0 14.2 15.5 14.8 14.5 14.6
Licensing EBIT(2) as a percentage of turnover 89.9 83.6 85.5 85.5 85.6 85.2
Total EBIT(2) as a percentage of turnover 19.7 21.1 23.1 22.5 22.3 21.8

(1) Year to 31 March 2003 has not been restated to reflect the impact of adopting FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” as the necessary data is not available.
(2) Earnings before interest, taxation, goodwill amortisation and exceptional/material items.
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UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
pence pence pence pence pence pence

Earnings and dividends per share per share per share per share per share per share

Basic earnings per share 10.5 18.8 22.2 22.7 22.9 25.2
Basic earnings per share before goodwill 
amortisation and exceptional/Atlas and Treorchy costs 14.9 19.8 23.4 n/a 24.7 29.7
Diluted earnings per share 10.3 18.4 21.8 22.2 22.3 24.7
Diluted earnings per share before goodwill 
amortisation and exceptional/Atlas and Treorchy costs 14.6 19.4 23.0 n/a 24.1 29.1
Dividend per share (UK GAAP on an accruals basis) 3.0 4.5 6.5 n/a n/a n/a
Dividend per share (IFRS on a paid basis) n/a n/a n/a 5.0 7.0 8.4

Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 
in issue during the year 506.2m 505.9m 504.6m 504.5m 477.6m 446.1m

Dividend cover (UK GAAP on an accruals basis)(2) 5.0 4.4 3.7 n/a n/a n/a
Dividend cover (IFRS on a paid basis)(2) n/a n/a n/a 4.5 3.2 3.0

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Balance sheet £m £m £m £m £m £m

Fixed assets, investments and other intangible assets 162.4 150.7 167.0 165.6 181.2 179.5
Working capital (excluding cash and borrowings) 73.8 66.6 77.7 79.6 121.7 136.1
Other long-term liabilities (10.6) (10.8) (9.8) (10.1) (19.2) (12.2)

Net operating assets 225.6 206.5 234.9 235.1 283.7 303.4
Goodwill 122.8 110.6 107.1 114.0 121.2 116.9
Deferred consideration for acquisitions (31.7) (31.7) (32.7) (32.7) (11.5) (10.0)
Cash at bank, net of overdraft and borrowings 79.6 157.9 169.9 169.9 12.5 (2.8)
Taxation (including deferred taxation) 0.4 1.0 (2.9) (14.0) (19.3) (10.6)
Dividends payable (10.0) (14.9) (21.7) – – –

Net assets 386.7 429.4 454.6 472.3 386.6 396.9

UK GAAP IFRS

2003(1) 2004 2005 2005 2006 2007
Cash flow £m £m £m £m £m £m

Operating profit before goodwill 
amortisation and exceptional items 116.7 142.6 165.5 161.3 165.6 185.1
Project Atlas costs – – – – (11.1) (21.6)
Treorchy closure costs – – – – – (6.5)

Operating profit after Atlas and Treorchy costs 116.7 142.6 165.5 161.3 154.5 157.0
Depreciation, impairment and 
trademark amortisation charges 19.0 28.5 24.4 24.4 24.9 26.7
Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed 
assets and similar non-cash charges 1.5 1.7 (1.1) (1.1) (1.6) 1.1
Charges in respect of employee 
share incentive schemes – 3.6 5.3 9.5 7.4 10.8
(Increase)/decrease in stocks 5.2 (7.5) (12.8) (12.9) (17.8) (33.4)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (2.4) (1.5) (7.3) (7.3) 2.2 (33.8)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 25.0 18.2 1.5 1.5 (21.2) 32.8

Net cash inflow from operations 
before capital expenditure 165.0 185.6 175.5 175.4 148.4 161.2
Purchase of tangible and intangible fixed assets (55.7) (28.8) (37.2) (37.2) (30.7) (34.3)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 0.2 – 3.1 3.1 3.6 0.1

Net cash inflow from operations 
adjusted for capital expenditure 109.5 156.8 141.4 141.3 121.3 127.0

(1) Year to 31 March 2003 have not been restated to reflect the impact of adopting FRS 17 “Retirement Benefits” as the necessary data is not available.
(2) Based on attributable profit or profit after taxation before goodwill amortisation and exceptional items.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'  REPORT TO

THE MEMBERS OF BURBERRY GROUP PLC

We have audited the parent Company financial statements of
Burberry Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which
comprise the Balance Sheet and the related notes. These parent
Company financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the
information in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related
matters that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements
of Burberry Group plc for the year ended 31 March 2007. 

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the
Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters and the parent
Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent Company financial
statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration
and related matters to be audited in accordance with relevant
legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the opinion, has
been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body
in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and
for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person
to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come 
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent Company
financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the parent
Company financial statements and the part of the Report on Directors’
Remuneration and related matters to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors’ Report is consistent with the parent Company financial
statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes
that specific information presented in the Business and Financial
Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section
of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent Company
financial statements. The other information comprises only the
Chairman’s Letter, Chief Executive’s Letter, Financial Highlights,
Business and Financial Review, Risks, the Directors’ Report, the
unaudited part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related
matters, the Corporate Governance Statement and the Corporate
Social Responsibility Statement. We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the parent Company financial statements.
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant
to the amounts and disclosures in the parent Company financial
statements and the part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration
and related matters to be audited. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors
in the preparation of the parent Company financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the parent Company financial statements and the
part of the Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters
to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the parent Company financial statements and the part of the Report
on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

– the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair 
view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at 31 March 2007.

– the parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Report on Directors’ Remuneration and related matters to be
audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985.

– the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the parent Company financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

23 May 2007
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET 

As at As at
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
Note £m £m

ASSETS
Fixed assets
Investments in Group companies D 1,112.5 1,112.5

1,112.5 1,112.5
Current assets
Debtors receivable within one year E 82.2 71.9
Debtors receivable after one year E 682.2 650.3
Derivative assets 1.3 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents F 0.7 0.8

766.4 723.5
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Creditors payable within one year G (90.9) (95.1)
Derivative liabilities (0.1) (0.1)

Net current assets 675.4 628.3

Total assets less current liabilities 1,787.9 1,740.8

Creditors payable after one year H (1,175.0) (1,046.8)

Net assets 612.9 694.0

EQUITY
Share capital I 0.2 0.2
Share premium I 167.3 151.8
Capital reserve I 0.9 0.9
Profit and loss account I 444.5 541.1

Total equity I 612.9 694.0

Approved by the Board on 23 May 2007 and signed on its behalf by:

John Peace Stacey Cartwright
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Basis of preparation

Burberry Group plc (“the Company”) is the parent Company of the Burberry Group. Burberry Group plc is listed on the London Stock
Exchange and its principal business is investment. 

Burberry Group is a luxury goods manufacturer, wholesaler and retailer in Europe, North America and Asia Pacific; licensing activity is also
carried out, principally in Japan. All of the companies, which comprise Burberry Group, are owned by the Company directly or indirectly. 

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention with the exception of financial
instruments which are included in the financial statements at fair value and in accordance with applicable accounting standards in the UK
and the Companies Act 1985. 

B Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. Changes to accounting policies and presentation are set out
in note C.

i) Share schemes
Incentive plans
Employees in Burberry Group (including directors) receive certain share incentives, relating to Burberry Group plc shares.

The cost of the share incentives is measured with reference to the fair value of the equity instruments awarded at the date of grant.
The Black-Scholes option pricing model is used to determine the fair value of the award made. The impact of performance conditions
is not considered in determining the fair value on the date of grant, except for conditions linked to the price of Burberry Group plc shares
i.e. market conditions. Vesting conditions which relate to non-market conditions are allowed for in the assumptions about the number
of options expected to vest. The estimate of the number of options expected to vest is revised at each Balance Sheet date.

The cost of the share-based incentives are recharged and recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the awards in the entity
employing the relevant employees receiving the share awards. A corresponding increase in equity is recognised in Burberry Group plc.

The proceeds received from the exercise of the equity instruments awarded, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium in Burberry Group plc.

ii) Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to Burberry Group plc’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the shareholders for the final dividend or paid in respect of the interim dividend.

iii) Investments in Group companies
Investments in Group companies are stated at cost, less any provision to reflect impairment in value.

Loans to Group companies are considered to be part of the net investment in the subsidiary and any foreign exchange gain or losses 
made of these loans is recognised in the profit and loss account.

iv) Impairment of assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful economic life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). 

v) Taxation including deferred tax
Deferred taxation is recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the Balance Sheet date that give rise to an obligation
to pay more taxation in future, or a right to pay less taxation in future. An asset is not recognised to the extent that the realisation of economic
benefits in the future is uncertain. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

vi) Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its own equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed
of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF BURBERRY GROUP PLC

CONTINUED

B Accounting policies continued

vii) Financial instruments
Financial instruments are reported and measured in accordance with FRS 25 and FRS 26 respectively. The Company used the exemption
not to present FRS 25 disclosures in the notes to the entity financial statements as full equivalent disclosures are presented within the
consolidated financial statements. 

viii) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, which are held at the year end, are translated into Sterling at the exchange rate ruling
at the Balance Sheet date. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise. 

ix) Cash flow statement
The Company is exempt from the requirement to prepare a cash flow statement under FRS 1 (revised 1996) “Cash flow statements”,
as it is a part of Burberry Group and the cash flow for the Group is included in the consolidated financial statements of Burberry Group.

x) Related party transactions
FRS 8, “Related Party Disclosures” requires the disclosure of the details of material transactions and balances between the reporting entity
and related parties. The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under the terms of FRS 8, not to disclose details of transactions
with entities that are part of Burberry Group.

C Changes in accounting policies and presentation

The Accounting Standards Board has issued a new Financial Reporting Standard in the year to 31 March 2007, which impacted on the
financial statements for the Company.

The results for the year to 31 March 2007 have incorporated the impact of the amendments to FRS 26 “Financial instruments:
Measurement”, which impacts the accounting for certain financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company. The adoption of these
amendments had no material impact on the reported results for 31 March 2007 and 2006.

D Investments in Group companies
Cost £m

As at 31 March 2005 1,047.2
Additions 65.3

As at 31 March 2006 1,112.5
Additions –

As at 31 March 2007 1,112.5

The principal subsidiaries of the Burberry Group are listed in note 31 of the Group financial statements.

Burberry Group plc is registered in England and Wales and its registered number is 03458224.

E Debtors
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Debtors receivable within one year
Corporation tax 7.8 6.2
Amounts receivable from Group companies 74.4 65.7

Total debtors receivable within one year 82.2 71.9

Debtors receivable after one year
Amounts receivable from Group companies 682.2 650.3

Total debtors receivable after one year 682.2 650.3

Total debtors 764.4 722.2

The loans receivable from Group companies are interest bearing. The interest rate earned is based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

E Debtors continued

The maturity of debtors due after one year is as follows:
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Between one and two years 665.6 0.5
Between two and three years – 633.9
Between three and four years – –
Over five years 16.6 15.9

Total 682.2 650.3

F Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 0.7 0.8

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest based on the relevant LIBOR equivalents. 

G Creditors payable within one year 
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured:
Trading balances payable to Group companies 40.1 47.0
Loan balances payable to Group companies 50.4 47.9
Accruals and deferred income 0.4 0.2

Total 90.9 95.1

H Creditors payable after one year
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Unsecured:
Amounts payable to Group companies 1,175.0 1,046.8

The maturity of long-term liabilities is as follows:
As at As at 

31 March 31 March 
2007 2006

£m £m

Between one and two years 810.4 257.7
Between two and three years – 771.6
Between three and four years – –
Over five years 364.6 17.5

Total 1,175.0 1,046.8

The long-term liabilities are interest bearing. The interest rate incurred is based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

I Equity
2007 2006

Authorised share capital £m £m

1,999,999,998,000 (2006: 1,999,999,998,000) ordinary shares of 0.05p (2006: 0.05p) each 1,000.0 1,000.0

Total 1,000.0 1,000.0

Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital Number £m

Ordinary shares of 0.05p (2006: 0.05p) each

As at 1 April 2006 446,712,463 0.2
Allotted on exercise of IPO Option Scheme awards during the year 3,347,919 –
Cancelled on repurchase of own shares (12,281,000) –

As at 31 March 2007 437,779,382 0.2

Reconciliation of movement in Company shareholders’ funds
Profit and

Share Share Capital loss Total
capital premium reserve account equity

£m £m £m £m £m

As at 1 April 2005 0.3 136.1 – 766.2 902.6
Retained loss for the year – – – (43.3) (43.3)

Total recognised expense for the year – – – (43.3) (43.3)
Employee share option scheme
– Value of share options granted – – – 7.4 7.4
– Exercise of share options – 15.7 – – 15.7
Share buy back costs (0.1) – 0.1 (191.6) (191.6)
Sale of shares by ESOPs – – – 2.4 2.4
Redemption of preference shares – – 0.8 – 0.8

As at 31 March 2006 0.2 151.8 0.9 541.1 694.0

Retained loss for the year – – – (51.3) (51.3)

Total recognised expense for the year – – – (51.3) (51.3)
Employee share option scheme
– Value of share options granted – – – 10.8 10.8
– Exercise of share options – 15.5 – – 15.5
Share buy back costs – – – (62.2) (62.2)
Sale of shares by ESOPs – – – 6.1 6.1

As at 31 March 2007 0.2 167.3 0.9 444.5 612.9

Loss on ordinary activities, but before dividends payable, was £14.9m (2006: loss £10.5m). As permitted by section 230 of the Companies
Act 1985, the Company has not presented its own profit and loss account. The Company audit fee was £0.3m (2006: £0.3m). Dividend
disclosures are provided in note 9 of the Group accounts.

During the year to 31 March 2007, the Company repurchased and subsequently cancelled 12,281,000 (2006: 45,868,642) ordinary
shares, representing 2.7% (2006: 9.0%) of the issued share capital, at a total cost of £62.2m (2006: £191.6m). The nominal value of the
shares was £6,141 (2006: £22,934) which was transferred to a capital redemption reserve. The profit and loss account was reduced by
£62.2m (2006: £191.6m).

The cost of own shares held in the Burberry Group ESOPs has been offset against the profit and loss account, as the amounts paid reduce
the profits available for distribution by the Burberry Group and the Company. As at 31 March 2007 the amounts offset against this reserve
are £9.2m (2006: £16.0m).

The capital reserve consists of non-distributable reserves and the capital redemption reserve arising on the purchase of own shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

J Contingent liabilities

Burberry Group plc, together with Burberry Limited, Burberry Spain SA and Burberry Asia Limited make up the Guarantor Group for a 
£200m five year multicurrency revolving facility agreement which commenced on 30 March 2005. The facility was co-ordinated by HSBC
(Co-ordinator and Agent) and the mandated lead arrangers were Barclays Capital, HSBC Bank plc, Lloyds TSB Bank plc, The Royal Bank 
of Scotland plc and Societe General S.A. All have an equal commitment of £40m, and the interest incurred on this facility accrues at LIBOR
plus 0.325% per annum.

A potential liability may arise in the future if one of the Group members defaults on the loan facility. Each guarantor, including Burberry Group plc
would be liable to cover the amounts outstanding, including principal and interest elements.

K Related party transactions

GUS plc and other GUS related companies were related parties of Burberry Group plc in the prior year until 13 December 2005 as GUS plc
owned the majority shareholding in Burberry Group plc. On 13 December 2005 Burberry Group plc demerged from GUS plc and became
the ultimate parent Company of the Group.

Share repurchase programme
As part of the Share repurchase programme 13,063,825 ordinary shares were purchased by the Company from GUS in 2006, representing
a total cost, including expenses, of £52.2m. All of the ordinary shares purchased were cancelled.

L Events after the Balance Sheet date

On 21 March 2007, the UK Chancellor announced that the full rate of UK corporation tax would be reduced from 30% to 28% from April
2008. However, this rate reduction has not been substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and therefore as required by FRS 19,
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been measured at the currently enacted tax rate of 30%. The deferred tax charge that will arise 
on substantive enactment of the proposed change to the corporation tax rate is not expected to have a material financial effect on the
Company’s effective tax rate for 2007/08.

M Employee costs

No employees were employed by the Company during the year to 31 March 2007 (2006: nil).
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Registrar
Enquiries concerning shareholdings, changes of name or address
should be referred to Lloyds TSB Registrars, The Causeway,
Worthing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA, telephone: 0870 600 3970 
(or +44 121 415 7047 from outside the UK). In addition, Lloyds TSB
Registrars offer a range of shareholder information online at
www.shareview.co.uk. A textphone facility for those with hearing
difficulties is available by calling: 0870 600 3950 (or +44 121 415 7028
from outside the UK).

Share price information
The latest Burberry Group plc share price is available on the Group’s
website at www.burberrygroupplc.com and also on the Financial
Times Cityline Service on 0906 843 0000 (calls charged at 60p
per minute).

Share dealing
Lloyds TSB Registrars offer a telephone and internet dealing service.
Terms and conditions and details of the commission charges are
available on request.

For telephone dealing call 0870 850 0852 between 8.00 am 
and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday, and for internet dealing visit
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing. Shareholders will need the
reference number shown on their share certificate.

Internet
A full range of investor relations information is available at
www.burberrygroupplc.com. This includes webcasts of results
presentations given to analysts and fund managers together
with the slides accompanying those presentations.

Amalgamating share accounts
Shareholders who have more than one account due to
inconsistency in name and address details may avoid duplicate
mailings by asking the Registrar to amalgamate their holdings.

Dividends
The interim dividend of 2.875p per share was paid on 1 February
2007. A final dividend of 7.625p has been proposed and, subject 
to approval at the Annual General Meeting on 12 July 2007, will be
paid on 2 August 2007 to shareholders on the register at the close
of business on 6 July 2007.

Dividends can be paid by BACS directly into a UK bank account,
with the tax voucher being sent to the shareholders address.
A dividend mandate form is available from Lloyds TSB Registrars
or from www.shareview.co.uk.

Electronic Communication
Shareholders have the opportunity to receive all shareholder
documentation in electronic form via the internet, rather than
through the post in paper format. Shareholders who decide to
register for this option will receive an email each time a statutory
document is published on the internet. Shareholders who wish
to receive documentation in electronic form should register at
www.shareview.co.uk.

ShareGift
Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which
makes it uneconomic to sell them, may wish to consider donating
their shares to charity through ShareGift, a donation scheme
operated by The Orr Mackintosh Foundation (registered charity
1052686). A ShareGift donation form can be obtained from Lloyds
TSB Registrars. Further information is available at www.sharegift.org
or by telephone on +44 (0)20 7828 1151.

Registered office
Burberry Group plc
18-22 Haymarket
London
SW1Y 4DQ
Telephone: +44 (0)20 7968 0000
Fax: +44 (0)20 7980 2950
www.burberrygroupplc.com

Financial calendar

Final dividend record date 6 July 2007
First quarter trading update 11 July 2007
Annual General Meeting 12 July 2007
Final dividend payment 2 August 2007
First half trading update October 2007
Interim results announcement November 2007
Third quarter trading update 
and interim dividend record date January 2008
Interim dividend payment February 2008
Second half trading update April 2008
Preliminary results announcement May 2008
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Burberry Group plc
18-22 Haymarket
London
SW1Y 4DQ
Telephone: +44 (0)20 7968 0000
Fax: +44 (0)20 7980 2950
www.burberrygroupplc.com
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